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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

A ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008

or

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 000-28275

PFSWEB, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its cégrt

Delaware 75-283705¢
(State or other jurisdiction ¢ (I.LR.S. Employe
incorporation or organization Identification Number
500 North Central Expressway, Plano, Texa 75074
(Address of principal executive offict (Zip code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code:
972-881-2900

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) dfie Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) t¢ifie Act:
Common Stock, par value $.001 per share
Indicate by check mark if the registrant isell-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Ruleot@®e Securities Act. YeBI No ™M
Indicate by check mark if the registrant i$ remuired to file reports pursuant to Section £3%(d) of the Act. Ye§&l No M

Indicate by a check mark whether the registfanhas filed all reports required to be filed ®gction 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordioch shorter period that the registrant was redquodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past@@s. Yesd NoO

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delieqt filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation kot contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge]dfinitive proxy or information statements incorated by reference in Part Il of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 108&.

Indicate by check mark whether the registiamatlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated, fleron-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirgpmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated fil&d Accelerated fileld Non-accelerated filer™d Smaller reporting compariy
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compe

Indicated by check mark whether the registimatshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 efakt). Yes0 No M

The aggregate market value of the voting stadll by non-affiliates of the registrant as of @0, 2008 (based on the closing price as
reported by the National Association of Securibeslers Automated Quotation System) was $38,855,038

At March 31, 2009, there were 9,942,140 shaféise registrant’'s Common Stock issued, $.001lvphre, (after giving effect to the 1-fdr7
common share reverse stock split effective Jurkd@s).
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
The information required by Part Ill of thi;iAual Report, to the extent not set forth heraimcorporated herein by reference from



registrant’s definitive proxy statement relatinghie annual meeting of shareholders, which defi@igroxy statement shall be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission within 120 ddigs the end of the fiscal year to which this AahReport relates.
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PART I

Iltem 1. Business
General

PFSweb is an international provider of intéggleeCommerce and business process outsourcinipssluPFSweb provides these solutior
major brand name companies seeking to optimize sugiply chain efficiencies and to extend theiditianal business and e-commerce
initiatives. Through our eCOST.com business uné,are also a leading multi-category online discoat#iler of new, “close-out” and
recertified brand-name merchandise. We derive exenues from three business segments: 1) eComiaetddeusiness process outsourcing, 2)
a master distributor and 3) an online discountileta

First, in our eCommerce and business procgts®orcing business segment operated by our Brieuifillment Services subsidiaries
(“PFS"), we derive our revenues from a broad raofggervices as we process individual businessacimns on our clients’ behalf. These
business transactions may include the answeriagptione call or an e-mail, the design and hostirggatient web-site, the deployment of an
eCommerce technology platform, the receipt anchg®of a client’s inventory, the kitting and assgnd products to meet a client’s
specifications, the shipping of products to oueriis customer base, the management of a compi@f skectronic data transactions designed
to keep our client’s suppliers and customers adiogimecords in balance, or the processing of armed package. In the eCommerce and
business process outsourcing segment, we do notfeninventory or the resulting accounts receivalale provide management services for
these client-owned assets.

In our second business segment operated b@upplies Distributors’ subsidiaries we act as ateradistributor of product for InfoPrint
Solutions Company (“IPS”), a joint venture companyned by Ricoh and International Business Mach{ti&M”), and certain other clients.
In this capacity, we purchase and resell for oun eacount, IPS and other manufacturers’ inventacgordingly, in this business segment, we
recognize product revenue and own the accountsvedide and inventory.

Our third business segment is eCOST.com (“eCP&nN online discount retailer of new, “close-band recertified brand-name
merchandise. This web-commerce product revenue Inefteeused on the sale of products to a broadeaf consumer and business
customers. We currently offer approximately 200,p6éducts in several primary merchandise categanekiding computers, networking,
electronics and entertainment, TV'’s, plasmas anditows, cameras and camcorders, memory and stdifagethe Home” and sports and
leisure.

We are headquartered in Plano, Texas wherexagutive and administrative offices and our printachnology operations and hosting
facilities are located. We have an office in El Getdp, CA which consists of sales, marketing anapasing operations for our online discount
retailer segment. We operate state-of-the-artoegiters from our U.S. facilities located in Plafiexas, and Memphis, Tennessee, and from our
international facilities located in Toronto, Canaldege, Belgium and Manila, Philippines. We leasenanage warehouse facilities of
approximately 2.0 million square feet of warehosigace, many containing highly automated and sfateecart material handling and
communications equipment, in Memphis, TN, Southad®, Grapevine, TX, Toronto, Canada and LiegegBeh, allowing us to provide
global distribution solutions.

ECOMMERCE AND BUSINESS PROCESS OUTSOURCING SEGMENT

PFS is a global provider of end-to-end eConmmand business process outsourcing solutions. $¥ffte breadth includes eCommerce
technology and integration services, interactivek®ting services, global logistics and order futfiént, freight and transportation managen
real-time order management, kitting and assembistomner care, facility operations and managemenmnt;key web-commerce infrastructure,
payment processing and financial services and n@whectively, we define our offering as End-to-Eedommerce and Business Process
Outsourcing because we extend our clients’ infeastire and technology capabilities, addressingndineebusiness transaction cycle from
demand generation to product delivery. Our solgismpport both business-to-business (“B2B”) andnass-to-consumer (“B2C”) sales
channels.
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PFS serves as the “brand behind the brand®dmpanies seeking to increase efficiencies, erermarkets or launch optimized sales
channels. As an eCommerce and business processimgs we offer scalable and cost- effective soh# for manufacturers, distributors,
online retailers and direct marketing organizatiaosss a wide range of industry segments. We geoviir clients with seamless and
transparent solutions to support their businesdegjies, allowing them to focus on their core campees. Leveraging PFS’ technology,
expertise and proven methodologies, we enabletaigyanizations to develop and deploy new prodantsimplement new business strategies
or address new distribution channels rapidly afidieftly through our optimized solutions. Our cite engage us both as a consulting partner
to assist them in the design of a business solatsowell as a virtual and physical infrastructuaetiper providing the mission critical operations
required to build and manage their business salufiogether, we not only help our clients define/meays of doing business, but also provide
them the technology, physical infrastructure arafgssional resources necessary to quickly implertiesibusiness model. We allow our
clients to quickly and dramatically change how thgg-to-market.”

Each client has a unique business model aimpierstrategic objectives that require highly cogied solutions. PFS supports clients in a
wide array of industries including technology protd consumer goods, aviation, toys/educationectliles, luxury goods, food and beverage,
apparel and home furnishings. These clients tufPRS for help in addressing a variety of busingssés that include profitable eCommerce,
customer satisfaction and retention, time-defildggstics, vendor managed inventory and integratsupply chain compression, cost model
realignments, transportation management and irtierred expansion, among others. We also act asistiawtive agent of change, providing
clients the ability to alter their current distrttnn model, establish direct relationships with @udtomers, and reduce the overall time and
associated with existing distribution channel sty&s. Our clients are seeking solutions thatpvilvide them with dynamic supply chain and
multi-channel marketing efficiencies, while ultirebt delivering a world-class customer service eiqree.

Our technology and business infrastructurerof is flexible, reliable and fully scalable. $Hiexibility allows us to design custom, varig
cost solutions to fit the business requirementsunfclients’ strategies.

Our capabilities are expansive. To offer threstmecessary and resourceful solutions to ountslieve are continually developing capabili
to meet the pressing business issues in the méaketpgOur business objective is to focus on “Legdire Evolution of Outsourcing” .” As
our tagline suggests, we will continue to evolve service offering to meet the needs of the matketpand the demands of unique client
requirements. We are most successful when we peavitew capability to enable a client to pursuewa imitiative and we are then able to
leverage that revolutionary development acrossratlient or prospect solutions, as it becomes “peattice” in the marketplace. Our team of
experts design and build diverse solutions forranhetailers, technology and consumer goods matwiéas, aviation brands as well as other
major brand name clients around a flexible corezofinology and physical infrastructure that inckide

. Technology collaboration provided by our suiteexfitnology services, called the Entente Suite(SiMY, &re -commerce an
collaboration services that enable buyers and grgptb fully automate their business transactigitin their supply chain. Entente
supports industry standard collaboration techniduelsiding XML based protocols such as BizTalk &ukettaNet, real-time
application interfaces, text file exchanges viaused File Transfer Protocol (“FTP”), and traditibeéectronic data interchange
(“EDI");

. eCommerce technology solutions with managed ihgsthd Internet application development servigeduding web site design,
creation, integration and ongoing maintenance, stnd enhancement of web sit

. Order management, including order processing froynsaurce of entry, back order processing and éubuder processing, trackil
and tracing, credit management, electronic paymertessing, calculation and collection of salesatack VAT, comprehensive freight
calculation and email notification, all with muligcurrency and language optio

. Customer Relationship Manageme*CRM”), including interactive voice respons<“IVR”) technology and we-enabled custome
contact services through world-class call centélizing voice, e-mail, voice over internet protd¢tvOIP”) and internet chat
communications that are fully integrated with réale systems and historical data archives to peewmmplete customer lifecycle
managemen
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. International fulfillment and distribution sereis, including warehouse management, inventory neanegt, vendor managed
inventory, inventory postponement, product warehraysorder picking and packing, freight and tramsgiion management and
reverse logistics

. Facility Operations and Management (“FOM”) thatludes process reengineering, facility designeargineering and employee
administration

. Kitting and assembly services, including light asbéy, procurement services, supplier relationshimagement, specialized Kkittir
and supplier consigned inventory hub in our disttiitn facilities or c-located in other facilities

. Product management and inspection services,dimjumanagement of coupon programs, de-kittingsateage operations and
inspection, testing and repackaging servi

. Information management, including r-time data interfaces, data exchange services aadwaing;

. Financial services, including secure online credid processing related services, fraud protectinojcing, credit management a
collection, and working capital solutions; a

. Professional consulting services, including ascdtative team of experts that customize solutiorsach client and continuously seek
out ways to increase efficiencies and produce lisrfef the client

Industry Overview

Business activities in the public and privegetors continue to operate in an environmentpmitireechnological advancement, increasing
competition and continuous pressure to improveatpey and supply chain efficiency while decreagingts. We currently see the following
trends within the industry:

. Manufacturers strive to restructure their supplgioh to maximize efficiency and reduce costs imt&2B and B2C markets and
create a variable-cost supply chain able to sughertnultiple, unique needs of each of their itiiss, including traditional and
electronic commerce

. Companies in a variety of industries seek outsogras a method to address one or more busines8dns that are not within their
core business competencies, to reduce operatitg ot improve the speed or cost of implementa

Supply Chain Management Trend

As companies maintain focus on improving theisinesses and balance sheet financial ratiasfisent efforts and investments continue to
be made identifying ways to maximize supply chdfitiency and extend supply chain processes. Warkiapital financing, vendor managed
inventory, supply chain visibility software solutig, distribution channel skipping, direct to consuecommerce sales initiatives, and comj
upstream supply chain collaborative technologypaoglucts that manufacturers seek to help them eelyeeater supply chain efficiency.

A key business challenge facing many manufacsuand retailers as they evaluate their suppdyncifficiency is in determining how the
trend toward increased direct-to-customer busiaessity will impact their traditional B2B and B2€@mmerce business models. Order
management and small package fulfillment and digtidon capabilities are becoming increasingly intpor processes as this trend evolves. We
believe manufacturers will look to outsource thein-core competency functions to support this miedibusiness model. We believe that
companies will continue to strategically plan foe impact that e-commerce and other new techn@ddggncements will have on their
traditional commerce business models and theitiagisechnology and infrastructure capabilities.

Manufacturers, as buyers of materials, are ialposing new business practices and policiesiem supplier partners to shift the normal
supply chain costs and risks associated with irargradwnership away from their own balance shedtsoiigh techniques like Vendor Manay
Inventory or Consigned Inventory Programs (“CIP"),
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manufacturers are asking their suppliers, as agbdine supplier selection process, to provide bdas where the manufacturer need not own,
or even possess, inventory prior to the exact monhen unit of inventory is required as a raw mialexomponent or for shipping to a custor
To be successful for all parties, business modelh as these often require a sophisticated calec technological capabilities that allow for
complete integration and collaboration of the infation technology environments of both the buyet supplier. For example, for an invent
unit to arrive at the precise required moment erttanufacturing facility, it is necessary for thamdfacturing Resource Planning systems of
the manufacturer to integrate with the CRM systefrthe supplier. When hundreds of supplier partaeesinvolved, this process can become
quite complex and technologically challenging. Bisyand suppliers are seeking solutions that utiik#. based protocols like BizTalk,
RosettaNet and other traditional EDI standardsysuee an open systems platform that promotes dasienology integration in these
collaborative solutions.

Outsourcing Trend

In response to growing competitive pressunestachnological innovations, we believe many comgs both large and small, are focusing
their critical resources on the core competendigleair business and utilizing eCommerce and bissipgocess outsourcing to accelerate their
business plans in a cost-effective manner and penfan-core business functions. Outsourcing camigeomany key benefits, including the
ability to:

. Enter new business markets or geographic areadlya

. Increase flexibility to meet changing business ddors and demand for products and servi
. Enhance customer satisfaction and gain competiilantage

. Reduce capital and personnel investments and cofixed investments to variable cos

. Improve operating performance and efficiency;

. Capitalize on skills, expertise and technologyasfructure that would otherwise be unavailablexpeasive given the scale of t
business

Typically, many outsourcing service providars focused on a single function, such as infolmnatchnology, call center management,
credit card processing, warehousing or packageetgli This focus creates several challenges forpamies looking to outsource more than
of these functions, including the need to managkiphel outsourcing service providers, to share linfation with service providers and to
integrate that information into their internal srsis. Additionally, the delivery of these multiplergces must be transparent to the customer
and enable the client to maintain brand recognitind customer loyalty. Furthermore, traditional aoence outsourcers are frequently
providers of domestic-only services versus inteomat solutions. As a result, companies requiritabgl solutions must establish additional
relationships with other outsourcing parties.

Another vital point for major brand name comigsa seeking to outsource is the protection of thieind. When looking for an outsourcing
partner to provide infrastructure solutions, braathe companies must find a company that can etiseigsame quality performance and
superior experience that their customers expeat fteir brands. Working with an outsourcing partregjuires finding a partner that can
maintain the consistency of their brand image, Wliscone of the most valuable intangible assetsrdwognized brand name companies
possess.

The PFS Solution
PFS serves as the “brand behind the brand®dorpanies seeking high performance sales channels.

Our value proposition is to become a seamigsh integrated extension of our clients’ entesps by delivering superior solutions that drive
optimal customer experiences. On behalf of thedsave serve, we wish to increase and enhanceaadesarket growth, bolster customer
satisfaction and customer retention, and drivescost of the business through operations and téoynoelated efficiencies. We act as both a
virtual and a physical infrastructure for our cli®rbusinesses, embracing their brand values aatkgic objectives. By utilizing our services,
our clients are able to:

Quickly Capitalize on Market OpportunitieSur solutions empower clients to rapidly implemitir supply chain and eCommerce
strategies and to take advantage of opportunititteut lengthy integration and implementation effoiVe have readily available advanced
technology and physical infrastructure that is ifdein
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its design, which facilitates quick integration amgplementation. The PFS solution is designedltmabur clients to deliver consistent quality
service as transaction volumes grow and also tdlrataily and seasonal peak periods. Through darriational locations, our clients can sell
their products throughout the world.

Improve the Customer Experien¥e enable our clients to provide their customets wihigh-touch, positive buying experience thereby
maintaining and promoting brand loyalty. Through ose of advanced technology, we can respond birectustomer inquiries by e-mail,
voice or data communication and assist them witmerordering and product information. We offer a@lients a “world-classlevel of service
including 24-hour, seven-days-a-week, Web-enahlstbmer care service centers, detailed CRM repgpetimd exceptional order accuracy. We
have significant experience in the developmentGdramerce storefronts that allows us to recommeatlifes and functions that are easily
navigated and understood by our client’s custon@us.technology platform is designed to ensure tagbkls of reliability and fast response
times for our clients’ customers. Because our teldgy is “world-class,” our clients benefit fromibg able to offer the latest in customer
communication and response conveniences to thgiowers.

Minimize Investment and Improve Operating Efficieadne of the most significant benefits that outsamgaian provide is the ability to
transform fixed costs into variable costs. By efiating the need to invest in a fixed capital infirasture, our clients’ costs typically become
directly correlated with volume increases or desdinFurther, as volume increases drive the den@rgtéater infrastructure or capacity, we
able to quickly deploy additional resources. Wevjgte services to multiple clients, which enablesausffer our clients economies of scale,
resulting cost efficiency, that they may not hagerbable to obtain on their own. Additionally, besa of the large number of daily transacti
we process, we have been able to justify investsniarevels of automation, security surveillancgalgty control processes and transportation
carrier interfaces that are typically outside tbals of investment that our clients might be abledst justify on their own. These additional
capabilities can provide our clients the benefitsrthanced operating performance and efficienauced inventory shrinkage, and expanded
customer service options.

Access a Sophisticated Technology Infrastructéfe.provide our clients with ready access to a sijglaited technology infrastructure
through our Entente Suite(SM), which is designenhterface seamlessly with their systems. We prmwidr clients with vital product and
customer information that can be immediately awdédo them on their own systems or through weletha@saphic user interfaces for use in
data mining, analyzing sales and marketing tremagyitoring inventory levels and performing othenmmagement functions.

PFS Services

We offer a comprehensive and integrated sbtisiness infrastructure solutions that are taidldoeour clients’ specific needs and enable
them to quickly and efficiently implement their gy chain strategies.

Technology CollaborationVe have created the Entente Suite(SM), which ilhiss the level of electronic cooperation thatoisgible whei
we construct solutions with our clients using tieishnology service offering. This set of technolegyvices encompasses a wide range of
business functions from order processing and irorgreporting to total e-commerce design and imgletation. The Entente Suite(SM)
comprises five key services— EntenteVWelEntenteDirec® , EntenteMessagd®, EntenteRepof® and EntentePartnerConnect™.

EntenteWeB is a one-stop shop for the entire e-commerce pspgasticularly for companies with unusual needsparcific requests that
are not easily met by the typical e-commerce dearaknt packages. EntenteWls a service utilizing our revolutionary GlobalMeent
Commerceware™ e-commerce software platform thaaitcularly focused to enable global commerceeagias with its extensive currency
and language functionality. EntenteDir€qirovides clients with a real-time, web service éedluser-friendly interface between their system
and our order processing, warehouse managememekateld functions. Using real-time or batch proess&ntenteMessa@es a file exchang
service for clients using our warehousing and itistion facilities. EntenteRepaoftis a reporting and inquiry service particularlytedito
companies that need to put key e-commerce infoamatito the hands of business users, but do nat tieevIT resources to facilitate the
necessary data extraction, manipulation and prasent EntenteRepoftconsists of an industry-standard browser-basedtepier and a
client-customized data warehouse configuration.
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EntentePartnerConnect™ is a data repositayretnieval service for providing our clients wahcess to comprehensive product and service
information across a wide variety of product anviee categories. This information is aggregatednfmultiple sources including PFS
business partners such as Etilize that specializegating product content in certain categories.algo rely on other relationships and public-
domain information sources to supply raw datalfigs service. Access to this information will be yiced through the other Entente Suite(SM)
components including web sites created using Ee¥¥ab® and real-time or batch interfaces available throbgtenteDirec® and
EntenteMessag®. We provide the EntentePartnerConnect™ servioaitavholly-owned subsidiary eCOST via the eCOST.oeeb site. The
content available for the wide-range of producferefd on eCOST.com is provided by EntentePartnem€ati™. The information available
from EntentePartnerConnect™ for additional prodategories offers eCOST the opportunity to increasenues through an expanded
product offering and potential future product catggexpansion. We use EntentePartnerConnect™ wilegmost our clients’ web sites using
our EntenteWeB hosted web service and GlobalMerchant Commerceplatiorm.

The Entente Suite(SM) operates in an opersysenvironment and features the use of indusanydstrd XML and SOA web services,
enabling customized e-commerce solutions with mahiohanges to a client’s systems or our EnterfRissource Planning (“ERP”) systems.
The result is a faster implementation process.Hittente Suite(SM) offers companies a more robestnic information transfer option over
the traditional methods. FTP or EDI, MQ Series, AEHTP, and HTTPS transfer methods are also supgort

EntenteWel® Managed Hosting and Internet Application Developm®ur EntenteWeR service provides a complete e-commerce website
solution for our clients. We engage collaboratiwelth our clients to design, build, host, and mangdly branded, fully customized and fully
integrated e-commerce web applications for B2CB2# channels. As with all major brand name comp&rgensistency within the brand
image is vital; therefore, our web designers creatme stores that seamlessly integrate and miheexact brand image of our clients.

We offer a broad range of hosting and supplarts that can be tailored to fit the needs of edielnt. Utilizing IBM’s eServer xSeries
servers, Microsoft's.NET Technologies and our pietary GlobalMerchant Commerceware platform, wentan a robust hosting
environment for our hosted client web site progsrtiddditionally, our EntenteWebservice includes state-of-the-art web analyticsWigb
Trends OnDemand — Enterprise Edition. This higldyanced and flexible analytics tool delivers thi#aal e-business information that our
clients need to maximize the effectiveness of theline store.

EntenteWeB is a complete front-to-back e-commerce serviceiti@rporates components ranging from the lookefuser interface to
specific business purchasing, warehousing and stgpgeeds, enabling companies to define in exaotdeheir desired e-commerce site
functionality.

End-to-End eCommercBFS integrated its world-class services for cortaoter management, warehousing, logistics andlrfiodint with
Demandware eCommerce, a leading on-demand eComiplat@m, to provide a single, flexible best-okbd solution spanning the
eCommerce storefront, delivery of goods and ongoursiomer care. This new offering redefines endrid-eCommerce by enabling retailers
and branded consumer goods manufacturers withbiliydo employ a total outsourcing solution cusii@ed to their particular eCommerce
strategy, without the loss of site or brand con&isdociated with earlier end-to-end outsourcingtgnis.

Order Managemen®Our order management solutions provide clients witérfaces that allow for real-time informatiorirfeval, including
information on inventory, sales orders, shipmethtdivery, purchase orders, warehouse receiptspaigsthistory, accounts receivable and
credit lines. These solutions are seamlessly iatedrwith our web-enabled customer contact ceraéiasying for the processing of orders
through shopping cart, phone, fax, mail, email, wit, and other order receipt methods. As therimdtion backbone for our total supply
chain solution, order management services can é@ as a stand-alone basis or in conjunction withathier business infrastructure offerings,
including customer contact, financial or distrilmtiservices. In addition, for the B2B market, @atinology platform provides a variety of
order receipt methods that facilitate commerce iwitkarious stages of the supply chain. Our systerasgide the ability for both our clients and
their customers to track the status of orders watiame. Our services are transparent to our clientstomers and are seamlessly integrated with
our clients’ internal systems platforms and webssiBy synchronizing these activities, we can aapaind provide critical customer
information, including:
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. Statistical measurements critical to creating dityueustomer experience, containing -time order status, order exceptions, b
order tracking, allocation of product based on ttigndof online purchase and business rules, the eatiastomer inquiries to purchases,
average order sizes and order response

. B2B supply chain management information criticagét@luating inventory positioning, for the purpa$eeducing inventory turns, ar
assessing product flow through and -consumer demani

. Reverse logistics information including customesp@nse and reason for the return or rotation adyecband desired customer acti
. Detailed marketing information about what was soid to whom it was sold, by location and prefereacel
. Web traffic reporting showing the number of vig"hits”) received, areas visited, and products and infoonatquestec

Customer Relationship Managemeame offer a completely customized CRM solution fbemrts. Our CRM solution encompasses a full-
scale customer contact management service offeaBgiell as a fully integrated customer analysigmm. All customer contacts are captured
and customer purchases are documented. Full-ssabeting on all customer transactions is availétesvaluation purposes. Through each of
our customer touch-points, information can be axedyand processed for current or future use imlessievaluation, product effectiveness and
positioning, and supply chain planning.

An important feature of evolving commerce rémahe ability for the customer to speak withwve Icustomer service representative. Our
experience has been that a majority of consuminsstéhey visited the web location for informatjdsut not all of those consumers chose to
place their order online. Our customer care sesvitiize features that integrate voice, e-maénsdtard mail, data and Internet chat
communications to respond to and handle custonggiiries. Our customer care representatives ansargus questions, acting as virtual
representatives of our client’s organization, rdgey order status, shipping, billing, returns amoduct information and availability as well as a
variety of other questions. For certain clients,haadle Level | and Level Il technical support. EeMtechnical support involves assisting
clients’ customers with basic technical issues cicenputer application issues. Level Il support rimaplve a more in-depth question and
answer session with the customer. Our web-enahistbimer care technology identifies each custometact automatically and routes it to the
available customer care representative who is iddally certified in the client’s business and puot.

Our web-enabled customer care centers argrigsiso that our customer care representativekaradie several different clients and
products in a shared environment, thereby crea&timpomy of scale benefits for our clients as wehighly customized dedicated support
models that provide the ultimate customer expede brand reinforcement. Our advanced technatsgyenables our representatives to up-
sell, cross-sell and inform customers of other potsland sales opportunities. The web-enabled mgstoare center is fully integrated into the
data management and order processing system, agdull visibility into customer history and custemtrends. Through this fully integrated
system, we are able to provide a complete CRM iswiut

With the need for efficiency and cost optinti@a for many of our clients, we have integratedrI®s another option for customer contacts.
IVR creates an “electronic workforce” with virtuadients that can assist customers with vital inféionaat any time of the day or night. IVR
allows for our clients’ customers to deal intereely with our system to handle basic customer irigsij such as account balance, order status,
shipment status, catalog requests, product and priiries, and routine order entry for establishestomers. The inclusion of IVR to our
service offering allows us to offer a cost effeetivay to handle high volume, low complexity calls.

International Fulfillment and Distribution Service&n integral part of our solution is the warehousamgl distribution of inventory either
owned by our clients or owned by us. We currendlyehapproximately two million square feet of leasethanaged warehouse space
domestically and internationally to store and pssceur and our clients’ inventory. We receive dliementory in our distribution centers,
verify shipment accuracy, unpack and audit packé@@socess that includes spot-checking a smatigoeage of the client’s inventory to
validate piece
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counts and check for damages that may have occduréag shipping, loading and unloading). Upon resfuwe inspect for other damages or
defects, which may include checking fabric, stibthand zippers for soft goods, or ‘testing’ powpreapabilities for electronic items. We
generally stock for sale within one business dayndbading. On behalf of our clients, we pick, packl ship their customer orders and can
provide customized packaging, inserts and promatibiterature for distribution with customer ordeFor many clients, we provide gift-
wrapping services including customized gift-wrapgppaper, ribbon, gift-box and gift-messaging.

Our distribution facilities contain computex@zsortation equipment, highly mobile pick-to-ligiarts, powered material handling equipment,
scanning and bar-coding systems and automated yorsvand inline scales. Our international distribution comgesinclude several advanc
technology enhancements, such as radio frequenbpaégy in product receiving processing to engw@iracy, as well as an automated
package routing and a pick-to-light paperless ofaléifiment system. Our advanced distribution €yat provide us with the capability to
warehouse an extensive number of stock keeping (®KUs) for our clients, ranging from large highddaser printers to small cosmetic
compacts. Our facilities are flexibly configuredpimcess B2B and single pick B2C orders from thmesaentral location.

In addition to our advanced distribution syste our pick-to-light carts and conveyor systemtiads provide real time productivity
reporting, thereby providing our management teath e tools to implement productivity standardsr @eet of pick-to-light carts also fully
integrates with our Vertical Lift Module (VLM), whh is capable of stocking more than two thousand$SK his combination of computer-
controlled equipment provides the seamless integratf our pick-to-light and mass storage capabgit This unique combination of
technologies ensures high order accuracy for eadleaery customer order.

Our primary B2B facility is in Southaven, M&ntaining almost 400,000 square feet of space.Sththaven facility has clear height added
cubic space utilization, state-of-the-art lightthgt increases the quality and volume of light @héducing energy costs, and certain long-term
tax incentives offered by the State of Mississifgmuthaven maintains the same proximity to all nsaafedransportation compared with our
Memphis facilities.

During 2008, we warehoused, managed andlédfinore than $2.8 billion in merchandise and taatisns. Much of this does not represent
our revenue, but rather the revenue of our cligiotsivhom we provided eCommerce and business psamgsourcing solutions. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations.”

Based upon our clients’ needs, we are ableki® advantage of a variety of shipping and dejivgtions, which range from next day service
to zone skipping to optimize transportation co&tst facilities and systems are equipped with mudtirier functionality, allowing us to
integrate with all leading package carriers andripi®a comprehensive freight and transportationagament offering. In addition, an
increasingly important function that we provide &wr clients is reverse logistics management. Viler af wide array of product return servic
including issuing return authorizations, receippodduct, crediting customer accounts, and disjpos@f returned product.

Our domestic clients enjoy the benefits ofihgtheir inventory assets secured by trained lafereement professionals from our security
headquarters in Memphis, TN and Southaven, MS.i@eealtvalidation ensures that we employ the latesecurity processes and procedurt
further enhance our surveillance and detectionhififi@s. Our security program continues to gaimstrand confidence from our clients as we
protect their product and assets.

Facility Operations and Manageme@ur FOM service offering includes distribution fi#gi design and optimization, business process
reengineering and ongoing staffing and managenddorg with our operations in Mississippi and Tersess we also manage an aircraft parts
distribution center in Grapevine, TX on behalf aiwker Beechcraft Corp. Our expertise in supply mim&nagement, logistics and customer-
centric fulfillment operations extends through cuanagement of clierawned facilities, resulting in cost reductions, @ss improvements al
technology-driven efficiencies.

Kitting and Assembly Servicg3ur expanded kitting and assembly services enableli@nts to reduce the time and costs associaitbd
managing multiple suppliers, warehousing hubs, I manufacturing partners. As a
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single source provider, we provide clients with #ftvantage of convenience, accountability and sp@edcomprehensive kitting and assen
services provide a quality one-stop resource fgriaternational channel. Our kitting and assemiglyiees include light assembly, specialized
kitting and supplier-consigned inventory hub eitimeour distribution facilities or co-located eldesve. We also offer customized light
manufacturing and Supplier Relationship Management.

We will work with clients to re-sequence cartaupply chain activities to aid in an inventorysgponement strategy. We can provide kitting
and assembly services and build-to-stock thousahdsits daily to stock in a Just- in-Time (“JITépvironment. This service, for example, can
entail the procurement of packaging materials idicig retail boxes, foam inserts and anti-staticsbddnese raw material components would be
shipped to us from domestic or overseas manufastuaad we will build the finished SKUs to stock the client. Also included is the custom
configuration of high-end printers and serverssTtrategy allows manufacturers to make a smallegstment in base unit inventory while
meeting changing customer demand for highly custabie product.

Combining our assembly services with our sigegiwned inventory hub services allows our cligntseduce cycle times, to compress their
supply chains and to consolidate their operationssaupplier management functions. We have supiphentory management, assembly and
fulfillment services all in one place, providingegter flexibility in product line utilization, aselN as rapid response to change orders or
packaging development. Our standard capabilitielside: build-to-order, build-to-stock, expeditediers, passive and active electrostatic
discharge (“ESD”) controls, product labeling, senamber generation, marking and/or capture, lohber generation, asset tagging, bill of
materials (“BOM") or computer automated design (‘@A engineering change processing, SKU-level pgcamd billing, manufacturing and
metrics reporting, first article approval processesl comprehensive quality controls.

Our kitting and assembly services also inclpEurement. We work directly with client suppsieo make JIT inventory orders for each
component in client packages, thereby ensuringawseive the appropriate inventory quantities atffustright time and we then turn them
around JIT to customers.

Kitting and inventory hub services enablerdieto collapse supply chains into the minimal stepcessary to prepare product for distribt
to any channel, including wholesale, mass mercteatil, or direct to consumer. Clients no longevénto employ multiple providers or require
suppliers to consign multiple inventory cachesdach channel. We offer our clients the opportutdtgonsolidate operations from a channel
standpoint, as well as from a geographic perspec@wur integrated, global information systems anérhational locations support client
business needs worldwide.

Product Management and Inspection Servitks.also operate a coupon management system andgprodnagement program. Coupons
are managed and activated by a unique serial nuthbesignificantly reducing fraudulent activityuQcapabilities also extend into salvage
operations, allowing our clients to reclaim valwatdw materials and components from discontinuezbeolete inventory.

We operate a test and repair center whereisuaNy inspect items for cosmetic defects. Thésm$ are put through rigorous testing that
includes: functionality, durability, accessory iesfion and packaging. Items that pass the testmgepackaged and resold with a noted
exception of “open-box” merchandise. ltems thdttfa inspection are disassembled and working gparts are saved for future use in repairs.

Information ManagementWe have the ability to communicate with and transfeormation to and from our clients through a wicariety
of technology services, including real-time webvgar enabled data interfaces, file transfer metlaubelectronic data interchange. Our
systems are designed to capture, store and eleahgrforward to our clients critical informatiaiegarding customer inquiries and orders,
product shipments, inventory status (for examgeells of inventory on hand, on backorder, on pwetader and inventory due dates to our
warehouse), product returns and other informatéa.maintain for our clients detailed product dat#sathat can be seamlessly integrated with
their web sites utilizing the capabilities of thet&nte Suite(SM). Our systems are capable of pioyidur clients with customer inventory and
order information for use in analyzing sales andkstng trends and introducing new products. We alfer customized reports and data
analyses based upon specific client needs to dksistin their budgeting and business decisionge®c
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Financial ServicesOur financial services are divided into two majoras: 1) billing, credit and collection services B2B and B2C clients
and 2) working capital solutions, where we act astaal and physical financial management depantnte fulfill our clients’ needs.

We offer secure credit and collections sewviime both B2B and B2C businesses. SpecificallyBBC clients, we offer secure credit card
processing related services for orders made viemat eveb site or through our customer contacteee offer manual credit card order
review as an additional level of fraud protectidfe also calculate sales taxes, goods and senéges or value added taxes, if applicable, for
numerous taxing authorities and on a variety ofipots. Using third-party leadingdge fraud protection services and risk managesystéms
we can offer high levels of security and reducelével of risk for client transactions.

For B2B clients, we offer full-service accasinéceivable management and collection capabilitietuding the ability to generate
customized computer-generated invoices in our tdierames. We assist clients in reducing accoweusivable and days sales outstanding,
while minimizing costs associated with maintainargin-house collections staff. We offer electromiedit services in the format of EDI X.12
and XML communications direct from our clients beir vendors, suppliers and retailers.

Professional Consulting Servicess part of the tailored solution for our clientse wffer a full team of experts specifically desitgthto
focus on our clients’ businesses. Team membersgtansultative role, providing constructive evéilug analysis and recommendations for
the client’s business. This team creates custonsinidions and devises plans that will increaskeieficies and produce benefits for the client
when implemented.

Comprised of industry experts from tog@r consulting firms and industry market leaders, team of professional consultants provides t
service focus and eCommerce, customer care, logiatid distribution expertise. They have built Bohs for Fortune 1000 and Global 2000
market leaders in a wide range of industries, iticlg multi-channel retailers, apparel, technoldglecommunications, cosmetics, aviation,
housewares, high-value collectibles, sporting gppbdarmaceuticals and several more. Focusing oauvbling infrastructure needs of major
corporations and their business initiatives, oantéhas a solid track record providing consultinyises in the areas of interactive marketing
eCommerce, supply chain management, distributiahfalfillment, technology interfacing, logistics @rcustomer support.

Clients and Marketing

Our target clients include online retailerswadl as leading technology, consumer goods anatiavi brands looking to quickly and
efficiently implement or enhance business initiasivadapt their go-to-market strategies, or intceduew products or programs, without the
burden of modifying or expanding their technologystomer care, supply chain and logistics infrastme. Our solutions are applicable to a
multitude of industries and company types and weslpgovided solutions for such companies as:

IBM (printer supplies in several geographieas), Xerox (printers and printer supplies), R@#sada LTD. (apparel), Hewlett-Packard
(printers and computer networking equipment), Hav@echcraft Corp. (FOM and time-definite logistszgpporting parts distribution),
Riverbed Technologies (a wide-area data servicedger) and LEGO Brand Retail (a toy manufactueemongst many others.

We target potential clients through an extemgitegrated marketing program that is comprideal ariety of direct marketing techniques,
trade event participation, search engine markepinglic relations and a sophisticated outbounddeles lead generation model. We have also
developed an intricate messaging matrix that defowe various eCommerce and business process ocitepsolutions and products, the
vehicles we utilize to deliver marketing communigaton these solutions/products and the targeteagdi segments that display a demand for
these solutions/products. This messaging matronallus to deploy highly targeted solution messagselected key vertical industry segme
where we feel that we are able to provide significgervice differentiation and value. We also parstrategic marketing alliances with
consulting firms, software manufacturers and olbgistics providers to increase market awarenedgjanerate referrals and customer leads.

Because of the highly complex nature of tHatgms we provide, our clients demand significemtpetence and experience from a variety
of different business disciplines during the salgde. As such, we utilize a selected
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member of our senior executive team to lead thegdesnd proposal development of each potential cleat we choose to pursue. The senior
executive is supported by a select group of highiyerienced individuals from our professional seegigroup with specific industry knowlec
or experience to the solutions development prod&ssemploy a team of highly trained implementatioenagers whose responsibilities
include the oversight and supervision of clientgects and maintaining high levels of client satisifan during the transition process between
the various stages of the sales cycle and steatly gperations.

Competition

We face competition from many different sosrdepending upon the type and range of serviceested by a potential client. Many other
companies offer one or more of the same servicegraxdde on an individual basis. Our competitordude vertical outsourcers, which are
companies that offer a single function solutiorgrsas call centers, public warehouses or credit paycessors. We occasionally compete with
transportation logistics providers, known in thdustry as 3PL’s and 4PL’s (third or fourth partgiktics providers), who offer product
management functions as an ancillary service to giignary transportation services. We also compgt@inst other eCommerce and business
process outsourcing providers, who perform vargrrsices similar to our solution offerings.

In many instances, we compete with the in-eaygerations of our potential clients themselvexalionally, the operations departments of
potential clients believe that they can performghme services we do, at similar quality levels @vgts, while others are reluctant to outsource
business functions that involve direct customertaon We cannot be certain that we will be ableampete successfully against these or other
competitors in the future.

Although many of our competitors offer onenaore of our services, we believe our primary coritipetadvantage is our ability to offer a
wide array of customized services that cover adspectrum of eCommerce and business processkglimgEweb-site design and hosting,
kitting and assembly, order processing and shipnoeatlit card payment processing and customercerthiereby eliminating any need for our
clients to coordinate these services from man\eréfit providers. We believe we can differentiateselves by offering our clients a very broad
range of eCommerce and business process servatesdiiress, in many cases, the entire value clnain,demand to delivery.

We also compete on the basis of many otheoitapt additional factors, including:
. operating performance and reliabili
. ease of implementation and integrati
. experience of the people required to successfulliyedficiently design and implement solutio
. experience operating similar solutions dynamic
. leading edge technology capabilitir
. global reach; an
. price.

We believe that we can compete favorably wepect to many of these factors. However, the etddk our services is competitive and ¢
evolving, and we may not be able to compete sutidsagainst current and future competitors.

MASTER DISTRIBUTOR SEGMENT

Our Supplies Distributors subsidiaries ach asaster distributor of product for IPS and certalrer clients. In this capacity, we purchase
resell for our own account IPS and other manufactiinventory.

Through Supplies Distributors, we can creai immplement client inventory solutions, which nenable manufacturers to remove inven
and receivables from their balance sheets througluse of third party financing. We have yearsxplegience in dealing with the issues related
to inventory ownership, secure inventory managenreptenishment and product distribution. We cdergfrospective clients a management
solution for the entire customer relationship, irdthg ownership of inventory and receivables. ThloCIP, we utilize technology resources to
time the replenishment purchase of inventory with simultaneous sale of product to the
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end user. All interfaces are done electronicallg aimost all processes regarding the financiaktiations are automated, creating significant
supply chain advantages.

We are experienced in the complex legal, agtiog and governmental control issues that canupdlés in the successful implementation of
working capital financing programs. Our knowledgel &xperience help clients achieve supply chairfitsnwhile reducing inventorgarrying
costs. Substantial benefits and improvement tonapamy’s balance sheet can be achieved through thakéng capital solutions.

While we recognize product revenue as a resudur inventory ownership through these relatiops, operationally this segment is virtue
the same as our eCommerce and Business Processif@inig Segment. See the preceding discussiomforarview of that segment.

ONLINE DISCOUNT RETAILER SEGMENT

Through eCOST.com, we operate a leading neatiéggory online discount retailer of high qualigin close-out and recertified brand-name
merchandise. We currently offer approximately 200,products in several primary merchandise categpimcluding computers, networking,
electronics and entertainment, TV's, plasmas anditows, cameras and camcorders, memory and stdifagethe Home” and sports and
leisure. Additionally, we offer several other caiggs of products and services to consumer and smsihess customers through what we
believe is a unique and convenient buying expeggaffering two shopping formats: every day lowcprand our proprietary Bargain
Countdown® . This combination of shopping formats helps attr@tue-conscious customers to our eCOST.com wehaib are looking for
high quality products at low prices. Additionallye offer a fee-based membership program to devalsfpmer loyalty by providing
subscribers exclusive access to preferential oft#esalso provide rapid response customer sertikging a strategically located distribution
center and third-party fulfillment providers, aslhas customer support from online and on-call saépresentatives. We offer suppliers an
efficient sales channel for merchandise in all ssagf the product life cycle. We carry productsrrieading manufacturers such as Sony, JVC,
Canon, Hewlett-Packard, Denon, Dyson, Sennheisenmia, Panasonic, Toshiba and Microsoft and haeeszcto a broad and deep selection
of merchandise, including new and deeply discountese-out and recertified brand-name merchandise.

Our Strengths

We have developed a differentiated businesgetevhich provides our customers and vendors wittmerous benefits. We provide
consumers and businesses with quick and convemiesss to high quality, new, close-out and rededtibrand-name merchandise at discount
prices similar to a traditional discount retaileéth@ut the stocking limitations and store locat@mstraints. We believe we are unlike many
online retailers because we market multiple merdisgncategories and product types, serve both smsihesses and consumers and offer two
ways to purchase products: every day low priceandroprietary Bargain Countdown

We offer the following key benefits to custashopping on our website:

. Broad and deep product selecticiWe sell high quality products across a broad seledf merchandise categories. Most of
products offered on our website are from well-knptwand-name manufacturers. We currently offer exiprately 200,000 different
products in several categories. Our product ofgriare updated continually to reflect new prodrestds, keeping our merchandise
selection relevant for our customers so they comtiio visit our website

. Compelling pric-to-value propositionAs part of our strategy to appeal to the high fexgry valu-oriented shopper, we offer lo
prices on new products and deeper discounts oasaartment of close-out and recertified merchantlissemploy aggressive
promotional strategies to provide incentives for customers to purchase merchandise on our wedsitduild customer loyalty. We
also offer a fee-based membership program to reaastbmer loyalty by providing exclusive accespreferential offers to
subscribers
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Two shopping formats on our webskée appeal to a broad customer base by offeringstvapping formats designed to attract
frequent visits to our website: every day low pracel our proprietary Bargain Countdo®nFor the shopper who wants new and
recently released products from leading manufarsumee offer discounted merchandise in an everylaayprice format. For the
bargain shopper interested in close-out and rdieertinerchandise, we market products using our &argGountdowr® format, which
features tim- and quantit-limited offers of selected merchandise that areem@eply discounte:

Rapid response order fulfillmerWe ship a majority of customer orders from inveytatr our distribution facility located in Memphis,
Tennessee. Substantially all orders in stock aMémphis facility placed before 4:00 p.m. Easteimd ship the same day and can be
delivered at the customer’s request by 10:30 &aamnext day for most domestic locations. We al#z@tvirtual warehouse
technology to access merchandise that is not ckstbour distribution facility

Responsive customer service and positive shoppimgrience We believe our customer service differentiateshiinging experience
for our customers. Our experienced team of inb@ales representatives and customer service repagisen assist our consumer
customers by telephone and e-mail. We also haagiorship managers who are assigned to many odroall business customers to
service their needs and increase future sales appties. Our website contains helpful featureshsag in-depth product information,
inventory levels and order status. In addition,a@atinually monitor website traffic and order adthvand periodically update our
website to enhance the shopping experience focustomers

Appealing features for small business custonWe offer our small business customers dedicatedioelship managers to provide
personalized service to their unique business ni

We provide manufacturers and other vendors aitonvenient channel to sell both large and squalhtities of new, close-out and
recertified inventory. We offer manufacturers areaidors the following key benefits:

Single point of distributiorManufacturers and other vendors often use sepelatmels to sell new, recertified and c-out products
because most retailers offer products in only aagesof the product life cycle. Through our two gbiog formats, we offer
manufacturers and other vendors the flexibilityse eCOST.com to sell products in a brand sensitasner in any stage of the
product life cycle. For example, our Bargain Cowmtd ® capabilities allow our vendors to liquidate smaltessidual quantities of
merchandise without disappointing customers dubedimited availability of such product

Efficient distribution and sales channOur centralized distribution capability reducesd@ncosts in shipping product to us. Our
ability to rapidly sell inventory is a benefit todse vendors that offer us protection against giosion. Our centralized product
management and feedback to vendors on produdhseligh and inventory position allow vendors tacéhtly monitor product
movement and placement, eliminating the need &ayufent visits by vendor representatives to physetall locations

Customized manufacturer stor&gith our in-house design and merchandising teampreeide manufacturers the opportunity to
showcase their full assortment of products andsswrées by establishing virtual stores on our welibiat are specific to individual
manufacturers. We believe this allows manufactuersaximize sales and branding of their produats.promote these manufacturer
stores to our customer base through our integratatteting strategy, including targeted e-mails higgtiing a specific manufacturer
and its products and directing customers to thatufacturer store on our websi

Speed to market for newly released produdts.respond rapidly to new product releases fromufeturers through our ability to
quickly post and market new products on our welssite satisfy immediate customer demand throughrapid response order
fulfillment capabilities.

Our Customers

We focus on consumers and business custonteroften display similar consumer buying charastes. We believe our consumer
customers are savvy, online shoppers, who are laaddgrice conscious, and interested in
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new technology. Our business customers includelsmdimedium sized businesses that we believeuasrently underserved by other multi-
category online retailers. While our business austorelationship managers focus on sales to smdlheedium sized businesses who are
seeking to purchase products for use in their lessinthey also service certain resellers of tecgygbroducts. We offer these small and
medium sized business customers superior and p@izect customer service and new and current, adosend recertified merchandise at
competitive prices.

Our Website

Our website is comprehensive, easy to usgpemddes an exciting shopping experience that eragms customer loyalty and repeat visits.
We strive to add hundreds of new products to olinerproduct mix weekly. Our website features haglality product images, detailed prod
information and manufacturer specifications, ad aehighlights of bestelling products and suggested accessories. Waaalty incorporat
new technologies to improve the ease of use ohvalnsite.

Currently, the products available on the exday low price portion of our website are organizeéd several primary product categories:
computers, networking, electronics and entertainmiéw's, plasmas and monitors, cameras and camegradeemory and storage, “For the
Home”and sports and leisure. Additionally, we offer savether categories of products and services tiraarious affiliate relationships. V
also offer the same products, if they meet cexdteria, on the proprietary Bargain Countdo#section of our website where we feature more
than 100 limited time and limited quantity prodtdeals” across our broad merchandise categoriesddiition to being able to use keyword
searches to locate specific products on our wehitgdomers can browse or search the productsaél@ibn the every day low price portion of
our website by navigating the subcategories coathin our primary product categories and our festunanufacturer product showcases.
Products that fall within more than one subcategorpur website are often posted on more than atepage, which we believe increases the
visibility of the products and assists the custoindmding desired merchandise.

Every day low priceOur multi-category merchandise assortment is abigilen an every day low price retail format. Produare organized
by subcategory under each major category tab. Eegor category includes informative and shoppenilly “showcases” organized by
manufacturer, new technology, best sellers, sedgifbiguides, and new products. This shopping fatrfieatures discounted new products and
recently released products from leading manufacsure

Bargain Countdow® . Our proprietary Bargain Countdowrshopping format offers more than 100 close-ougntified and highly
allocated “deal” products in limited quantities #fimited time. The Bargain CountdoWrieature is designed as a purchasing marketplace for
consumers that creates purchase urgency by uniqabating the quantity of items remaining forarent offer and the time remaining to
purchase the product. Based on the popularity afffem, an animated graphic icon will appear tatallee customer of the item’s current sales
velocity. After the offer has expired, the prodisctemoved from Bargain CountdoWrand may no longer be available at the previousgpte
discounted price. Our Bargain Countdo®/shopping format encourages repeat visits to ousitedue to the rapidly changing mix of
merchandise deals, the animated graphics, the emigllection of close-out deals and the searclb&ogains. We also have theme-based
Bargain Countdowf® tabs throughout the year, including Holiday CoumtdpWatches and Jewelry Countdown, Game of the €eantdown
Our Clearance Countdown tab is primarily useddaitiate overstocked and excess inventory acrogsadlict categories. Our Bargain
Countdown Platinum CluB format is a version of Bargain Countdo®and offers exclusive pricing on select merchanttisaur fee-based
members.

Other key features of our website include:aambed search, online order status retrieval, ogaynent, shipping alternatives, online
registration for promotions and catalogs and ondixiended service agreement recommendations.

As a commitment to our small and medium sizesiness customers, we offer them access to ourdasscustomer relationship
management team, up to net 30-day credit termgtfalified customers, software licensing, compuystem configurations and extended
payment term alternatives.
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Our Merchandise

We strive to offer our customers an expanselection of varied types of merchandise and ctigreffer approximately 200,000 products
several primary merchandise categories. While ooalyct offerings change on a regular basis dueddyzt availability and customer dema
we continually offer a wide variety of merchandise.

Computers and Networkin@ur computers and networking product categoriesatos several subcategories including systemsyaodét
and networking equipment. In these subcategoris®mers can find products such as desktop, notelodihandheld computers; servers;
personal digital assistants; various hardwareuitiog CD and DVD drives and burners, flat screemitoos, color laser printers, scanners; and
business, education and entertainment software.

Electronics and Entertainmer@ur electronics and entertainment product categonyains subcategories for DVD movies and gaming,
audio systems, video systems and accessories.Withse subcategories, customers can find productsas DVD players; DVD movies and
gaming; personal audio systems; speakers; digdalowecorders that pause, rewind and replay élevision; digital music players and a
variety of accessories such as cables, remoteatsrind headphones.

TV’s Plasmas and MonitorQur TV’s, plasmas and monitors product categorytaas subcategories for monitors, projectors and
accessories.

Cameras and Camcorder®ur cameras and camcorders product category cenpadaiucts including digital still cameras; videoreras
and camcorders in MiniDV format; drawing tablets digital photo editing; digital photo and imageted) software and photo printers.

Memory and Storag®ur memory and storage product category contaimguats including media formats such as Blu Ray,a&@D DVD
R/W as well as flash and system memory.

For the HomeOur “For the Home” product category offers custasritbe ability to shop in subcategories dedicatdtbtoe and
housewares, personal care, home improvement, aytaatmmotive and apparel including watches anglagses. Within this portion of our
website consumers can find products such as toadithousehold appliances including blenders, éoastnd vacuum cleaners; professional
quality cookware and gourmet kitchen appliance$ sisccoffee grinders.

Sports and Leisure®ur Sports and Leisure product category offers petgithat range from various sports accessoriesafseball, hockey,
football and numerous other activities to toys, italsnstruments and wedding accessories.

We continually evaluate expanding into addiibocategories in order to attract new custometisodfer a broader variety of merchandise to
our existing customers. Categories currently uedesideration include books, music and luggage al§@ plan to increase our depth in our
current categories by adding new subcategoriesdsrand products and continuing to develop ancas® the number of affiliate categories.

Sales and Marketing

We currently focus our advertising effortsedficient and effective marketing campaigns aimedcguiring new customers, encouraging
repeat purchases and establishing the eCOST.camd.loaur online prospecting activities may includsteper-click arrangements that include
displaying our products within various price conipan sites and search engines such as Shopziltapsdift Live Search Cashback and
Google, strategic online banner advertising, affietmail programs and participation in variousioalaffiliate marketing programs. From time
to time we test other prospecting vehicles inclgdiadio and magazine advertising. We send our ctiogstomers targeted e-mails focused on
new product and category launches, special promstiand product-related add-on and accessory pffensell as cooperative manufacturer
branding campaigns. We also mail an eCOST.com ledhndtalog to selected customers.
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Vendors

We purchase products for resale both dirdobipn manufacturers and indirectly through distrirstand other sources, all of whom we
consider our vendors. We provide vendors with aseaient channel to sell both large and small qtiastof new, closeout and recertified
inventory. We offer significant advantages for vers] including a single point of distribution, eféint channel relationships, customized
manufacturer stores and speedy release of theiestenerchandise. Our vendors provide us with breamde new and current products, close-
out models and manufacturer recertified products.algo have arrangements with third-party provitlersugh which we receive commissions
for products in certain categories, such as cellpif®nes and service, as well as other marketidgpasmotional services generated through
eCOST.com website.

We offer products on our website from appraadiety 700 third-party vendors. In general, we agoeeffer products on our website and the
manufacturers agree to provide us with informatibout their products and honor our customer sepatieies. We have established direct
vendor relationships with many key suppliers andnid to continue to seek direct relationships wéhdors and suppliers.

Competition

The market for our products is intensely cotitipe, rapidly evolving and has relatively low bbigrs to entry. New competitors can launch
new websites at relatively low cost. We believe ttanpetition in our market is based predominaatly

. price;

. product selection, quality and availabili

. shopping convenienc

. customer service; ar

. brand recognition

We currently or potentially compete with aiesr of companies that can be divided into sevierahd categories:

. other mult-category online retailers and liquidatic-tailers;

. online discount retailers of computer and consuahestronics merchandise such as Buy.com, NewEgd eyatDirect;
. consumer electronics and office supply superstsuel as Best Buy, Office Depot, OfficeMax and Stapanc

. manufacturers such as Apple, Dell, Gateway, He-Packard and IBM, who sell directly to custom:

Our largest manufacturers have sold, and roatio intensify their efforts to sell, their prads directly to customers. To the extent
additional manufacturers adopt this selling formrathis trend becomes more prevalent, it could esihg affect our sales growth and
profitability.

Intellectual Property

We rely on a combination of laws and contrakttastrictions with our employees, customers, Bapp affiliates and others to establish and
protect our proprietary rights. Despite these pugoas, it is possible that third parties may copytherwise obtain and use our intellectual
property, including our trademarks, service markd/ar domain names, without authorization. Althowghregularly assert our intellectual
property rights when we learn that they are beffidriged, these claims can be time-consuming angmeguire litigation and/or administrative
proceedings to be successful. We have five tradesraard/or service marks that we consider to be nahte the successful operation of our
business: eCOSYT, eCOST.con®, eCOST.com Your Online Discount Superstoré?’™Bargain Countdowf and Bargain Countdown
Platinum Clul®. We currently use these marks in connection velbphone, mail order, catalog, and online retailises. We have
registrations in the United States for eCO%BTand eCOST.corfi for telephone, mail order, catalog, and onlineitetaer services, and a
registration for Bargain Countdovffor online retail order services. We also havegsteation in the United
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States for Bargain Countdown Platinum CRifor business services, namely, promoting the gamdsservices of others by means of a
customer loyalty program featuring information,éntives, discounts and rewards. We have a pendiitgd)States Service Mark Application
for eCOSTSM- We have registrations in Canada and in the Unitiegiom for eCOS™P, eCOST.con®, and Bargain Countdowh. We own
an additional registration in the United Kingdonn & OST.com Your Online Discount SuperstdételAdditionally, we own a pending
application in Canada for eCOST.com Your OnlinecDimt Superstore!™ and an additional registratmrBargain Countdown Platinum ClI
®_ In the event that our applications are not grntee may not be able to obtain protection fortoademarks and/or service marks with the
Trademark Offices in the United States and in Can¥i¢e would still potentially have common law riglfitt and to our trademarks and/or
service marks based on use of the marks in thepectve territories.

Although we have received a patent from the. P.atent and Trademark Office for our proprieBaygain Countdow® technology, we
cannot provide any assurance that effective patesitrademark protection will be available in aitances, including in other countries in
which our products and services may be available.

From time to time, we may be subject to lggakeedings and claims in the ordinary course oboginess, including claims of alleged
infringement of the patents, trademarks and otftetlectual property rights of third parties by @ampany. Third parties have asserted, and
may in the future assert, that our business otetienologies we use infringe their intellectualgenay rights. We may be subject to intellectual
property legal proceedings and claims in the omgicaurse of our business. We cannot predict whethiel parties will assert additional
claims of infringement against us in the futurewtiether any future claims will prevent us fromesffg popular products or operating our
business as planned.

ALL BUSINESS SEGMENTS
Technology

We maintain advanced management informatistesys and have automated key business functiong asline, reatime or batch systerr
These systems enable us to provide informationermireg sales, inventory status, customer paymerdother operations that are essential for
us and our clients to efficiently manage electrammmerce and supply chain business programs. y3terss are designed to scale rapidly to
handle the transaction processing demands of @mntsland our growth.

We employ technology from a selected groupastners, some of whom are also our clients. Famgte, we deploy IBM e-servers and
network printers in appropriate models to run wiéb feinctions as well as order management andiloligton functions. We utilize Avaya
Communication for telephone switch and call cemanagement functions and to interact with customwiersoice, e-mail or chat. Avaya
Communication technology also allows us to sharke pages between customers and our service repagisest We have the ability to trans
and receive voice, data and video simultaneously single network connection to a customer to neffectively serve that customer for our
client. Clients’interest in using this technology stems from itiitglto allow shoppers to consult with known exfgein a way that the custon
chooses prior to purchasing. Our sophisticated coenpelephony integration has been accomplished by ainthsystems software from IB
and Avaya Communication together with our own aggtion development. We use AT&T for our privateezptise network and long distance
carrier. We use Oracle’s J.D. Edwards as the softweovider for the primary ERP applications thatuge in our operational areas and
financial areas. We use Dematic/Rapistan MateHalsdling Automation for our automated order setettautomated conveyor and “pick-to-
light” (inventory retrieval) systems, and Symbolkheaologies/Telxon for our warehouse radio frequeaqmylications. Our Warehouse
Management System (“WMS”) and Distribution Requiesits Planning (“DRP”) system have been developdwirse to meet the varied
unigue requirements of our vertical markets. Both\WMS and DRP are tightly integrated to both tleethl American and European
deployments of our J.D. Edwards’ system.

Many internal infrastructures are not suffitito support the explosive growth in e-businessiagketplaces, supply chain compression,
distribution channel realignment and the correspandemand for real-time information necessarystoategic decision-making and product
fulfillment. To address this need, we have cre#itedEntente Suite(SM), which is a comprehensiveesafitechnology services, with support
software and hardware infrastructure, that enatdegpanies with little or no e-commerce infrastroetto speed their time to market and
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minimize resource investment and risk, and allolivsampanies involved to improve the efficiencytbéir supply chain.

The Entente Suite(SM) provides the open piatfeervice infrastructure that allows us to creat@plete e-commerce solutions. Using the
various services of the Entente Suite(SM), we &@mstour clients in easily integrating their wétbsor ERP systems to our systems for real-
time web service enabled transaction processingowttregard for their hardware platform or opegsgstem. This high-level of systems
integration allows our clients to automatically pess orders, customer data and other e-commemnreniation. We also can track information
sent to us by the client as it moves through ostesys in the same manner a carrier would traclckaoge throughout the delivery process. Our
systems enable us to track, at a detailed levieliriration received, transmission timing, any ermmrspecial processing required and
information sent back to the client. The transaei@and management information contained withinsystems is made available to the client
quickly and easily through the Entente Suite(SM).

The Entente Suite(SM) serves as a transparemntace to our back-office productivity appliaais including our customized J.D. Edwards
order management and fulfillment application. #cals designed to integrate with marketplace teldyies offered by major marketplace
software companies. We utilize Gentran Integra8oite™ (“GIS”) as our technology platform for Ergese Application Integration with our
clients and client’s trading partners. With GIS, lave greatly increased our ability to quickly desand deploy customized B2B and B2C e-
commerce solutions for our clients by utilizingadust business process modeling tool and a higlalable operating infrastructure. This
platform facilitates the efficient and secure exa®of electronic business transactions/documardsaide variety of formats (i.e. XML, X.12
EDI, delimited text, IDOCS, RosettaNet) and comnoation protocols (i.e. FTP/SFTP, AS2/HTTP/HTTPS1AMTP, MQ Series and Web
Services).

We have invested in advanced telecommunicsitioomputer telephony, electronic mail and messggintomated fax technology, IVR
technology, barcode scanning, wireless technolfiggr optic network communications and automateeimory management systems. We
have also developed and utilize telecommunicatieasnology that provides for automatic customelrrealognition and customer profile rec
for inbound customer service representatives.

The primary responsibility of our systems depenent team of IT professionals is directed atlengenting custom solutions for new clients
and maintaining existing client relationships. @awelopment team can also produce proprietary sysiefrastructure to expand our
capabilities in circumstances where we cannot mgelstandard solutions from commercial providers.al§o utilize temporary resources
when needed for additional capacity.

Our information technology operations andasfructure are built on the premise of reliabititd scalability. We maintain diesel generators
and un-interruptible power supply equipment to jewconstant availability to computer rooms, calhters and warehouses. Multiple Internet
service providers and redundant web servers prduida high degree of availability to web sitesttimerface with our systems. Capacity
planning and upgrading is performed regularly tovafor quick implementation of new clients and mvtime-consuming infrastructure
upgrades that could slow growth rates. In the egéatdisastrous situation, we also have a Dis&steovery Plan that provides geographically
separated and comparably equipped data centerarthable to recover stored data in a reasonableféective manner.

Strategy

We continue to maintain our simple but effeetstrategy statement to drive our actions, QGIs atronym stands for Quality, Growth and
Profit. We believe that if we can achieve outstaggierformance on these three basic elementswitigyrovide for a stable foundation for o
future. As the evolution of our business model turgs, we will remain focused on these three furetaais:

Quality : To exceed our client’s service level requirememts enhance the value of their “brandiile providing their customers a positit
memorable and efficient experience.

18




Table of Contents

Growth: To increase our revenue and gross profit fronsutsent levels. To aggressively market simplifigdduct messages to drive new
clients and revenue and profit growth. To becorfegger company and create career and additionaloyment opportunitiesEmbrace
strategic partnering to accentuate strengths andnizie weaknesses.

Profit: To generate positive cash flow and continue teetior consistent profitable results. To incredsevalue of our company for all of
its stakeholders while rewarding our team membéifs ehallenging, fun and memorable life experiences

In alignment with these strategies, we congglet merger with eCOST on February 1, 2006. Thgengrovided substantial strategic
benefits by combining eCOST's supplier relationshipustomer base and e-commerce platform with dwareced technology and operational
infrastructure thereby providing our combined compwith the enhanced ability to expand its marketrs in the fast growing web commerce
market.

The successful balance of the execution (feiendamental strategies is targeted to restifieiiormation of a solid strategic and financial
foundation and provide us a sustainable and phdéitausiness model for the future.

See “Risk Factors” for a complete discussibrisk factors related to our ability to achiever @bjectives and fulfill our business strategies.

Employees

As of December 31, 2008, we had approximatelp0 employees, of which approximately 900 weoated in the United States. We have
never suffered an interruption of business as atrefa labor dispute. We consider our relatiopshith our employees to be good. In the U.S.,
Canada and Philippines, we are not a party to aligative bargaining agreements and while our Eeaopsubsidiaries are not a party to a
collective-bargaining agreement, they are requioecbmply with the rules mentioned in collectivedrining agreements agreed upon by
representatives of their industry (logistics) amébns.

Our success in recruiting, hiring and trainiagge numbers of skilled employees and obtaingmgd numbers of hourly employees during
peak periods for distribution and call center ofiere is critical to our ability to provide high glity distribution and support services. Call
center representatives and distribution persoreuaive feedback on their performance on a regasistand, as appropriate, are recognized for
superior performance or given additional traini@gnerally, our clients provide specific productrtiiag for our customer service
representatives and, in certain instances, orckéet personnel to provide specific technical sappTro maintain good employee relations and
to minimize employee turnover, we offer competitpagyy, hire primarily full-time employees who ar@éile to receive a full range of
employee benefits, and provide employees with clésible career paths.

Internet Access to Reports

We maintain an Internet website, www.pfswetnc@ur annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly report Form 10-Q, and current reports
on Form 8-K (and amendments, if any, to those tsgdided or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a)®fd) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934) are made available, free of charge, throhghnvestor relations section of this website assas reasonably practicable after we
electronically file such material, or furnish itttee Securities and Exchange Commission. The irdtion on this website is not incorporated in
this report. We also maintain an Internet websiteolur online discount retailer, www.ecost.com.

Government Regulation

We are subject to federal, state, local amelim consumer protection laws, including laws gecting the privacy of our customers’
personally identifiable information and other nambsfic information and regulations prohibiting unfand deceptive trade practices.
Furthermore, the growth and demand for online commbas and may continue to result in more stringensumer protection laws that
impose additional compliance burdens and greatealpes on online companies. Moreover, there reiadt toward regulations requiring
companies to provide consumers with greater inféionaegarding, and greater control over, how tpeirsonal data is used, and
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requiring notification where unauthorized accessuch data occurs. For example, many states clyrrequire us to notify each of our
customers who is affected by any data securitydbr@awhich an unauthorized person, such as a ctenpacker, obtains such customer’s
name and one or more of the customer’s social ggewrmber, driver’s license number, credit or dedaird number or other similar personal
information. In addition, several jurisdictionscinding foreign countries, have adopted privacyted laws that restrict or prohibit unsolicited
email promotions, commonly known as “spam,” and thipose significant monetary and other penalties/folations. One such law, the
“CAN-SPAM” Act of 2003, became effective in the Wed States on January 1, 2004 and imposes conipledensome and often ambiguous
requirements in connection with our sending comimégsenail to our customers and potential customdeover, in an effort to comply with
these laws, Internet service providers may increggiblock legitimate marketing emails. These consuprotection laws may become more
stringent in the future and could result in subsigompliance costs and could interfere with ¢baduct of our business.

We collect sales or other similar taxes fdpstents of goods in certain states. One or moral |atate or foreign jurisdictions may seek to
impose sales tax collection obligations on us ahéroout-of-state companies that engage in onlkimengerce. If sales tax obligations are
successfully imposed upon us by a state or othisdjation, we could be exposed to substantialitbilities for past sales and fines and
penalties for failure to collect sales taxes anccaueld suffer decreased sales in that state adiation as the effective cost of purchasing gt
from us increases for those residing in that stajerisdiction. In addition, new legislation orgation, the application of laws and regulations
from jurisdictions whose laws do not currently apg our business or the application of existingdand regulations to the Internet and
commercial online services could result in sigrifitadditional taxes or regulatory restrictionson business. These taxes could have an
adverse effect on our cash flows and results ofatjpas. Furthermore, there is a possibility thatmay be subject to significant fines or other
payments for any past failures to comply with thesglirements.

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business, financial condition and operatinguies could be adversely affected by any or alheffollowing factors, in which event the
trading price of our common stock could declined gou could lose part or all of your investment.

Risks Related to All Our Business Segments

Certain of our historical financial information maynot be representative of our future results.

Effective February 1, 2006, we began to cadaté eCOST.com’s financial position and resultswf operations into our consolidated
financial statements. As a result of our acquisititb eCOST, our historical results of operationfolethe eCOST acquisition may not be
indicative of our future operating or financial ftemance.

Our business and future growth depend on our contéd access to bank and commercial financing. Theremt economic crisis may
negatively impact our business, results of operaspfinancial condition or liquidity.

Recently, the credit markets and the finarséaices industry have been experiencing a pefiethprecedented turmoil and upheaval
characterized by the bankruptcy, failure, collapssale of various financial institutions and ampretedented level of intervention from the
United States and foreign governments. The cugeomomic crisis could also adversely impact outamsrs’ operations or ability to maintain
liquidity which may negatively impact our businesxl results of operations.

Our business and future growth currently dejpgmour ability to access bank and commerciakliofcredit. We currently depend on an
aggregate of approximately $109 million in linecoédit facilities provided by various banks and ceencial lenders. These lines of credit
currently mature in at various dates through Ma¥y128@nd are secured by substantially all our as@etsability to renew our line of credit
facilities depends upon various factors, includimg availability of bank loans and commercial cr@uigeneral, as well as our financial
condition and prospects. Therefore, we cannot guieesthat these credit facilities will continuebi® available beyond their current maturities
on reasonable terms or at all. Our inability toeneror replace our credit facilities or find altetima financing would materially adversely affect
our business, financial condition, operating resatd cash flow.

20




Table of Contents

Our clients and customers may be unable to pay aisdur products and services

Our clients and customers include some congsahiat may from time to time encounter financifflallties, especially in light of the
current economic environment and the turmoil indredit markets. If a client’s or customer’s finaidifficulties become severe, they may be
unwilling or unable to pay our invoices in the oraiy course of business, which could adverselycaffellections of both our accounts
receivable and unbilled services. The bankruptcy cffent or customer with a substantial accouceirable could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results otogtions. In addition, if a client or customer deek bankruptcy after paying us certain
invoices, a court may determine that we are ngbgnyg entitled to that payment and may require yepent of some or all of the amount we
received, which could adversely affect our finahc@ndition and results of operations.

We anticipate incurring significant expenses in tHereseeable future, which may reduce our abilitydachieve or maintain profitability.

To reach our business growth objectives, weg imerease our operating and marketing expensesethas capital expenditures. To offset
these expenses, we will need to generate additponéitable business. If our revenue grows slowanteither we anticipate or our clients’
projections indicate, or if our operating and mérigeexpenses exceed our expectations, we mayemetrgte sufficient revenue to be profite
or be able to sustain or increase profitabilityaoguarterly or an annual basis in the future. Adddlly, if our revenue grows slower than either
we anticipate or our clients’ projections indicates may incur unnecessary or redundant costs andpauating results could be adversely
affected.

Changes to financial accounting standards may affeair reported results of operations.

We prepare our financial statements to confartdnited States generally accepted accountingiplies, or GAAP. GAAP is subject to
interpretation by the American Institute of CegdiPublic Accountants, the SEC and various bodiesdd to interpret and create appropriate
accounting policies. A change in those policiesftave a significant effect on our reported resaittd may even affect our reporting of
transactions that were completed before a changenisunced. Accounting rules affecting many aspgfobeir business, including rules relat
to accounting for asset impairments, revenue ratiognarrangements involving multiple deliverahlemployee stock purchase plans and
stock option grants, have recently been revisat@currently under review. Changes to those miesirrent interpretation of those rules may
have a material adverse effect on our reportedhéigd results or on the way we conduct our business

We operate with significant levels of indebtednessl are required to comply with certain financiaha non-financial covenants; we are
required to maintain a minimum level of subordinatdoans to our subsidiary Supplies Distributors; dmve have guaranteed certain
indebtedness and obligations of our subsidiariesp$lies Distributors and eCOST.

As of December 31, 2008, our total creditlfaes outstanding, including debt, capital leabigations and our vendor accounts payable
related to financing of IPS product inventory, veaproximately $67.5 million. Certain of the crefitilities have maturity dates in calendar
year 2010 or after, but are classified as curfiabilities in our consolidated financial statemem& cannot provide assurance that our ci
facilities will be renewed by the lending partiéslditionally, these credit facilities include bdihancial and non-financial covenants, many of
which also include cross default provisions apfiedo other agreements. These covenants alsictesir ability to transfer funds among our
various subsidiaries, which may adversely affeetahility of our subsidiaries to operate their basises or comply with their respective loan
covenants. We cannot provide assurance that wéwvidlble to maintain compliance with these covenakity non-renewal or any default
under any of our credit facilities would have a en&l adverse impact upon our business and finkogoialition. In addition we have provided
$5.5 million of subordinated indebtedness to SgspDistributors as of December 31, 2008. The mawirtavel of this subordinated
indebtedness to Supplies Distributors that mayrbeiged without approval from our lenders is $6.Hion. The restrictions on increasing this
amount without lender approval may limit our alilio comply with certain loan covenants or furtgesw and develop Supplies Distributors’
business. We have
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guaranteed most of the indebtedness of SuppligsiiRitors. Furthermore, we are obligated to repay @ver-advance made to Supplies
Distributors by its lenders to the extent Suppléstributors is unable to do so. We have also guasd eCOST’s $7.5 million credit line, as
well as certain of its vendor trade payables. Wheeriily expect that it may be necessary to prowididitional guarantees of certain eCOST
vendor trade payables in the future.

We are dependent on our key personnel, and we rteddre and retain skilled personnel to sustain obusiness.

Our performance is highly dependent on theisaed services of our executive officers and ottesr personnel, the loss of any of whom
could materially adversely affect our businessaddition, we need to attract and retain other lyigghilled, technical and managerial personnel
for whom there is intense competition. We cannetissyou we will be able to attract and retaingbesonnel necessary for the continuing
growth of our business. Our inability to attractiaetain qualified technical and managerial persboould materially adversely affect our
ability to maintain and grow our business signifitia

We are subject to risks associated with our intetinaal operations.

We currently operate a 150,000 square fodtiligion center in Liege, Belgium and a 23,000aguUfoot distribution center in Toronto,
Canada, both of which currently have excess capabie also operate a 10,000 square foot facilitthePhilippines to provide primarily call
center and customer service functions. We canmafrag/ou that we will be successful in expandinthése or any additional international
markets. In addition to the uncertainty regarding ability to generate revenue from foreign operaiand expand our international presence,
there are risks inherent in doing business intenally, including:

. changing regulatory requiremen

. legal uncertainty regarding foreign laws, tariffelaother trade barrier
. political instability;

. potentially adverse tax consequenc

. foreign currency fluctuations; at

. cultural differences

Any one or more of these factors could mallgredversely affect our business in a number ofsyauch as increased costs, operational
difficulties and reductions in revenue.

We are uncertain about our need for and the availlity of additional funds.

Our future capital needs are difficult to gotdWe may require additional capital to take attege of unanticipated opportunities, including
strategic alliances and acquisitions and to furpitabexpenditures, or to respond to changing kessirconditions and unanticipated compet
pressures. We may also require additional fundimémce operating losses, including continuing afieg losses currently anticipated to be
incurred by eCOST. Should these circumstances, aniseexisting cash balance and credit facilities/rbe insufficient and we may need to
raise additional funds either by borrowing moneyssuing additional equity. We cannot assure yeai skich resources will be adequate or
available for all of our future financing needs.r@ability to finance our growth, either internathr externally, may limit our growth potential
and our ability to execute our business stratdgyelare successful in completing an additionalitydfinancing, this could result in further
dilution to our shareholders or reduce the markéter of our common stock.

We may engage in future strategic alliances or aggjtions that could dilute our existing shareholdgrcause us to incur significant
expenses or harm our business.

We may review strategic alliance or acquisitipportunities that would complement our currardibess or enhance our technological
capabilities. Integrating any newly acquired busges, technologies or services may be expensivéraaeconsuming. To finance any
acquisitions, it may be necessary for us to raisiti@nal funds through borrowing money or compigtpublic or private financings.
Additional funds may not be available on terms #ratfavorable to us and, in the case of equignfaings, may result in dilution to our
shareholders. We may not be able to operate anyiraddgpousinesses profitably or otherwise implenoemtgrowth strategy
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successfully. If we are unable to integrate anylpeequired entities or technologies effectivelyr operating results could suffer. Future
acquisitions could also result in incremental exggsnand the incurrence of debt and contingentitiabj any of which could harm our
operating results.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal controls, we may not be able to accurately retpmur financial results or prevent fraud
As a result, current and potential shareholders dduose confidence in our financial reporting, whiccould harm our business, and tt
trading price of our common stock.

As of December 31, 2008 and based on the mureguirements, and our public float, we werenequired to comply with the requirements
of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act to obsairport by our independent auditors opining onagament’s assessments of the
effectiveness of our internal controls over finahceporting. Under current law, and our currertlmufloat, we will be subject to this
independent auditor requirement for the year enBiagember 31, 2009. If we fail to correct any issunethe design or operating effectiveness
of internal controls over financial reporting oil @ prevent fraud, current and potential shardeod could lose confidence in our financial
reporting, which could harm our business and thditig price of our common stock.

Delivery of our and our client’ products could be delayed or disrupted by factbesyond our control, and we could lose customersian
clients as a result.

We rely upon third party carriers for timelglivery of our and our clients’ product shipmemts.a result, we are subject to carrier
disruptions and increased costs due to factorsatieabeyond our control, including employee strilkleslement weather and increased fuel
costs. Any failure to deliver products to our annl dients’ customers in a timely and accurate neamnay damage our reputation and brand
and could cause us to lose customers and cliergaafnot be sure that our relationships with thady carriers will continue on terms
favorable to us, if at all. If our relationship Wwiany of these third party carriers is terminatedrgaired or if any of these third parties is ule:
to deliver products, we would be required to userahtive carriers for the shipment of our anddignts’ products to customers. We may be
unable to engage alternative carriers on a timagsoor on favorable terms, if at all. Potentialexde consequences include:

. reduced visibility of order status and packagekiray;
. delays in order processing and product deliv
. increased cost of delivery, resulting in reducedgimes; anc

. reduced shipment quality, which may result in daatbgroducts and customer dissatisfact

Our profitability could be adversely affected iféhoperation of our distribution or call center fadies were interrupted or shut down as the
result of a natural disaster.

We operate a majority of our distribution fdigs in or around the Memphis, Tennessee areaandall center operations are centered in
Plano, Texas. Any natural disaster or other seriisrsiption to these facilities due to fire, tornaflood or any other cause would substantially
disrupt our operations and would impair our abitdtyadequately service our customers. In additiancould incur significantly higher costs
during the time it takes for us to reopen or replasy one or more of these facilities, which maynay not be reimbursed by insurance. As a
result, disruption at one or more of these fae#ittould adversely affect our profitability.

We may be a party to litigation involving our e-comerce intellectual property rights. If third parteeclaim we are infringing their
intellectual property rights, we could incur signéant litigation costs, be required to pay damagesgchange our business or incur licensing
expenses.

In recent years, there has been significéigation in the United States involving patent aler intellectual property rights. We may be a
party to intellectual property litigation in thetfwe to protect our trade secrets or know-how. &thBtates patent applications are confidential
until a patent is issued and most technologiesiaveloped in secret. Accordingly, we are not, aanthot be, aware of all patents or other
intellectual property rights of which our servigeay pose a risk of infringement. Others assertigigts against us could force us to defend
ourselves or our customers against alleged infritege of intellectual property rights. We could insubstantial
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costs to prosecute or defend any such litigation.

Third parties have asserted, and may in theduassert, that our business or the technolaggesse infringe on their intellectual property
rights. As a result, we may be subject to intellatproperty legal proceedings and claims in tlténary course of business. We cannot predict
whether third parties will assert claims of infrergent in the future or whether any future claimié prevent us from offering popular products
or services. If we are found to infringe, we mayréguired to pay monetary damages, which couldigdetreble damages and attorneys’ fees
for any infringement that is found to be willfuhéeither be enjoined or required to pay ongoinglitees with respect to any technologies
found to infringe. Further, as a result of infringent claims either against us or against thoselighnse technology to us, we may be required,
or deem it advisable, to develop non-infringinghtealogy, which could be costly and time consumungenter into costly royalty or licensing
agreements. Such royalty or licensing agreemdmsquired, may be unavailable on terms that aceptable, or at all. If a third party
successfully asserts an infringement claim agaisstnd we are enjoined or required to pay monelanyages or royalties or we are unable to
develop suitable non-infringing alternatives oelise the infringed or similar technology on reabtmterms on a timely basis, our business,
results of operations and financial condition cduédmaterially harmed.

A breach of our -commerce security measures could reduce demandtfoservices. Credit card fraud and other fraududd adversely
affect our business.

A requirement of the continued growth of e-coence is the secure transmission of confidentfarmation over public networks. A party
who is able to circumvent our security measureddconisappropriate proprietary information or intgst our operations. Any compromise or
elimination of our security could reduce demanddor services.

We may be required to expend significant @@ihd other resources to protect against seduréttches or to address any problem they may
cause. Because our activities involve the storagett@nsmission of proprietary information, suclceedit card numbers, security breaches
could damage our reputation, cause us to losetslienpact our ability to attract new clients ane @ould be exposed to litigation and possible
liability. Our security measures may not preverusity breaches, and failure to prevent securigabhes may disrupt our operations. In cel
circumstances, we do not carry insurance agaiegtigk of credit card fraud and other fraud, softikire to adequately control fraudulent
transactions on either our behalf or our clienggdlf could increase our expenses.

We may be liable for misappropriation of our custens’ and our clients’ customers’ personal informaii.

Data security laws are becoming more stringrettie United States and abroad. Third partie®agaging in increased cyber attacks against
companies doing business on the Internet and itails are increasingly subjected to identity ardlitrcard theft on the Internet. If third
parties or unauthorized employees are able to peeaiur network security or otherwise misapprdpraur or our clients’ customers’ personal
information or credit card information, or if wevgithird parties or our employees improper acaessistomers’ personal information or credit
card information, we could be subject to liabilihis liability could include claims for unauthoeid purchases with credit card information,
impersonation or other similar fraud claims. Thablility could also include claims for other misas# personal information, including
unauthorized marketing purposes. Liability for npigeopriation of this information could decrease profitability. In such circumstances, we
also could be liable for failing to provide timeiptice of a data security breach affecting certges of personal information. In addition, the
Federal Trade Commission and state agencies haughirnumerous enforcement actions against Inteemapanies for alleged deficiencies
those companies’ privacy and data security pragtiaed they may continue to bring such actionscdigd incur additional expenses if new
regulations regarding the collection, use or steraigpersonal information are introduced or if gowveent agencies investigate our privacy or
security practices.

We rely on encryption and authentication tetbgy licensed from third parties to provide thewgéty and authentication necessary to effect
secure transmission of sensitive customer infolwnaguch as customer credit card numbers. Advancesmputer capabilities, new discovel
in the field of cryptography or other events or elepments may result in a compromise or breacheatgorithms that we use to protect
customer transaction data. If any such compronfiseaurity were to occur, it could subject us #&bility, damage our reputation and
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diminish the value of our brand-name. A party whalble to circumvent the security measures cousdppiropriate proprietary information or
cause interruptions in operations. We may be reduio expend significant capital and other resaitegrotect against such security breaches
or to alleviate problems caused by such breachess€rurity measures are designed to prevent sgtueiaches, but our failure to prevent
such security breaches could subject us to lighidiamage our reputation and diminish the valueunforand-name.

We also may provide non-secured channelsustoeners to communicate. Despite the increasedigedsks, customers may use such
channels to send personal information and othesithem data. In addition, “phishing” incidents are the rise. Phishing involves an online
company'’s customers being tricked into providingittitredit card numbers or account informationdmsone pretending to be the online
company’s representative. Such incidents have tiycgiven rise to litigation against online compasifor failing to take sufficient steps to
police against such activities by third partieq] amay discourage customers from using online sesvic

We are subject to a dispute with a municipal autitgr which, if not resolved in our favor, may maiatly adversely affect our results of
operations.

We receive municipal tax abatements in celltaiations. During 2004 we received notice fromuniuipal authority that we did not satisfy
certain criteria necessary to maintain the abatésnémDecember 2006 we received notice that theiopal authority planned to make an
adjustment to our tax abatement. We have disphtddjustment, but if the dispute is not resohaaafably, additional taxes of approximately
$1.7 million could be assessed against us.

Risks Related to Our PFS and Supplies Distributor©perating Segments

Our service fee revenue and gross margin is depemdgon our clients’business and transaction volumes and our costs; mafiour client
service agreements are terminable by the clientvdl, we may incur financial penalties if we faild meet contractual service levels unc
certain client service agreements.

Our service fee revenue is primarily trangactased and fluctuates with the volume of transastor level of sales of the products by our
clients for whom we provide transaction managersentices. If we are unable to retain existing ¢8eor attract new clients or if we dedicate
significant resources to clients whose business doegenerate sufficient revenue or whose prodi@tsot generate substantial customer <
our business may be materially adversely affedttmieover, our ability to estimate service fee rawefor future periods is substantially
dependent upon our clients’ and our own projectitims accuracy of which has been, and will contittuee, unpredictable. Therefore, our
planning for client activity and targeted goals $ervice fee revenue and gross margin may be ratyeadversely affected by incomplete,
delayed or inaccurate projections. In addition, ynahour service agreements with our clients armmieable by the client at will. Therefore, we
cannot assure you that any of our clients will carg to use our services for any period of timee Tdss of a significant amount of service fee
revenue due to client terminations could have aratadverse effect on our ability to cover oustsaand thus on our profitability. Certain of
our client service agreements contain minimum serigvel requirements and impose financial persitiere fail to meet such requirements.
The imposition of a substantial amount of such fiEmsacould have a material adverse effect on asirtess and operations.

Our business is subject to the risk of customer aupplier concentration.

For the year ended December 31, 2008 and 2007S. government agency, Xerox Corporation, acdnsumer products company
represented approximately 37%, 10% and 6%, resdgtiand approximately 27%, 11% and 12%, respelgti\of our total service fee
revenue, excluding pass-through revenue. The pss aon-payment of invoices by, any or all of Btients would have a material adverse
effect upon our business. In particular, the agexdmander which we provide services to such cliantésterminable at will upon notice by such
clients. Most of our activity under our contractiwihe U.S. government agency concludes in thedirarter of 2009 and the non-renewal of
that contract, as well as the loss of, or non-paytro&invoices by, any or all of such other clieats likely to have a material adverse effect
upon our business.

A substantial portion of our Supplies Disttilms product revenue is generated by sales of ptguurchased under master distributor
agreements with InfoPrint Solutions Company (“IRShese agreements are terminable at
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will and no assurance can be given that IPS wiltionie the master distributor agreements with Sepistributors. Supplies Distributors
does not have its own sales force and relies up8rsisales force and product demand generatiovitagifor its sale of IPS product.
Discontinuance of such activities would have a matadverse effect on Supplies Distributors’ besis and our overall financial condition.

Sales by Supplies Distributors to two custavearcounted for approximately 30% of Supplies iators’ total product revenue for the ye
ended December 31, 2008. Sales to the same twoncers accounted for approximately 28% of Suppliesributors’ product revenue for the
year ended December 31, 2007. The loss of any om®re of such customers, or -payment of any material amount by these or angroth
customer, would have a material adverse effect Sgpplies Distributors’ business.

Our operating results are materially impacted byrazlient mix and the seasonality of their business.

Our business is materially impacted by owrdlimix and the seasonality of their business. 8apen our current client mix and their
current projected business volumes, we anticipateservice fee revenue business activity will biésalibwest in the first quarter of our fiscal
year and that our master distributor product reedousiness activity will be at its highest in tberth quarter of our fiscal year. We are une
to predict how the seasonality of future clientssimess may affect our quarterly revenue and whetieeseasonality may change due to
modifications to a client’s business. As such, whdve that results of operations for a quartedyiged may not be indicative of the results for
any other quarter or for the full year.

Our systems may not accommodate significant growtlour number of clients.

Our success depends on our ability to hanthege number of transactions for many differefdndk in various product categories. We
expect that the volume of transactions will inceeaignificantly as we expand our operations. i ticurs, additional stress will be placed
upon the network hardware and software that managiegperations. We cannot assure you of our gltdiefficiently manage a large number
of transactions. If we are not able to maintairappropriate level of operating performance, we aeyelop a negative reputation, and impair
existing and prospective client relationships andhlusiness would be materially adversely affected.

We may not be able to recover all or a portion afr start-up costs associated with one or more of clients.

We generally incur start-up costs in connectidgth the planning and implementation of busingsxess solutions for our clients. Although
we generally attempt to recover these costs franclient in the early stages of the client relagiup, or upon contract termination if the client
terminates without cause prior to full amortizatmfrthese costs, there is a risk that the clientre@t may not fully cover the start-up costs. To
the extent start-up costs exceed the start-upréoesved, excess costs will be expensed as inculdditionally, in connection with new client
contracts we generally incur capital expenditussoaiated with assets whose primary use is retatdw client solution. There is a risk that
contract may end before expected and we may noveeche full amount of our capital costs.

Our revenue and margins may be materially impactadclient transaction volumes that differ from cli projections and business
assumptions.

Our pricing for client transaction servicesgls as call center and fulfillment, is often baspdn volume projections and business
assumptions provided by the client and our antteip@osts to perform such work. In the event theadevel of activity or cost is substantia
different from the projections or assumptions, wayrhave insufficient or excess staffing, incremeotats or other assets dedicated for such
client that may negatively impact our margins anodihess relationship with such client. In the eweatare unable to meet the service levels
expected by the client, our relationship with thera will suffer and may result in financial petias and/or the termination of the client
contract.

We face competition from many sources that couldracsely affect our business.

Many companies offer, on an individual basisg or more of the same services we do, and wecfaogetition from many different sources
depending upon the type and range of services s¢egi®y a potential client. Our
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competitors include vertical outsourcers, which@mpanies that offer a single function, such #isceaters, public warehouses or credit card
processors. We compete against transportationtiogigroviders who offer product management fumgias an ancillary service to their
primary transportation services. We also compe&énag other business process outsourcing providdrg,perform many similar services as
us. Many of these companies have greater capabitiian we do for the single or multiple functitimsy provide. In many instances, our
competition is the in-house operations of its pt&telients themselves. The in-house operationgoténtial clients often believe that they can
perform the same services we do, while otherseduetant to outsource business functions that irevdirect customer contact. We cannot be
certain that we will be able to compete successhgainst these or other competitors in the future.

Our sales and implementation cycles are highly \adie and our ability to finalize pending contracisay cause our operating results to vary
widely.

The sales cycle for our services is variatyigically ranging between several months to up year or longer from initial contact with the
potential client to the signing of a contract. Gsioaally the sales cycle requires substantiallyariome. Delays in signing and executing client
contracts may affect our revenue and cause ouabpgresults to vary widely. A potential clientiecision to purchase our services is
discretionary, involves a significant commitmentloé clients resources and is influenced by intense intemmdlexternal pricing and operati
comparisons. To successfully sell our servicesgereerally must educate our potential clients reigarthe use and benefit of our services,
which can require significant time and resourcemsequently, the period between initial contact aedourchase of our services is often long
and subject to delays associated with the lengpipyaval and competitive evaluation processes {matally accompany significant operational
decisions. Additionally, the time required to fiizal pending contracts and to implement our systemisintegrate a new client can range from
several weeks to many months. Delays in signingimatedrating new clients may affect our revenue eaugise our operating results to vary
widely.

Our business could be adversely affected by a syster equipment failure, whether that of us or oalients.

Our operations are dependent upon our abdifyrotect our distribution facilities, customensee centers, computer and
telecommunications equipment and software systgyamst damage and failures. Damage or failuresdoadult from fire, power loss,
equipment malfunctions, system failures, natursdsliers and other causes. If our business isupted either from accidents or the intentional
acts of others, our business could be materialpesly affected. In addition, in the event of véigeead damage or failures at our facilities,
short-term disaster recovery and contingency péemtksinsurance coverage may not be sufficient.

Our clients’ businesses may also be harmed &y system or equipment failures we experiencéhdt event, our relationship with these
clients may be adversely affected, we may losectiobents, our ability to attract new clients mayduversely affected and we could be
exposed to liability.

Interruptions could also result from the intenal acts of others, like “hackers.” If our sysi®are penetrated by computer hackers, or if
computer viruses infect our systems, our computeusd fail or proprietary information could be nmigeopriated.

If our clients suffer similar interruptions tineir operations, for any of the reasons discussede or for others, our business could also be
adversely affected. Many of our clients’ computgstems interface with our systems. If our clientes interruptions in their systems, the link
to our systems could be severed and sales of idm@’slproducts could be slowed or stopped.

Risks Related to the Business Process Outsourcingdustry

If the trend toward outsourcing does not continueyr business could be adversely affect

Our business could be materially adverselgaéd if the trend toward outsourcing declinesewerses, or if corporations bring previously
outsourced functions back in-house. Particularlgrdugeneral economic downturns, businesses may lmihouse previously outsourced
functions to avoid or delay layoffs.
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Our market is subject to rapid technological changad to compete we must continually enhance ourtegss to comply with evolving
standards

To remain competitive, we must continue toarde and improve the responsiveness, functioratitiyfeatures of our services and the
underlying network infrastructure. If we are unatdedapt to changing market conditions, clientinements or emerging industry standards,
our business could be adversely affected. Theriateand e-commerce environments are characterizegpltd technological change, changes
in user requirements and preferences, frequentomeduct and service introductions embodying newnetogies and the emergence of new
industry standards and practices that could readetechnology and systems obsolete. Our succéisdepiend, in part, on our ability to both
internally develop and license leading technologgesnhance our existing services and develop eewces. We must continue to address the
increasingly sophisticated and varied needs otbents and respond to technological advances aretgng industry standards and practices
on a coseffective and timely basis. The development of pedpry technology involves significant technicablabusiness risks. We may fail
develop new technologies effectively or to adaptproprietary technology and systems to client negoents or emerging industry standards.

Risks Related to eCOST, our Online Discount RetaiteSegment

We may not be able to achieve or maintain profitityi

We have incurred continuing operating lossekraay not be able to achieve or maintain profiitglon a quarterly or annual basis. Our
ability to achieve or maintain profitability dependn a number of factors, including our ability to:

. increase sale:

. maintain and expand vendor relationsh

. obtain additional and increase existing trade trsih key suppliers
. generate sufficient gross profit; a

. control costs and generate the expected synerg@isable to the merge

We may need additional financing and may not be@lb obtain additional financing on favorable ternm at all, which could increase our
costs and limit our ability to grow.

We may need to obtain additional financing #rete can be no assurance that we will be albdétain additional financing on commercie
reasonable terms or at all. Our failure to obtaiditonal financing or our inability to obtain finaing on acceptable terms will materially
adversely affect our ability to achieve profitatyiland grow our business.

Our operating results are difficult to predict.

Our operating results have fluctuated in thstjand are likely to vary significantly in thedtg based upon a number of factors, many of
which we cannot control. We operate in a highlyaiyic industry and future results could be subjedignificant fluctuations. Revenue and
expenses in future periods may be greater or legsrevenue and expenses in the immediately preg@diriod or in the comparable period of
the prior year. Therefore, period-to-period comgams of our operating results are not necessagtyoa indication of our future performance.
Some of the factors that could cause our operaéisglts to fluctuate include:

» price competition that results in lower salefimes, lower profit margins, or net losses;

» our ability to prevent credit card fraud aeduce chargeback activity;

» the amount, timing and impact of advertisamgl marketing costs;

» our ability to successfully implement newhrologies or software systems;

* our ability to obtain sufficient financing;

28




Table of Contents

. changes in the number of visitors to our websitewrinability to convert those visitors into custers;
. technical difficulties, including system or Intetriailures;

. fluctuations in the demand for our products or st@rking or unde-stocking of products

. fluctuations in revenues and shipping costs, paeity during the holiday seasc

. economic conditions generally or economic condgispecific to the Internet, online commerce, thairendustry or the mail orde
industry;

. changes in the mix of products that we sell;

. fluctuations in levels of inventory theft, damageobsolescenct

The failure to improve our financial and operatingerformance may result in a failure to comply withur financial covenants.

In the event we are unable to increase owemas and/or gross profit from our present levetsdmnot achieve a sufficient level of
operating efficiencies, we may fail to comply withe or more of the financial covenants requiredenmmadir working capital line of credit. In
such event, absent a waiver, the working capitadée would be entitled to accelerate all amountstanding thereunder and exercise all other
rights and remedies, including sale of collateral payment under the parent guaranty.

If we fail to accurately predict our inventory riskour margins may decline as a result of wi-downs of our inventory due to lower prices
obtained for older or obsolete products.

Some of the products we sell on our websitecharacterized by rapid technological change,lebsence and price erosion (for example,
computer hardware, software and consumer elecspraad because we may sometimes stock large tjaamtf particular types of inventory,
inventory reserves may be required or may subselyymove insufficient, and additional inventoryite-downs may be required.

Increased product returns or a failure to accurayepredict product returns could decrease our reveswand impact profitability

We make allowances for product returns baselistorical return rates. We are responsible étwms of certain products ordered through
our website from our distribution center as welpasducts that are shipped to our customers dyréatin our vendors. If our actual product
returns significantly exceed our allowances foumes$, especially as we expand into new producgeaites, our revenues and profitability co
decrease. In addition, because our allowancesaaedlon historical return rates, the introductibnesv merchandise categories, new products,
changes in our product mix, or other factors mayseaactual returns to exceed return allowancebapsrsignificantly. Any policies intended
to reduce the number of product returns may réswaustomer dissatisfaction, increased credit chatgeback activity and fewer repeat
customers.

Our ability to offer a broad selection of productd competitive prices is dependent on our abilitynhaintain existing and build new
relationships with manufacturers and vendors. We dot have long-term agreements with our manufacttser vendors and some of our
manufacturers and vendors compete directly with us.

We purchase products for resale both dirdotig;n manufacturers and indirectly through distrirstand other sources, all of whom we
consider our vendors. We do not have any long-sggreements with any of these vendors. Any agreeswettt vendors governing our
purchase of products are generally terminable theeparty upon 30 days’ notice or less. In genevalagree to offer products on our website
and the vendors agree to provide us with infornrmasibout their products and honor our customer sepolicies. If we do not maintain
relationships with vendors on acceptable termdudicg favorable product pricing and vendor consitien, we may not be able to offer a
broad selection of products or continue to offedurcts at competitive prices, and customers mags#aot to shop at our website. In addit
some vendors may decide not to offer particuladpets for sale on the Internet, and others maydawffering their new products to retailers
like us who offer a mix of close-out and recertfigroducts in addition to new products. From timérme, vendors may terminate our right to
sell some or all of our products, change the appleterms and conditions of sale or reduce oodistue the incentives or vendor
consideration that they offer. Any such terminatiwrihe implementation of such changes could havegative impact on our operating rest
Additionally, some products are subject to manufaator distributor allocation, which limits thember of units of those products that are
available to us and other resellers.
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Our business is subject to the risk of supplier cemtration.

Our business is dependent on sales of HeRéetkard (HP) and HP-related products, which reptegeapproximately 43% of eCOST's net
revenues (9% of our consolidated revenues) in 200%, of eCOST’s net revenues (11% of our cons@illa¢venues) in 2007 and 33% of
eCOST'’s net revenues (7% of our consolidated rexeimuwhich eCOST had 11 months of activity) in @08 our ability to purchase direct
from HP is terminated or restricted, or if the dehdor HP and HP-related products declines, oumiess could be materially adversely
affected.

We are dependent on the success of our advertisind marketing efforts, which are costly and may raxthieve desired results, and on our
ability to attract customers on cost-effective texm

Our revenues depend on our ability to adverisd market our products effectively. Increasabéncosts of advertising and marketing,
including costs of online advertising, paper andtpge costs, costs and fees of third-party sepricgiders and the costs of complying with
applicable regulations, may limit our ability tovadtise and market our business without impactimgpoofitability. If our advertising and
marketing efforts prove ineffective or do not prodwa sufficient level of sales to cover their costsf we decrease our advertising or
marketing activities due to increased costs, m@giris enacted by regulatory agencies or for ahgrateason, our revenues and profit margins
may decrease. Our success depends on our abilityrémt customers on costfective terms. We have relationships with onkeevices, searc
engines, shopping engines, directories and othbsites and e-commerce businesses through whichravedp advertising banners and other
links that direct customers to our website. We ekperely on these relationships as significantrses of traffic to our website and to generate
new customers. If we are unable to develop or raairthese relationships on acceptable terms, dlityab attract new customers on a cost-
effective basis could be harmed. In addition, é¢eré our existing online marketing agreements negqus to pay fixed placement fees or fees
for directing visits to our eCOST website, neitbéwhich may convert into sales.

Because we experience seasonal fluctuations in mwrenues, our quarterly results may fluctual

Our business is moderately seasonal, refigttia general pattern of peak sales for the rigtdilstry during the holiday shopping season.
Typically, a larger portion of our revenues occuridg the first and fourth fiscal quarters. We beé that our historical revenue growth makes
it difficult to predict the effect of seasonality our future revenues and results of operationantitipation of increased sales activity during
the first and fourth quarters, we incur additioegbenses, including higher inventory and staffiogts. If sales for the first and fourth quarters
do not meet anticipated levels, then increasedresgemay not be offset which could decrease otitgidity. If we were to experience lower
than expected sales during our first or fourth tgrar for any reason, it would decrease our pruifitg.

Our business may be harmed by fraudulent activit@s our website.

We have received in the past, and anticigeewe will receive in the future, communicationsnfi customers due to purported fraudulent
activities on our eCOST website. Negative publigénerated as a result of fraudulent conduct bd tiarties could damage our reputation and
diminish the value of our brand name. Frauduletividies on our eCOST website could also subjedibussses. We expect to continue to
receive requests from customers for reimbursemeata purportedly fraudulent activities or threaftéegal action if no reimbursement is
made.

If we do not successfully expand our eCOST webaite processing systems to accommodate higher lesaisaffic and changing custome
demands, we could lose customers and our revenwesdcdecline.

To remain competitive, we must continue toaerde and improve the functionality and featuresusfwebsite. If we fail to upgrade our
website in a timely manner to accommodate highkraes of traffic, our website performance couldesuénd we may lose customers. The
Internet and the eemmerce industry are subject to rapid technoldgicange. If competitors introduce new featuresaatlsite enhancemer
embodying new technologies, or if new industry deads and practices emerge, our existing eCOSTiteedrsd systems may
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become obsolete or unattractive. Developing our 8C@ebsite and other systems entails significarftriizal and business risks. We may face
material delays in introducing new services, prdsland enhancements. If this happens, customerdargy the use of our eCOST website
and use those of our competitors. We may use nemtdogies ineffectively, or we may fail to adapt evebsite, transaction processing
systems and computer network to meet customernagaints or emerging industry standards.

If we fail to successfully expand our merchandisategories and product offerings in a ceeffective and timely manner, our reputation and
the value of our new and existing brands could barimed, customer demand for our products could deeland our profit margins could
decrease.

Historically, we have generated the substhntgority of our revenues from the sale of compiardware, software and accessories and
consumer electronics products. In recent yeardh)ave added several new product categories, ingutfiar the Home” and sports and leisure.
While our merchandising platform has been incorfgarénto and tested in the online computer and wmes electronics retail markets, we
cannot predict with certainty whether it can becassfully applied to other product categories.ddition, expansion of our business strategy
into new product categories may require us to isagmificant marketing expenses, develop relatigpsstvith new vendors and comply with
new regulations. We may lack the necessary expértia new product category to realize the expdogeefits of that new category. These
requirements could strain managerial, financial @perational resources. Additional challenges iy affect our ability to expand into new
product categories include our ability to:

. establish or increase awareness of new brandsraddgi categories

. acquire, attract and retain customers at a reasooabt;

. achieve and maintain a critical mass of customedsaaders across all product categor

. attract a sufficient number of new customers to mvlmew product categories are targe

. successfully market new product offerings to ergitustomers

. maintain or improve gross margins and fulfillmeaosts;

. attract and retain vendors to provide an expanitedf products to customers on terms that arepdabte; anc
. manage inventory in new product categor

We cannot be certain that we will be ableuocessfully address any or all of these challeingasmanner that will enable us to expand our
business into new product categories in a cost#ffe or timely manner. If our new categories adgcts or services are not received
favorably, or if our suppliers fail to meet our tarsers’ expectations, our results of operationsldsuffer and our reputation and the value of
the applicable new brand and other brands coulthbeaged. The lack of market acceptance of our medugt categories or inability to
generate satisfactory revenues from any expandmtlipt categories to offset our cost could harmbusiness.

Credit card fraud could materially adversely affegtir business.

We do not currently carry insurance againstribk of credit card fraud, so the failure to astsgly control fraudulent credit card
transactions could reduce our revenues and groggm&Ve may suffer losses as a result of ordeasaal with fraudulent credit card data even
though the associated financial institution appdopayment of the orders. Under current credit gaadtices, we may be liable for fraudulent
credit card transactions because we did not obtagrdholdes signature. If we are unable to detect or comtradlit card fraud, or if credit ca
companies require more burdensome terms, refusecept credit card charges or assess financialtfgenaur business could be materially
adversely affected.

If we are unable to provide satisfactory customengce, we could lose custome

Our ability to provide satisfactory levelsafstomer service depends, to a large degree, agffibient and uninterrupted operation of our
customer service operations. Any material disruptioslowdown in our order processing systems tiegufrom labor disputes, telephone or
Internet failures, power or service outages, natlisasters or other events could make it diffimslimpossible to provide adequate customer
service and support. If we are unable to contiguyalbvide adequate staffing and training for oustotner service operations, our reputation
could be seriously harmed and we could lose cuswmrBecause our success depends in large part on
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keeping our customers satisfied, any failure tosjgl® high levels of customer service would likatypair our reputation and decrease our
revenues.

We may not be able to compete successfully aganristting or future competitors.

The market for online sales of the productsffer is intensely competitive and rapidly evolyilWe principally compete with a variety of
online retailers, specialty retailers and otheritesses that offer products similar to or the sameur products. Increased competition is likely
to result in price reductions, reduced revenuegands margins and loss of market share. We expegpetition to intensify in the future
because current and new competitors can enter dhleetrwith little difficulty and can launch new waites at a relatively low cost. In addition,
some of our product vendors have sold, and contmirgensify their efforts to sell, their produdtisectly to customers. We currently or
potentially compete with a variety of businessesluding:

. other mult-category online retailers and liquidatic-tailers;

. online discount retailers of computer and consuehestronics merchandise such as Buy.com, NewEgd eyatDirect;
. consumer electronics and office supply superstsuel as Best Buy, Office Depot, OfficeMax and Stapanc

. manufacturers such as Apple, Dell, Gateway, He-Packard and IBM, that sell directly to custom:

Many of the current and potential competidescribed above have longer operating historiegetacustomer bases, greater brand
recognition and significantly greater financial,nketing and other resources than we do. In addibafine retailers may be acquired by,
receive investments from or enter into other conumaérelationships with larger, well-establishediamell-financed companies. Some of our
competitors may be able to secure products fromufiaaturers or vendors on more favorable terms, egeater resources to marketing and
promotional campaigns, adopt more aggressive grigirinventory availability policies and devote stantially more resources to website and
systems development than we are able to.

If the protection of our trademarks and proprietamghts is inadequate, our eCOST brand and reputaticould be impaired and we cou
lose customers.

We have five trademarks and/or service maréiswe consider to be material to the successfedaipn of our business: eCOST
eCOST.con®, eCOST.com Your Online Discount Superstoreé?™Bargain Countdowf® and Bargain Countdown Platinum Club® We
currently use all of these marks in connection wéflephone, mail order, catalog, and online retail/ices. We also have additional pending
applications in the United States and Canada. \Weoretrademark and copyright law, trade secretgmtion and confidentiality agreements
with our employees, consultants, suppliers andrettteprotect our proprietary rights. Our applica may not be granted, and we may not be
able to obtain protection for our trademarks andéwice marks with the Trademark Offices in thatethStates and in Canada. We would still
potentially have common law rights in and to oadgmarks and/or service marks based on use ofdhesrim these respective territories. Our
competitors or others could adopt trademarks arsdivice marks similar to our marks, or try to gnetvus from using our marks, thereby
impeding our ability to build brand identity andgsibly leading to customer confusion. Any claimampther party against us for customer
confusion caused by use of our trademarks andrfeiceemarks, or our failure to obtain registratidosour marks, could negatively affect our
competitive position and could cause us to los¢otosrs.

Although we have received a patent from th®. Patent and Trademark Office for our proprieBaygain Countdow® technology, we
cannot provide any assurance that effective patethtrademark protection will be available in aliteances, including in other countries in
which our products and services may be available.

Effective trademark, service mark, patent, dommame, copyright and trade secret protection nye available in every country in which
we will sell our products and offer our servicasalldition, the relationship between regulationgegeing domain names and laws protecting
trademarks, service marks and similar proprietayiyts is unclear. Therefore, we may be unable ¢vgmt third parties from acquiring domain
names that are similar to, infringe upon or otheendecrease the value of our trademarks and/dcsenarks and other proprietary rights. If
we are unable to protect or preserve the valueipfrademarks, service marks, domain names, cdpgritrade secrets or other proprietary
rights for any reason, our competitive positionlddue negatively affected and we could lose custsme
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We also rely on technologies that we licemeenfrelated and third parties. These licenses noagantinue to be available to us on
commercially reasonable terms, or at all, in thereL As a result, we may be required to developbdain substitute technology of lower
quality or at greater cost, which could negativadfgct our competitive position, cause us to lasgt@mers and decrease our profitability.

We may be subject to product liability claims thaduld be costly and time consuming.

We sell products manufactured and distribigthird parties, some of which may be defectivenaly not comply with applicable laws or
regulations, such as laws or regulations requiwagning labels. If any product that we sell wereaoise physical injury or damage to property
or otherwise not comply with applicable laws orukegions, we may be subject to claims being assext@inst us as the retailer of the product.
Our insurance coverage may not be available orwatedo cover every claim that could be asserfedsuiccessful claim were brought against
us in excess of its insurance coverage, it coupibsa us to significant liability. Even unsuccessfalms could result in the expenditure of
funds and management time and could decreaseginitifif.

eCOST may be subject to future impairment chargekated to eCOST's intangible assets.

The valuation of intangible assets related@®ST is dependent upon, among other things, tiraated value of eCOST’s projected cash
flows for its business. In the event eCOST is uaablmeet such projections, or such estimated salue otherwise less than the carrying value
of such intangibles, we may be required under otigecounting rules to record an impairment chamgmnnection with the write-down of
such intangibles.

Risks Related to Our eCOST Online Retailer Operatig Segment’s Industry

Additional sales and use taxes could be imposegast or future sales of our products or other procta sold on our eCOST website, whi
could adversely affect our revenues and profitatyili

In accordance with current industry practiod aur interpretation of applicable law, we collaot remit sales taxes only with respect to
physical shipments of goods into states where we hghysical presence. If any state or otherdigi®n successfully challenges this practice
and imposes sales taxes on orders on which we tdmtiect and remit sales taxes, we could be expptssubstantial tax liabilities for past
sales and could suffer decreased sales in that@t@drisdiction in the future. In addition, a niben of states, as well as the U.S. Congress, hav:
been considering various legislative initiativeattbould result in the imposition of additionalesabnd use taxes on Internet sales. If any of
these initiatives are enacted, we could be requoemllect sales taxes in states where we do ¢ b physical presence. Future changes i
operation of our business also could result initfygosition of additional sales tax obligations. Thmposition of additional sales and use taxes
on past or future sales could adversely affectrewenues and profitability.

Existing or future government regulation could expe us to liabilities and costly changes in our bosss operations, and could redu
customer demand for our products.

We are subject to general business regulatdoddaws, as well as regulations and laws spedlifigoverning the Internet and e-commerce.
Such existing and future laws and regulations mgyeide the growth of the Internet or other onlimises. These regulations and laws may
cover taxation, user privacy, marketing and proor@! practices, database protection, pricing, eantopyrights, distribution, electronic
contracts, email and other communications, consymaection, product safety, the provision of oalfpayment services, intellectual property
rights, unauthorized access (including the Compataud and Abuse Act), and the characteristicsopradity of products and services. It is
unclear how existing laws governing issues sugbraegerty ownership, sales and other taxes, libespiass, data mining and collection, and
personal privacy apply to the Internet and e-conemddnfavorable resolution of these issues may €xpg to liabilities and costly changes in
our business operations, and could reduce custdemeand. The growth and demand for online commegiseahd may continue to result in
more stringent consumer protection laws that im@ak#tional compliance burdens on online comparkies.example, the laws of many states
require notice to customers if certain personairimiation about
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them is obtained by an unauthorized person, suehcasnputer hacker. These consumer protectiondawkl result in substantial compliance
costs and could decrease profitability.

Risks Related to Our Stock

The market price of our common stock may be vokatiYou may not be able to sell your shares at ooabthe price at which you purchased
such shares

The trading price of our common stock may tigject to wide fluctuations in response to quatbeguarter fluctuations in operating results,
announcements of material adverse events, geraditions in our industry or the public marketplacel other events or factors. In addition,
stock markets have experienced extreme price addhty volume volatility in recent years. This vdlgt has had a substantial effect on the
market prices of securities of many technologytegla&aompanies for reasons frequently unrelatedamperating performance of the specific
companies. These broad market fluctuations mayradieaffect the market price of our common stdoladdition, if our operating results
differ from our announced guidance or the expemtatiof equity research analysts or investors, tloe pf our common stock could decrease
significantly.

Our stock price could decline if a significant nuneb of shares become available for sale.

As of December 31, 2008, we have an aggregdtet million stock options outstanding to empleggedirectors and others with a weighted
average exercise price of $5.62 per share. Thestwicommon stock that may be issued upon exestigese options may be resold into the
public market. Sales of substantial amounts of comstock in the public market as a result of thereise of these options, or the perception
that future sales of these shares could occurdamaluce the market price of our common stock aaklenit more difficult to sell equity
securities in the future.

Our common stock could be delisted from the Nas@apital Market.

Historically, the price of our common stockshieaded below $1.00 per share. If the price ofomunmon stock declines below $1.00 per
share for 30 consecutive trading days, we maytdaiheet Nasdag’ maintenance criteria, which may result in théstiab of our common stoc
from the Nasdag Capital Market. Nasdaq has recamiipunced that it is suspending its $1.00 mininslosing bid price rule until July 20,
2009.

In the event of such delisting, trading, ifyam our common stock may then continue to be oeotetl in the non-Nasdaq over-the-counter
market in what are commonly referred to as theteda@ bulletin board and the "pink sheet#&$ a result, an investor may find it more diffic
to dispose of or obtain accurate quotations akdartarket value of our common stock. In additioa,would be subject to a Rule promulgated
by the SEC that, if we fail to meet criteria satlion such Rule, imposes various practice requinrason broker-dealers who sell securities
governed by the Rule to persons other than estatlisustomers and accredited investors. For tlgpss bf transactions, the broker-dealer
must make a special suitability determination fer purchaser and have received the purchaser®mwrbnsent to the transactions prior to the
sale. Consequently, the Rule may have a matenalrad effect on the ability of broker-dealers th ®er securities, which may materially
affect the ability of shareholders to sell our séms in the secondary market.

A delisting from the Nasdaq Capital Markethalso make us ineligible to use FornB3e register the sale of shares of our commorkato
to register the resale of our securities with tB€Sthereby making it more difficult and expensioeus to register our common stock or other
securities and raise additional capital.

Our certificate of incorporation, our bylaws, ourhs&reholder rights plan and Delaware law make it fidult for a third party to acquire us,
despite the possible benefit to our shareholders.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporatjaur bylaws, our shareholder rights plan and Datataw could make it more difficult for a
third party to acquire us, even if doing so woukddeneficial to our shareholders. For example cedtificate of incorporation provides for a
classified board of directors, meaning that onlgragimately one-third of our directors may be sabje re-election at each annual shareholder
meeting. Our certificate of incorporation also p#snour Board of Directors to issue one or moréesenf preferred stock, which may have
rights and preferences superior to those of thentomstock. The ability to issue preferred stockidou
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have the effect of delaying or preventing a thiadty from acquiring us. We have also adopted aestedder rights plan. These provisions cc
discourage takeover attempts and could materidygisely affect the price of our stock. In additibrcause we are incorporated in Delaware,
we are governed by the provisions of Section 20Bi@Delaware General Corporation Law, which mahihit large shareholders from
consummating a merger with, or acquisition of usegde provisions may prevent a merger or acquisitianwould be attractive to shareholders
and could limit the price that investors would bilimg to pay in the future for our common stock.

There are limitations on the liabilities of our dactors and executive officers.

Pursuant to our bylaws and under Delaware ¢tawdirectors are not liable to us or our shareéud for monetary damages for breach of
fiduciary duty, except for liability for breach afdirector’s duty of loyalty, acts or omissionsapgirector not in good faith or which involve
intentional misconduct or a knowing violation oiaor any transaction in which a director has detien improper personal benefit.
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Item 2. Properties

Our general corporate headquarters and thpoate headquarters of our PFS service fee andigsjistributors businesses are located in
Plano, Texas, a Dallas suburb. Our eCOST corpbeddquarters is located in El Segundo, California.

In the U.S., we operate two distribution fiigs in Memphis, Tennessee, with aggregate flookmezzanine space of more than 800,000
square feet. We also operate approximately 1 miliguare feet of distribution facilities in SoutbayMississippi. Both of these complexes are
located approximately five miles from the Memphigelnational Airport. We also manage a 200,000 sgjfaot distribution facility in
Grapevine, Texas.

We operate a 150,000 square foot distributimter in Liege, Belgium, which contains advancistritiution systems and equipment. We
operate a 23,000 square foot distribution cent@moironto, Canada. We also operate a 10,000 sqoatéakility in the Philippines to provide
call center and customer service functions. Weatpesustomer service centers in our facilitiesémffessee, Texas, Belgium and the

Philippines. Our call center technology permits dlaéomatic routing of calls to available custonmmwige representatives in several of our call
centers.

Except for the Grapevine, Texas facility, whige manage on our client’s behalf, all of ourliies are leased and the material lease
agreements contain one or more renewal options.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On July 25, 2007 a purported class action lgvesntitledDarral Frank and Joseph F. Keeley, Jr. v. PC M#lk. dba eCOST.com and
eCOST.com, Inavas filed in the Superior Court of California, LAageles County. The purported class consists affailrrent and former
sales representatives who worked for the defendiar@salifornia from July 24, 2003 through July 2907. The lawsuit alleges that the
defendants failed to pay overtime compensationiatetlest thereon, failed to timely pay compensatoterminated employees and failed to
provide meal and rest periods, all in violatiortted California Labor Code and Business and PrasassCode. In December 2008, the action
was settled for $0.1 million.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.
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PART I

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stednolder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Setias

Our common stock is listed and currently tsade the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol SW” In June 2008, our Board of
Directors authorized a 1-for-4.7 reverse stockt gfieverse Split”) to reduce the number of outdiag shares of common stock. There was no
impact on the number of authorized shares or titedipar value of our common stock as a resulieféverse stock split. All share and per
share amounts for common stock, warrants and stpti&ns have been restated to reflect the Revgrkeos a retro-active basis.

The following table sets forth for the periodicated the high and low sale price for the commsimck as reported by NASDAQ:

Price
High Low
Year Ended December 31, 2C
First Quarte $6.2¢ $4.2¢
Second Quarte $4.8¢ $3.81
Third Quartel $7.0t $3.8%
Fourth Quarte $7.3¢ $4.8¢
Year Ended December 31, 2C
First Quarte| $6.02 $3.62
Second Quarte $5.5¢ $3.5C
Third Quartel $4.8¢ $2.22
Fourth Quarte $2.5¢ $0.6¢

As of March 10, 2009, there were approximafe#y00 shareholders of which approximately 147 wecerd holders of the common stock.

We have never declared or paid cash dividendsur common stock and do not anticipate the paywfecash dividends on our common
stock in the foreseeable future. We are also ststtifrom paying dividends under our debt agreesavithout the prior approval of our
lenders. We currently intend to retain all earnitggfinance the further development of our busin&se payment of any future cash dividends
will be at the discretion of our Board of Direct@nsd will depend upon, among other things, fut@miegs, operations, capital requirements,
the general financial condition of the Company gaderal business conditions and the approval ofemglers. See “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result®©glerations — Liquidity and Capital Resources.”

The following table summarizes informationtwiespect to equity compensation plans under waglhity securities of the registrant are
authorized for issuance as of December 31, 2008:

Number of securities Weighted-average Number of

to be issued upon exercise price of securities

exercise of outstanding remaining

outstanding options options and available for

Plan category (1) and warrants warrants future issuance

Equity compensation plans approved by securitydrs| 1,352,40 $5.71 366,81¢
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechdtgers 91,02: $4.2¢ —
Total 1,443,42! 366,81¢

(1) See Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statenfentaore detailed information regarding the remgis’s equity compensation plar
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STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following graph displays the cumulativeatageturn to stockholders of our Common Stock siBecember 31, 2003, compared to the
cumulative total return for the Total Return Indek The Nasdaq Stock Market (U.S.) and the Ru88D Index. The graph assumes a $100
investment in our Common Stock and in each of theva mentioned indices. The Russell 2000 Index imidex of companies with market
capitalizations similar to the Company. We beligva an index of companies with similar market talzations provides a reasonable basi
comparing total stockholder returns.

COMPARISON OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among PFSweb Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index
And The Russell 2000 Index

[¥] (PERFORMANCE GRAPH)

* $100 invested on 12/31/03 in stock & index-urding reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year enddegember 31.

12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12/07 12/08
PESweb, Inc. $100.( $177.4¢ $ 76.8¢ $ 68.7¢ $ 78.18 $9.71
NASDAQ STOCK MARKET (U.S.) 100.( 110.0¢ 112.8¢ 126.5: 138.1¢ 80.4
RUSSELL 2000 100.( 118.3¢ 123.7: 146.44 144.1¢ 95.4¢
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data
Historical Presentation

The selected consolidated historical stateraBaperations data for the years ended Decemhe2(®B, 2007, and 2006, and the selected
consolidated balance sheet data as of Decemb@088,and 2007 have been derived from our auditedatmated financial statements, and
should be read in conjunction with those statemantsnotes, which are included in this Form 10-Ke Belected consolidated statement of
operations data for the years ended December 85, &3d 2004 and the selected consolidated baldweet data as of December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004 have been derived from our auditadatmated financial statements, and should be ireadnjunction with those statements,
which are not included in this Form X0-As a result of the Reverse Split, all share pedshare amounts for common stock, warrants awd
options have been restated to reflect the Revarkeod a retro-active basis.

The selected consolidated financial data shbalread in conjunction with “Management’s Disémis&nd Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations,” “Risks Related to OusiBess — Certain of our historical financial infation may not be representative of our
future results,” and the consolidated financiatesteents and notes thereto that are included elsevitn¢his Form 10-K.

39




Table of Contents

Historical Selected Condensed Consolidated FinandiBata
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operatiol
Data:
Revenues
Product revenue, n $330,53: $339,50( $ 333,31: $252,90: $267,47(
Service fee revent 85,40¢ 74,48( 67,05¢ 60,78: 42,07¢
Pas-through revenu 35,90¢ 32,82: 22,88¢ 17,97 12,11¢
Total revenue 451,84: 446,80:. 423,25! 331,65 321,66!
Costs of revenue:
Cost of product revent 305,09( 313,83! 311,41° 235,58 251,96¢
Cost of service fee reven 58,00¢ 53,37t 49,27 45,59’ 28,06
Cost of pas-through revenu 35,90¢ 32,82: 22,88¢ 17,97: 12,11¢
Total costs of revenue 399,00:¢ 400,03: 383,57 299,15! 292,15¢
Gross profit 52,83¢ 46,77( 39,67¢ 32,50« 29,51
Percent of revenue 11.7% 10.5% 9.4% 9.8% 9.2%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 49,07: 44,057 45,18¢ 30,52: 27,09
Merger integration expens 15C 1,49t — —
Amortization of identifiable intangible 80¢€ 80¢€ 74¢ — —
Goodwill and intangible asset impairme 16,25( — 3,507 — —
Total operating expens 66,12¢ 45,01 50,94( 30,52: 27,09!
Income (loss) from operatiol (23,290 1,75 (11,26 1,98: 2,42(
Percent of revenue (2.9)% 0.4% (2.7)% 0.6% 0.8%
Interest expense, n 1,56( 2,34z 2,112 1,72¢ 1,46(
Income (loss) before income tax (14,850 (58%) (13,37¢) 254 96(
Income tax expens 80% 79¢ 1,154 1,001 734
Net income (loss $(15,65%) $ (1,389 $ (14,530 $ (749 $  22¢
Per share data:
Net income (loss) per shai
Basic $ (1.5%) $ (0.19 $ (1.60 $ (0.1¢ $ 0.0t
Diluted $ (15§ $ (0.19 $ (160 $ (0.1¢) $ 0.0t
Weighted average number of shares outstan
Basic 9,90t 9,88¢ 9,09¢ 4,76 4,53¢
Diluted 9,90¢ 9,88¢ 9,09¢ 4,76 4,99:

(A) Includes stock based compensation expen$é41, $764, $899, $16 and $14 in the years endedrbger 31, 2008, 2007, 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectivel

As of December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Consolidated Balance Sheet Date
Working capital $ 21,37: $ 22,507 $ 20,70 $ 23,35¢ $ 22,60¢
Total asset 144,52: 158,17: 164,15: 131,72t 130,32
Long-term obligation: 6,14: 7,68( 7,604 8,10z 8,74¢
Shareholde’ equity 33,08t 48,84: 48,84( 29,93« 29,92¢
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

We believe the following discussion and analysivigles information that is relevant to an assessraed understanding of our
consolidated results of operations and financiatdition. The discussion and analysis should be ieambnjunction with the consolidated
financial statements and related notes thereto appg elsewhere in thiForm 10-K . This Management’s Discussion and Aniglydl help
you understand

. The impact of forward looking statemer

. Our financial structure, including our historicaldncial presentatior

. Our results of operations for the last three ye

. Our relationship with our subsidiaries Suppliestiiisitors and eCOS1

. Our liquidity and capital resource

. The impact of seasonality, inflation and recerglyuied accounting standards on our financial statesnanc

. Our critical accounting policies and estima

Forward-Looking Information

We have made forward-looking statements is Report on Form 18- These statements are subject to risks and waicsets, and there ¢
be no guarantee that these statements will probe torrect. Forwartboking statements include assumptions as to howneae perform in th
future. When we use words like “seek,” “strive,€leve,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “predict,” “poterdl,” “continue,” “will,” “may,” “could,”
“intend,” “plan,” “target” and “estimate” or simitaexpressions, we are making forward-looking staet® You should understand that the
following important factors, in addition to the RiBactors set forth above or elsewhere in this RepoForm 10-K, could cause our results to
differ materially from those expressed in our ford¢#ooking statements. These factors include:

. our ability to retain and expand relationships ve#isting clients and attract and implement neerds;
. our reliance on the fees generated by the tramsaetlume or product sales of our clier
. our reliance on our clier’ projections or transaction volume or product se

. our dependence upon our agreements with InterradtiBusiness Machines Corporatic*IBM”) and InfoPrint Solutions Compal
(“1PE"), a joint venture company owned by Ricoh and IE

. our dependence upon our agreements with our mégots;

. our client mix, their business volumes and the aealgty of their busines:

. our ability to finalize pending contrac!

. the impact of strategic alliances and acquisitit

. trends in -commerce, outsourcing, government regulation batbign and domestic and the market for our sery
. whether we can continue and manage gro

. increased competitiol

. our ability to generate more revenue and achies&agable profitability

. effects of changes in profit margir

. the customer and supplier concentration of ourr®ss;

. the unknown effects of possible system failuresrapid changes in technoloc

. foreign currency risks and other risks of operatmépreign countries

. potential litigation;

. impact of reverse stock spl

. potential delisting

. our dependency on key persont

. the impact of new accounting standards, and changedsting accounting rules or the interpretasiofi those rules
. our ability to raise additional capital or obtaidétional financing;

. our ability and the ability of our subsidiariesttorrow under current financing arrangements aathtain compliance with debt
covenants

. relationship with and our guarantees of certaithefliabilities and indebtedness of our subsid&



taxation on the sale of our produc

eCOS”s potential indemnification obligations to its fagnmparent
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. eCOS7's ability to maintain existing and build new reteiships with manufacturers and vendors and theessaaf its advertising ar
marketing efforts

. eCOS™s ability to increase its sales revenue and salegimand improve operating efficiencies; ¢
. eCOS7's ability to generate projected cash flows suffiti® cover the values of its intangible ass

We have based these statements on our cexxpattations about future events. Although we beltbat the expectations reflected in our
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we daguarantee that these expectations actually withéhieved. In addition, some forward-
looking statements are based upon assumptionsfatite events that may not prove to be accurdier&fore, actual outcomes and results
differ materially from what is expected or fore@btn such forward-looking statements. We undertakebligation to update publicly any
forward-looking statement for any reason, evereifrfinformation becomes available or other eventsiom the future. There may be
additional risks that we do not currently view aatemial or that are not presently known. In evahgathese statements, you should consider
various factors, including the risks set forthlie section entitled “Risk Factors.”

Overview

We are an international provider of integrag€®mmerce and business process outsourcing sautianajor brand name companies
seeking to optimize their supply chain efficiencisl to extend their traditional business and ernemae initiatives. Through our eCOST.com
business unit, we are also a leading multi-categatine discount retailer of new, “close-out” amtertified brand-name merchandise. We
derive our revenues from three business segmeme€dmmerce and business process outsourcingnaster distributor and 3) an online
discount retailer.

First, in our eCommerce and business proagis®orcing business segment, we derive our reveinomesa broad range of services,
including professional consulting, technology coteation, order management, managed web hostingvaehdievelopment, the deployment of
an eCommerce technology platform, customer relatignmanagement, financial services includingrmlland collection services and working
capital solutions, kitting and assembly servicefgrimation management and international fulfillmant distribution services. We offer our
services as an integrated solution, which enahlesl@énts to outsource their complete infrastruetueeds to a single source and to focus on
their core competencies. Our distribution servex@sconducted at warehouses that we lease or mandgaclude real-time inventory
management and customized picking, packing angstgpof our clients’ customer orders. We curremwtfer the ability to provide
infrastructure and distribution solutions to cliettiat operate in a range of vertical marketspitiolg technology manufacturing, computer
products, cosmetics, fragile goods, contemporargénfurnishings, apparel, aviation, telecommunicetiand consumer electronics, among
others.

In this eCommerce and business process ogisgusegment, we do not own the underlying inventarthe resulting accounts receivable,
but provide management services for these cliemeohassets. We typically charge our service feeme® on a cost-plus basis, a percent of
shipped revenue basis or a per-transaction basil,as a per-minute basis for web-enabled custoomact center services and a per-item
basis for fulfillment services. Additional fees dnidled for other services. We price our servicasddl on a variety of factors, including the
depth and complexity of the services provided,am®unt of capital expenditures or systems custdinizaequired, the length of contract and
other factors.

Many of our service fee contracts involvedkrarty vendors who provide additional serviceshsag package delivery. The costs we are
charged by these third-party vendors for theseiees\are often passed on to our clients. Our g#lifor reimbursements of these costs and
other ‘out-of-pocket’ expenses include travel, gitijg and handling costs and telecommunication asand are included in pass-through
revenue.

Our second business segment is a productuevaodel. In this segment, we are a master distritnf product for IPS and certain other
clients. In this capacity, we purchase, and thus,émventory and recognize the corresponding prockwenue. As a result, upon the sale of
inventory, we own the accounts receivable. Fretgists billed to customers are reflected as comgsredrproduct revenue. This business
segment requires significant working capital reguoients, for which we have senior credit faciliteprovide for approximately $88 million of
available financing.
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Our third business segment is a web-commenaugt revenue model focused on the sale of predoct broad range of consumer and
small business customers. In this segment we apagah multi-category online discount retailer @fvn“close-out” and recertified brand-name
merchandise. Our product line currently offers agpnately 200,000 products in several primary marglise categories, primarily including
computers, networking, electronics and entertainmiéw's, plasmas and monitors, cameras and camegrdeemory and storage, “For the
Home” and sports and leisure.

Growth is a key element to achieving our fatgoals, including achieving and maintaining sustile profitability. Growth in our
eCommerce and business process outsourcing segglivien by two main elements: new client relasioips and organic growth from
existing clients. We focus our sales efforts ogéarcontracts with brand-name companies withinpwmary target markets, online brands and
retailers and technology manufacturers, which, diyire, require a longer duration to close but hbsee the potential to be higher quality and
longer duration engagements.

Growth within our product revenue busineggrisarily driven by our ability to attract new mestistributor arrangements with IPS or o
manufacturers and the sales and marketing effétteeamanufacturers and third party sales partners.

Growth within our web-commerce product revemgzel is primarily driven by eCOST’s ability tocirease sales by generating organic
growth, new customers and expanding its produet lin

We continue to monitor and control our costfotus on profitability. While we are targetingrowew service fee contracts to yield increa
gross profit, we also expect to incur incrememgéstments to implement new contracts, investmiaritdrastructure and sales and marketing
to support our targeted growth and increased pabliapany professional fees.

Our expenses comprise primarily four categorlg cost of product revenue, 2) cost of servieerevenue, 3) cost of pass-through revenue
and 4) operating expenses.

Cost of product revenue- consists of the purchase price of product sottifegight costs, which are reduced by certain reirséble
expenses. These reimbursable expenses includdéhpasgh customer marketing programs, direct costsrred in passing on any price
decreases offered by vendors to cover price pioteand certain special bids, the cost of prodpotsided to replace defective product
returned by customers and certain other expensgsfimed under the master distributor agreemengaddr marketing programs, such asopo-
advertising, also reduce cost of product revenue.

Cost of service fee revenue consists primarily of compensation and relategesmses for our webnabled customer contact center serv
international fulfillment and distribution servicaad professional consulting services, and otlxedfiand variable expenses directly related to
providing services under the terms of fee basetracts, including certain occupancy and informatechnology costs and depreciation and
amortization expenses.

Cost of pass-through revenue the related reimbursable costs for pass-throxglemrditures are reflected as cost of pass-throengénue.

Operating expenses- consist primarily of selling, general and admiirsitve (“SG&A”) expenses such as compensationratated
expenses for sales and marketing staff, advertisinline marketing and catalog production, distiidiu costs (excluding freight) applicable to
the Supplies Distributors and eCOST businessesuéixe, management and administrative personnebémet overhead costs, including
certain occupancy and information technology cast$ depreciation and amortization expenses.

Monitoring and controlling our available caslances continues to be a primary focus. Our aadHiquidity positions are important
components of our financing of both current operatiand our targeted growth. In recent years we hdded to our available cash and
liquidity positions through various transactions.
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. Each of our primary operating subsidiaries hasanmaore ass-based working capital financing agreements withouar lenders
. In 2005 and 2006, we raised approximately $6llianiin net proceeds from the sale of approximatell million shares of
common stock in private placements to certain itorss
Historical Financial Presentation
As a result of our acquisition of eCOST.confrébruary 2006, we believe our historical finanstatements may not provide a meaningful

comparison to our current and future financial perfance.
Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2007

The following table discloses certain finahaidormation for the periods presented, expressadrms of dollars, dollar change, percentage
change and as a percentage of total revenue (liomsi.

% of Total
Change Revenue
2008 2007 $ % 2008 2007
Revenues
Product revenue, n $ 330.t $339.t $ (9.0 (2.6)% 73.2% 76.(%
Service fee revent 85.2 74.% 10.€ 14.7% 18.%% 16.7%
Pas-through revenu 35.¢ 32.¢ 3.1 9.4% 7.9% 7.3%
Total net revenue 451.¢ 446.¢ 5.C 1.1% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of Revenue
Cost of product revent 305.1 313.¢ (8.7) (2.89% 92.2%(1) 92.4%(1)
Cost of service fee reven 58.C 53.2 4.6 8.7% 67.9%(2) 71.71%(2)
Pas-through cost of revent 35.¢ 32.¢ 3.1 9.4% 100.(%(3) 100.0%(3)
Total cost of revenue 399.( 400.( (1.0 (0.9% 88.2% 89.5%
Product revenue gross prc 25.4 25.7 (0.9 (0.9% 7.7%(1) 7.6%(1)
Service fee gross prof 27.2 21.1 6.1 29.8% 32.1%(2) 28.2%(2)
Pas-through gross profi — — — —% —%(3) —%(3)
Total gross profi 52.¢ 46.¢ 6.C 13.(% 11.7% 10.5%
Operating Expense 66.1(4) 45.C 21.1 46.%% 14.€% 10.1%
Income (loss) from operatiol (13.9) 1.8 (15.7) (856.9% (2.9% 0.4%
Interest expense, n 1.€ 2.4 (0.8 (33.9% 0.2% 0.5%
Income (loss) before income ta: (14.9 (0.6) (14.%) (2,438.9% (3.9% (0.1)%
Income tax expense, r 0.8 0.8 — 0.8% 0.2% 0.3%
Net income (loss $ (15.9) $ (19 $ (14.9) (1,031.9% (3.5% (0.9%

(1) Represents the percent of Product revenue
(2) Represents the percent of Service fee reve
(3) Represents the percent of F-through revenue
(4) Includes a $16.3 million charge for goodwill anthingible asset impairmer
Product Revenue, netCOST product revenue was $99.8 million in 2008,186 decrease as compared to $104.1 million imptlee year.
The decrease is primarily due to a decline in s@léis business to business (“B2B”) channel duthrg 2008 period partially offset by an

increase in its higher margin business to consyfB&C”) sales channel. The B2C sales channel irsgés primarily due to continued
emphasis on growth through an expanded productitingroved service capabilities and enhanced welssipabilities.
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Supplies Distributors product revenue of $Z3dillion decreased $4.6 million, or 2.0% in 20@8campared to the prior year. This decrease
is primarily due to decreased sales volume on iceptaducts partially offset by the impact of fayeiexchange rates.

We currently expect our 2009 annual produe¢neie to decline from 2008 due to eCOST'’s contiraleff in focus from the B2B channel to
the B2C channel as well as the impact of the ctigeanomic environment on both the eCOST and Sepistributor’'s segments.

Service Fee Revenu@he increase in service fee revenue for the yeaded December 31, 2008 and 2007 reflects thedhimimpact
from new clients that were added in calendar y8ai72and 2008, benefits from incremental projectknard a modified contract with an
existing client. The change in service fee reveruneluding pass-through revenue, is shown belomi{ons):

Year ended December 31, 2C $ 74t
New service contract relationships, including daertacremental projects under new contr¢ 7.1
Change in existing client service fees and ceitairemental projects with existing clier 6.7
Terminated clients not included in 2008 reve (2.9

Year ended December 31, 2C $ 85.<

Based on historical activity and current petifen of existing clients, including new clientgsed in 2007 and 2008, and the menewal of
certain U.S. government agency client and certtirreclients, we currently anticipate that 2009 &er fee revenue will decline from 2008
service fee revenue levels.

Cost of Product Revenu€he gross margin for eCOST was $8.8 million or 8@%roduct revenue in 2008 and $8.9 million 0r98.6f
product revenue during 2007. Gross margin for eC@8feased from the prior year primarily due tddtsn product sales to the higher
margin B2C sales channel.

Supplies Distributors cost of product revedeereased by $4.6 million, or 2.1%, to $214.1 wnillin 2008, primarily as a result of reduced
product sales. The resulting gross profit margis %&6.7 million or 7.2% of product revenue for ytear ended December 31, 2008 and
$16.7 million or 7.1% of product revenue for 200%e gross profit margin for the 2008 and 2007 mkyimclude certain incremental inventory
cost reductions.

Cost of Service Fee RevenuEhe increase in gross profit as a percentagerofce fees to 32.1% in 2008 from 28.3% in 200@rimarily
due to the impact of certain existing client prégeand the impact of a modified contract with aistixg client. We expect to earn an overall
gross profit of 25-30% on existing and new serf@econtracts, but we have and may continue tophdoeer gross margin percentages on
certain contracts depending on contract scope #ret €actors.

Operating ExpensesOperating expenses increased by $21.1 millionpaoed to 2007. Operating expenses were $66.1 milin14.6% o
total net revenues in the 2008 period and $45.Domjlor 10.1% of total net revenues in the prieay. Operating expenses in 2008 include a
goodwill and intangible asset impairment chargg18.3 million resulting from our annual analysigu&ed under accounting standards (see
discussion below). Excluding the impact of the 81@illion impairment charge for goodwill and intabig assets, operating expenses were
11.0% of total net revenues in the 2008 period. fEmeaining increase in operating expenses is pilyrmue to increased facility and personnel
related expenses and the prior year results béngfiftom the favorable impact of exchange ratesemain intercompany accounts.

In 2009, we intend to implement certain cesluctions to decrease operating expenses for cetftaiur facilities to correspond to our
anticipated decline in revenue.

Impairment Charge for Goodwill and Identifiable &migible AssetsAs a result of the decline in our common stodkegrour market
capitalization plus an implied control premium feiljnificantly below the recorded value of our calitated net assets as of December 31,
2008. In performing our annual impairment test,uged current market capitalization, control prensudiscounted cash flows and other
factors as the best evidence of fair value.
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The impairment test resulted in a reduction in galttributable to our goodwill and accordingly, reeorded an $11.8 million impairment
charge against goodwill during 2008.

In connection with the goodwill impairmentttese determined that certain of our identifiableangible assets were impaired. The
determination was based on the carrying valueseehog the future undiscounted cash flows and falue attributable to such intangible
assets. As a result, we recorded an impairmengehair$4.5 million during 2008, which represents difference between the estimated fair
values of these long-lived assets and their cagryalues. Fair values were determined based upoketeonditions, the relief from royalty
approach which utilized cash flow projections, atiger factors.

Income TaxedlWe recorded a tax provision associated primarity\state income taxes and our subsidiary SupplisgiButors’ Canadian
and European operations. A valuation allowancebleas provided for the majority of our net defert@d assets as of December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007, which are primarily relateduoreet operating loss carryforwards and certairifpr deferred tax assets. We expect that
we will continue to record an income tax provisassociated with state income taxes and SuppligsiiRi®ors’ Canadian and European results
of operations.

Year Ended December 31, 2007 Compared to Year Erdecember 31, 2006

The following table discloses certain finah@dormation for the periods presented, expressadrms of dollars, dollar change, percentage
change and as a percentage of total revenue (ilomsi.

% of Total
Change Revenue
2007 2006 $ % 2007 2006
Revenues
Product revenue, n $ 339t $ 333.C $ 6.2 1.9% 76.(% 78.8%
Service fee revent 74.5 67.1 7.4 11.1% 16.7% 15.£%
Pas-through revenu 32.¢ 22.¢ 9.¢ 43.4% 7.3% 5.4%
Total net revenue 446.¢ 423.% 23.t 5.6% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of Revenue
Cost of product revent 313.¢ 311. 2.4 0.8% 92.4%(1) 93.4%(1)
Cost of service fee reven 53.2 49.2 4.1 8.2% 71.7%(2) 73.5%(2)
Pas-through cost of revent 32.¢ 22.¢ 9.¢ 43.4% 100.(%(3) 100.0%(3)
Total cost of revenue 400.( 383.€ 16.4 4.3% 89.5% 90.€%
Product revenue gross prc 25.7 21.¢ 3.8 17.2% 7.6%(1) 6.6%(1)
Service fee gross prof 21.1 17.¢ 3.2 18.7% 28.2%(2) 26.5%(2)
Pas-through gross profi — — — —% —%(3) —%(3)
Total gross profi 46.¢ 39.7 7.1 17.%% 10.5% 9.4%
Operating Expense 45.C 50.¢ (5.9 (11.6% 10.1% 12.(%
Income (loss) from operatiol 1.8 (11.2) 13.C 115.6% 0.4% (2.60%
Interest expense, n 2.4 2.1 0.2 10.% 0.5% (0.5)%
Income (loss) before income ta: (0.6) (13.9) 12.7 (95.6% (0.2)% (3.)%
Income tax expense, r 0.8 1.2 0.4 30.8% 0.3% 0.3%
Net income (loss $ (14 $ (14.5) $ 13.1 90.5% (0.9% (3.9%

(1) Represents the percent of Product revenue
(2) Represents the percent of Service fee reve
(3) Represents the percent of F-through revenue
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Product Revenue, netCOST product revenue was $104.1 million in 20077.8% increase as compared to $88.3 million irptier year.
Fiscal 2007 includes a full year of eCOST actids/compared to eleven months in 2006 followingatteuisition of eCOST in February 2006.

Supplies Distributors product revenue of $23%illion decreased $9.6 million, or 3.9% in 20@&7campared to the prior year. This decrease
was primarily due to the decreased sales voluneedéin products as a result of improvement inptteelucts’ useful lives, which slowed
consumer’s demand for replenishment, the impafareign currency fluctuations which created alt¢ineapurchasing channels for certain
customers, and incremental vendor promotion agtiai2006, which did not occur in 2007.

Service Fee Revenud@he increase in service fee revenue for the gaded December 31, 2007 reflects the favorable étrfpam new
clients that were added late in calendar year 20@bincreased project activity in 2007 as comp&e2D06. The change in service fee reve
excluding pass-through revenue, is shown belowi(l#ns):

Year ended December 31, 2C $ 67.1
New service contract relationships, including daertacremental projects under new contr¢ 6.€
Change in existing client service fees and ceitairemental projects with existing clier 34
Terminated clients not included in 2007 reve (2.9

Year ended December 31, 2C $ 74t

Service fee revenue for the year ended DeceB1he2007 included approximately $4.2 million ee§ earned from client contracts
terminated during 2007.

Cost of Product Revenu€ost of product revenue for year ended Decembe2@17 includes a full year of activity for eCOSTcasnpared
to eleven months in 2006 following the acquisitaireCOST in February 2006. The gross margin for 8C@as $8.9 million or 8.6% of
product revenue in 2007 and $4.2 million or 4.8%mfduct revenue during 2006. Gross margin for eC@&the period ended December 31,
2006 included elevated levels of fraudulent creditd chargeback activity, an increased provisiorekzess and obsolete inventory and the
impact of a loss applicable to a sales transaetitina former eCOST customer. In addition, grossgimafor eCOST increased from 2006 due
to improved product pricing controls, freight iatiives and increased sales of higher margin prativatigh virtual warehouse agreements with
its vendors.

Supplies Distributors cost of product revedeereased by $8.8 million, or 3.8%, to $218.6 wrillin 2007, primarily as a result of reduced
product sales. The resulting gross profit margis %6.7 million or 7.1% of product revenue for yfear ended December 31, 2007 and
$17.7 million or 7.2% of product revenue for 2006e gross profit margin for the 2007 and 2006 ghrimclude certain incremental inventory
cost reductions.

Cost of Service Fee Revenukhe increase in gross profit as a percentagerofce fees to 28.3% in 2007 from 26.5% in 2006 was
primarily due to improved cost controls and prodlitst on certain clients and additional higher marglient project activity compared to 20!

Operating ExpensesOperating expenses for the year ended Decembh@08Y include a full year of activity for eCOSTa@mmnpared to
only eleven months of activity in the year ended@&meber 31, 2006 following the acquisition of eCO8TFebruary 2006. eCOST'’s operating
expenses declined during 2007 by $8.0 million asmared to the prior year primarily due to the zslbn of savings through the reduction of
certain advertising and overhead expenses, redueeger and integration related expenses, changegjiorate infrastructure expenses and
operating efficiencies attained as a result ofd@©ST integration.

Operating expenses in 2006 also include agildchpairment charge of $3.5 million resultingofn the annual analysis pursuant to
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No, Giibdwill and Other Intangible Assets. Under tmsilysis, we determined that the
carrying value of goodwill exceeded the fair valwbjch resulted in a $3.5 million non-cash writé-of goodwill.
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Excluding eCOST, operating expenses were $3#libn, or 9.5% of total net revenues in the 2@@fiod and $30.6 million, or 9.1% of
total net revenues in the comparable prior yeapgeil he increase in operating expenses was piiyriue to increased facility and personnel
related expenses partially offset by the favoraleact of exchange rates on intercompany accownrtsglthe 2007 period.

Income TaxedlNe recorded a tax provision associated primarihwiate income taxes and our subsidiary SupplissiButors’ Canadian
and European operations. A valuation allowancepragided for the majority of our net deferred tasets as of December 31, 2007, whict
primarily related to our net operating loss carrwfards and certain foreign deferred tax assets.

Supplies Distributors and its Subsidiaries

Supplies Distributors and its subsidiariesasctaster distributors of various IPS and othedyets and, pursuant to a transaction
management services agreement between us and &upjgiributors, we provide transaction manageraedtfulfilment services to Supplies
Distributors and its subsidiaries. In addition to equity investment in Supplies Distributors, veeé also provided Supplies Distributors wi
subordinated loan that, as of December 31, 20@8ahautstanding balance of $5.5 million.

Supplies Distributors has paid us dividend$30 million, $2.4 million and $3.9 million in 2802007 and 2006, respectively. Supplies
Distributors has received lender approval to pagivglends of approximately $2.4 million in 2009ydsto reduce its subordinated debt to us by
$0.5 million, but pursuant to the terms of its aneh credit agreements, is restricted from payimthér cash dividends without the prior
approval of its lenders. In addition, no distrilutimay be made if, after giving effect thereto, [@igs Distributors or its subsidiaries be in
noncompliance with its financial covenants undecitrrent facilities.

eCOST and its Subsidiaries

eCOST is a multi-category online discountitetaf new, “close-out” and recertified brand-namerchandise, selling products primarily to
customers in the United States. As of Decembe3028, we have advanced $15.3 million to eCOST ppstt its operations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Net cash provided by operating activities $8%5 million for the year ended December 31, 2088 @rimarily resulted from cash income
before working capital changes of $9.1 million,iacrease in accounts payable, accrued expensestladiabilities of $5.3 million, a decree
in accounts receivable of $3.0 million and a deseaa restricted cash of $0.3 million, partiallysaft by an increase in prepaid expenses, other
receivables and other assets of $5.0 million anithenease in inventories of $3.2 million.

Net cash provided by operating activities &<} million for the year ended December 31, 208 @rimarily resulted from cash income
before working capital changes of $8.6 million faly offset by working capital changes consistofga decrease in inventories of $2.3 milli
a decrease in prepaid expenses, other receivaidestlaer assets of $2.1 million and a decreasedaumts receivable of $2.1 million, partially
offset by a decrease in accounts payable, accixmzhsees and other liabilities of $9.4 million priharelated to the change in vendor
financing payables.

Net cash used in investing activities for ykears ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 totalech#ibién and $3.7 million, respectively,
primarily resulting from capital expenditures.

Capital expenditures have historically corgigbrimarily of additions to upgrade our managenigormation systems and general
expansion of our facilities, both domestic and ifgne We expect to incur capital expenditures topsupnew contracts and anticipated future
growth opportunities. Based on our current cliamgibess activity and our targeted growth plansamticipate our total investment in upgrades
and additions to facilities and information tectowy services for the upcoming twelve months willdpproximately $3 million to $5 million,
although additional capital expenditures may beessary to support the infrastructure requiremehtew clients.
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To maintain our current operating cash positioppgion of these expenditures may be financed tjinalebt, operating or capital leases or
additional equity. We may elect to modify or dedgportion of such anticipated investments in thenéthat we do not achieve the revenue
necessary to support such investments.

Net cash used in financing activities was apipnately $2.1 million for the year ended DecemB&r 2008, primarily representing payments
on capital leases.

Net cash used in financing activities was apipnately $3.1 million for the year ended Decem®&r 2007, primarily representing
$2.2 million of payments on capital leases and $dillion of payments on debt partially offset bylecrease in restricted cash of $0.8 million.

Our liquidity has been negatively impactecassult of the merger with eCOST. Since the mee@OST has experienced a net use of
primarily due to operating losses. As a resulthaee had to support eCOST’s cash needs with theofjoaducing operating losses. The
amount of further cash needed to support eCOSTatipes will depend upon the financing availablevai as eCOST'’s ability to improve its
financial results. eCOST’s results, excluding tmpact of any non-cash impairment charges, imprav&)07 and 2008 and we currently
expect continued improvement as a result of efforiacrease sales, improve product mix and furiimrove operational efficiencies.

Our liquidity may also be negatively impactgdan expected decline in service fee revenueatieetcurrent general economic decline as
well as the nonrenewal of a large contract wittagency of the U.S. government and certain othenwdi To help minimize the impact of lov
service fee revenue we have implemented certaisunes that reduced variable costs and expenseasdeployed existing infrastructure to
other client activities. No assurance can be gthaha further decline in service fee revenue, hdytbose noted above, will not have a material
adverse effect upon our business, financial camlivir results of operations.

In June 2008, our Board of Directors authatiael-for4.7 Reverse Split to reduce the number of outstansihares of common stock. Th
was no impact on the number of authorized sharéseostated par value of our common stock as dtrefsiine reverse stock split. All share ¢
per share amounts for common stock, warrants amolf siptions have been restated to reflect the RBev@plit on a retro-active basis.

During the year ended December 31, 2008, aukiwg capital decreased to $21.4 million from $aillion at December 31, 2007. To
obtain additional financing in the future, in adulit to our current cash position, we plan to evi@warious financing alternatives including the
sale of equity, utilizing capital or operating leasborrowing under our credit facilities, expamgdaur current credit facilities, entering into new
debt agreements or transferring to third-partipsrgion of our subordinated loan balance due fraqppies Distributors. In conjunction with
certain of these alternatives, we may be requivgatdvide certain letters of credit to secure tharsangements. No assurances can be give
we will be successful in obtaining any additioriabhcing or the terms thereof. We currently belithed our cash position, financing available
under our credit facilities and funds generatedhfaperations (including targeted cost reductiofeted to the nonrenewal of our U.S.
government contract) will satisfy our presently mooperating cash needs, our working capital apitaleexpenditure requirements, our
current debt and lease obligations, and additiwzads to our subsidiaries Supplies Distributors @8@ST, if necessary, for at least the next
twelve months.

Recently, the credit markets and the finansgalices industry have been experiencing a pefieshprecedented turmoil and upheaval
characterized by the bankruptcy, failure, collapssale of various financial institutions and ampretedented level of intervention from the
United States and foreign governments. While thienate outcome of these events cannot be predittteg, may have a material adverse effect
on our liquidity, financial condition, results operations and our ability to renew our credit fisieis.

The following is a schedule of our total caatual cash obligations, which is comprised of apeg leases, debt, vendor financing and
capital leases (including interest), as of Decen¥ie008 (in millions):
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Payments Due By Peric

Less thar 1-3 3-5 More thar
Total 1 Year Years Years 5 Years

Contractual Obligation
Debt and vendor financir $64,68: $60,94- $ 3,371 $ 367 $ —
Capital lease obligatior 3,521 1,96¢ 1,47¢ 82 —
Operating lease 21,96¢ 8,34: 10,67« 2,77( 177
Total $90,17: $71,25¢ $15,52: $ 3,21¢ $ 177

In support of certain debt instruments andésaas of December 31, 2008, we had $2.0 milli@ash restricted for repayment to lender:
addition, as described above, we have provideadtesllized guarantees to secure the repaymenttafrcef our subsidiaries’ credit facilities.
Many of these facilities include both financial amsh-financial covenants, and also include cro$auleprovisions applicable to other credit
facilities and agreements. These covenants inchidenum levels of net worth for the individual bower subsidiaries and restrictions on the
ability of the borrower subsidiaries to advanced&ito other borrower subsidiaries. As a resuis, [tossible for one or more of these borrower
subsidiaries to fail to meet their respective carda even if another borrower subsidiary othenhize available excess funds which, if not
restricted, could be used to cure the default.hEoeixtent we fail to comply with our debt covenasluding the monthly financial covenant
requirements and our required level of shareholaepsity, and the lenders accelerate the repaymwicthe credit facility obligations, we would
be required to repay all amounts outstanding threteu In particular, in the event eCOST is unablmtrease its revenue and/or gross profit
from its present levels it may fail to comply withe or more of the financial covenants requiredeuritd working capital line of credit. In such
event, absent a waiver, the working capital lendauld be entitled to accelerate all amounts outitanthereunder and exercise all other rights
and remedies, including sale of collateral and paynunder our parent guaranty. A requirement telacate the repayment of the credit fac
obligations would have a material adverse impaaumfinancial condition and results of operatiohg can provide no assurance that we will
have the financial ability to repay all of suchightions. As of December 31, 2008, we were in céemgk with all debt covenants. We do not
have any other material financial commitments,@ltth future client contracts may require capitgdenditures and lease commitments to
support the services provided to such clients.

In the future, we may attempt to acquire oth#sinesses or seek an equity or strategic parggnerate capital or expand our services or
capabilities in connection with our efforts to growr business. Acquisitions involve certain riskel ancertainties and may require additional
financing. Therefore, we can give no assurance regpect to whether we will be successful in idgimtg businesses to acquire or an equity or
strategic partner, whether we or they will be dblebtain financing to complete a transaction, bether we or they will be successful in
operating the acquired business.

To finance their distribution of IPS producssipplies Distributors and its subsidiaries hawatsterm credit facilities with IBM Credit LLC
(“IBM Credit”) and IBM Belgium Financial ServicesA (“IBM Belgium”). We have provided a collateraéid guaranty to secure the
repayment of these credit facilities. These asased credit facilities provide financing for up®80.5 million and up to 16.0 million Euros
(approximately $22.3 million at December 31, 20@&j IBM Credit and IBM Belgium, respectively. Theagreements expire in March 2010.

Supplies Distributors also has a loan andrigcagreement with Wachovia Bank, N.A. (“Wachovi&3 provide financing for up to
$25 million of eligible accounts receivables in theited States and Canada. The Wachovia facilipires on the earlier of March 2011 or the
date on which the parties to the IPS master digivibagreement no longer operate under the terragalf agreement and/or IPS no longer
supplies products pursuant to such agreement.

Supplies Distributors’ European subsidiary &dactoring agreement with Fortis Commercial FoeaN.V. (“Fortis”) to provide factoring
for up to 7.5 million Euros (approximately $10.4llinh at December 31, 2008) of eligible accountseieables through March 2010.

These credit facilities contain cross defaultvisions, various restrictions upon the abilifySoipplies Distributors and its subsidiaries to,
among other things, merge, consolidate, sell assets indebtedness, make loans, investments aypieh@nts to related parties (including
entities directly or indirectly owned by PFSwebg.)nprovide guarantees, make investments and |péedge assets, make changes to capital
stock ownership structure and pay dividends, atagdiinancial covenants, such as cash flow froerafions, annualized revenue to working

50




Table of Contents

capital, net profit after tax to revenue, minimuet worth and total liabilities to tangible net wras defined, and are secured by all of the
assets of Supplies Distributors, as well as a toldized guaranty of PFSweb. Additionally, we squired to maintain a subordinated loan to
Supplies Distributors of no less than $5.0 milliorgintain restricted cash of less than $5.0 milaod are restricted with regard to transactions
with related parties, indebtedness and changesyitat stock ownership structure and a minimumelhalders’ equity of at least $18.0 million.
Furthermore, we are obligated to repay any adrance made to Supplies Distributors or its sudsés under these facilities if they are un

to do so. We have also provided a guarantee aflitigations of Supplies Distributors and its subzgiés to IBM and IPS, excluding the trade
payables that are financed by IBM credit.

Our PFS subsidiary has entered into a LoanSaudirity Agreement (“Agreement”) with Comerica R4fComerica”), which provides for
up to $10.0 million of eligible accounts receivabfencing through March 2010. We entered this &grent to supplement our existing cash
position, and provide funding for our current antufe operations, including our targeted growthe Rlgreement contains cross default
provisions, various restrictions upon our abilily among other things, merge, consolidate, seditasgicur indebtedness, make loans and
payments to subsidiaries, affiliates and relatetigg(including entities directly or indirectly e&d by PFSweb, Inc.), make investments and
loans, pledge assets, make changes to capital gtaodrship structure, as well as financial covenafa minimum tangible net worth of
$20 million, as defined, and a minimum liquidityica as defined. The Agreement also limits PFSligttio increase the subordinated loan to
Supplies Distributors to no more than $6.5 millaowd permits PFS to advance incremental amountsdaiutbj certain cash inflows to PFS, as
defined, to certain of its subsidiaries and/orliafis, including eCOST. The Agreement is secusedlbof the assets of PFS, as well as a
guarantee of PFSweb.

eCOST currently has an asset-based line dftdeeility of up to $7.5 million with Wachovia, lich is collateralized by substantially all of
eCOST’s assets and expires in May 2011. Borrowimgier the facility are limited to a percentageldilkle accounts receivable and letter of
credit availability is limited to a percentage ataunts receivable and inventory. As of DecembeB08, eCOST had $1.1 million of letters
of credit outstanding and $2.0 million of availabhkedit under this facility. The credit facilitysgicts eCOST's ability to, among other things,
merge, consolidate, sell assets, incur indebtednesee loans, investments and payments to subigigiaffiliates and related parties, make
investments and loans, pledge assets, make chamgapital stock ownership structure, as well asr@mum tangible net worth of $0, as
defined. PFSweb has guaranteed all current andefatoligations of eCOST under this line of credit.

In 2004, we incurred more than $5 million apital expenditures to support incremental busifress a distribution facility in Southaven,
MS. We financed a significant portion of these exgiures through a Loan Agreement with the MispigsBusiness Finance Corporation (the
“MBFC”) pursuant to which the MBFC issued $5 mitlidBFC Taxable Variable Rate Demand Limited ObligatRevenue Bonds,

Series 2004 (Priority Fulfillment Services, Incofect) (the “Bonds”). The MBFC loaned us the prateef the Bonds for the purpose of
financing the acquisition and installation of equgnt, machinery and related assets located in outh&ven, Mississippi distribution facility.
The primary source of repayment of the Bonds &tt@i of credit (the “Letter of Credit”) in the trdl face amount of $5.1 million issued by
Comerica pursuant to a Reimbursement Agreementdeetws and Comerica under which we are obligatpdydo Comerica all amounts
drawn under the Letter of Credit. The Letter of ditdas a maturity date of April 2010 at which tinfenot renewed or replaced, will result ir
draw on the undrawn face amount thereof. The amauwtstanding on the Bonds as of December 31, 2088.2 million. Our obligations und
the Reimbursement Agreement are secured by suladitaat! of the assets of our PFS subsidiary, udihg restricted cash of $1.5 million an
Company parent guarantee.

In June 2006, we entered into a Securitiestrige Agreement with certain institutional investora private placement transaction pursuant
to which we issued and sold shares of our commmrksesulting in net proceeds of $4.8 million. Wivanced the net proceeds to eCOST to
support its operating requirements.

To the extent we fail to comply with the varfodebt covenants described above, and the leadeeterate the repayment of the credit
facility obligations, we would be required to replamounts outstanding thereunder. Any requirdrteeaccelerate the repayment of the ci
facility obligations would have a material adveirs@act on our financial condition and results oégiions. We can provide no assurance that
we will have the financial ability to repay all sfich obligations. As of December 31, 2008, we irmmpliance with all debt covenants.
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eCOST has historically incurred significaneoating losses and used cash to fund its operatfana result, we have been required to invest
cash to fund eCOST’s operations, which we may eailile to continue to do without approval from lemders. The amount of further cash
needed to support eCOST operations depends updimémeing available under its credit line as vadleCOST’s ability to improve its
financial results. Through March 31, 2009, we hasteanced $15.3 million to eCOST to fund eCOST $idmv requirements and have lender
approval to advance incremental amounts subjemrain cash in flows to PFS, as defined, to ceméiour subsidiaries and/or affiliates,
including eCOST. In the event we need to advaniédu cash to eCOST, we may be required to seetoaalfrom our lenders to provide st
funds. We can provide no assurance that we wiBivecsuch approval from our lenders or any termsooditions required by our lenders to
obtain such approval. In addition, PFSweb has pexvia guaranty of eCOST’s bank line of credit agrdain of eCOST's vendor trade
payables.

We receive municipal tax abatements in celftaiations. During 2004 we received notice fromniipality that we did not satisfy certain
criteria necessary to maintain the abatements elcelber 2006 we received notice that the munieip#dority planned to make an adjustment
to our tax abatement. We have disputed the adjusirbat if the dispute is not resolved favorablydisional property taxes of approximately
$1.7 million could be assessed against us.

On July 25, 2007 a purported class action lgvesntitledDarral Frank and Joseph F. Keeley, Jr. v. PC M#lk. dba eCOST.com and
eCOST.com, Inavas filed in the Superior Court of California, LAageles County. The purported class consists affailrrent and former
sales representatives who worked for the defendia@slifornia from July 24, 2003 through July 2907. The lawsuit alleges that the
defendants failed to pay overtime compensationiatetlest thereon, failed to timely pay compensatoterminated employees and failed to
provide meal and rest periods, all in violatiortted California Labor Code and Business and PrasassCode. In December 2008, the matter
was settled for $0.1million.

Inventory Management

We manage our inventories held for sale bynta&iing sufficient quantities of product to acheehigh order fill rates while at the same time
maximizing inventory turnover rates. Inventory ledas will fluctuate as we add new product linesrdauce the risk of loss due to supplier
price reductions, our master distributor agreementyell as certain vendor agreements in our eC@fSiness, provide for price protection
under which we receive credits if the supplier losverices on previously purchased inventory.

Seasonality

The seasonality of our service fee businedgjigndent upon the seasonality of our clidmtsiness and sales of their products. Accordi
our management must rely upon the projections othents in assessing quarterly variability. Wdidee that with our current client mix and
their current business volumes, our run rate serfd@e business activity will be at its lowest ie tjuarter ended March 31. We anticipate that
our Supplies Distributors product revenue will lighlest during the quarter ended December 31. O@SIChusiness is moderately seasonal,
reflecting the general pattern of peak sales ferr#tail industry during the holiday shopping seaSypically, a larger portion of our eCOST
revenues occur during the fourth fiscal quarter.bkeve that our historical revenue growth makeifiicult to predict the effect of
seasonality on our future revenues and resultpefations

We believe that results of operations for artprly period may not be indicative of the resfdisany other quarter or for the full year.

Inflation

Management believes that inflation has notdathterial effect on our operations.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 155ir Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”). SFAS 157 fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and expandsld&ges about fair value measurements. In Febr2@0@, the FASB issued FASB Staff
Position (“FSP”) 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB &tment
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No. 157, which delays the effective date of SFAS 157rfonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilitiescept those that are recognized or
disclosed at fair value on a recurring basis, astlannually, until fiscal years beginning aftevBimber 15, 2008, and interim periods within
those fiscal years. SFAS 157 is effective for figears beginning after November 15, 2007 and vaptedi SFAS 157 for financial assets and
liabilities on January 1, 2008, with no materiapimet to our consolidated financial statements. dapted fair value measurement treatmen
nonfinancial assets and liabilities on January0D? which did not have a material impact.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statementl§8,The Fair Value Option For Financial Assets and Fiogl Liabilities. This new
standard allows companies to elect to measurefgakbinancial instruments and warranty and insaeacontracts at fair value on a contract-
by-contract basis, with changes in fair value rexogd in earnings in each reporting period. The gamy did not elect the fair value option
under this Statement.

In December 2007, the FASB issued StatemenflKbR,Business Combinationsand Statement No. 16Rpncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendmeAR® No. 51 Statement No. 141R modified the accounting asdldsure requirements
business combinations and broadens the scope pfé@®us standard to apply to all transactionsliich one entity obtains control over
another business. Statement No. 160 establishesoswunting and reporting standards for noncomiginterests in subsidiaries. We will be
required to apply the provisions of the new staddgl@n the first quarter of 2009. The impact of stistement on our financial statements is
expected to be immaterial.

In December 2007, the SEC issued Staff ActtogBulletin No. 110 (“SAB 110"). SAB 110 permit®mpanies to continue to use the
simplified method, under certain circumstancegstimating the expected term of “plain vanilla” iops beyond December 31, 2007. SAB 110
updates guidance provide in SAB 107 that previostdyed that the Staff would not expect a companyse the simplified method for share
option grants after December 31, 2007. We will curg to use the simplified method until we havdisigt historical exercise data to provide
a reasonable basis upon which to estimate the tegberm of its options.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. 14D8termination of the Useful Life of Intangible Ass€‘FSP No. 142-3"). This guidance is
intended to improve the consistency between thilkfe of a recognized intangible asset under SAXo. 142 Goodwill and Other Intangib
Assety(“SFAS No. 142"), and the period of expected cdstv$ used to measure the fair value of the assi#ruBFAS No. 141(R) when the
underlying arrangement includes renewal or extensfderms that would require substantial costsesult in a material modification to the
asset upon renewal or extension. Companies estignéte useful life of a recognized intangible assest now consider their historical
experience in renewing or extending similar arrangets or, in the absence of historical experienuest consider assumptions that market
participants would use about renewal or extensgoadjusted for SFAS No. 142’s entity-specific fastd-SP No 142-3 is effective beginning
January 1, 2009 and will be applied prospectivelintangible assets acquired after the effectite.d&e are currently assessing the impact
adoption will have on our consolidated financialtsiments.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements have lpeepared in conformity with accounting principtemerally accepted in the U.S. These
accounting principles require us to make estimatesassumptions that affect the reported amourdssats and liabilities at the date of our
financial statements and the reported amountsvefinges and expenses during the reporting periodeWie do not believe the reported
amounts would be materially different, applicatafithese policies involves the exercise of judgnserd the use of assumptions as to future
uncertainties and, as a result, actual resultsdoditfier from these estimates. If there is a siigaifit unfavorable change to current conditions, it
would likely result in a material adverse impacbto business, operating results and financial itimmd We evaluate our estimates and
assumptions on an ongoing basis. We base our ¢stimaa experience and on various other assumgtiansve believe to be reasonable under
the circumstances. All of our significant accougtpolicies are disclosed in the notes to our cadatgd financial statements.

We have defined a critical accounting estinzet@ne that is both important to the portrayalwffinancial condition and results of
operations and requires us to make difficult, stibje or complex judgments or estimates about ettt are uncertain. During the past tt
fiscal years, we have not made any material chaimg@scounting methodology used to establish tiiealaccounting estimates discussed
below. The following represent certain critical aenting policies that require us to exercise owgitess judgment or make significant
estimates. In addition, there are other items withir consolidated financial statements that regestimation but are not deemed critical as
defined above.
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Product Revenue Recognition

We adhere to the revised guidelines and piesiof sales recognition described in Staff AcdmgnBulletin No. 104, Revenue Recogniti
Under SAB 104, sales are recognized when theatitterisk of loss are passed to the customer, thgersuasive evidence of an arrangement
for the sale, delivery has occurred and/or servica® been rendered, the sales price is fixedterm@able and collectability is reasonably
assured. Under these guidelines, we recognize arityapf our sales, including revenue from prodsakes and gross outbound shipping and
handling charges, upon receipt of the product leyctiistomer. For all product sales shipped dirdotiyn suppliers to customers, we are the
primary obligor in the transaction, and we takke ti6 the products sold upon shipment, bear cresif and bear inventory risk for returned
products that are not successfully returned to lsensp therefore, we recognize these revenuesoaisggales amounts.

Sales are reported net of estimated returdsalowances, credit card fraud and chargebacksf alhich are estimated based upon histol
information such as return and redemption rated feaud and chargeback experience. Managementaisiders any other current
information and trends in making estimates. If atsales returns, allowances, discounts and ctadit fraud and chargebacks are greater than
estimated by management, additional expense maycheed.

Cost of Service Fee Revenue

Our service fee revenue primarily relatesuodistribution services and order management/ousta@are services. Distribution services
relate primarily to inventory management, prodecteiving, warehousing and fulfillment (i.e., picgirpacking and shipping). Order
management/customer care services relate printartBking customer orders for our clients’ produgtsvarious channels such as telephone
call-center, electronic or facsimile. These servialso entail addressing customer questions refaterters, as well as cross-selling/up-selling
activities.

Our cost of service fee revenue representsdbleto provide the services described above,gifyncompensation and related expenses and
other fixed and variable expenses directly reléeproviding the services. These include certaitupancy and information technology costs
and depreciation and amortization expenses. Cesfdlrese costs are allocated from general andrasdirédtive expenses. For these allocations,
we estimate the amount of direct expenses basadcbantspecific number of transactions processed. We\mlerr allocation methodology
reasonable, however a change in assumptions wesldt in a different gross profit in our statemehbperations, yet no change to the resu
net income or loss.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The determination of the collectability of ammés due from our customers requires us to usmatds and make judgments regarding future
events and trends, including monitoring our cust@mgayment history and current credit worthinesdeétermine that collectability is
reasonably assured, as well as consideration aibrll business climate in which our clients andtomers operate. Inherently, these
uncertainties require us to make frequent judgmantsestimates regarding our clients and custonabikty to pay amounts due us to
determine the appropriate amount of valuation aloges required for doubtful accounts. Provisionglfmubtful accounts are recorded when it
becomes evident that the client or customer willmake the required payments at either contraclualdates or in the future.

With our master distributor and online discoretail businesses, we also maintain an allowdmcancollectible vendor receivables, which
arise from inventory returns to vendors, vendoetetand advertising programs, price protectionsather promotions. We determine the
sufficiency of the vendor receivable allowance blaggon various factors, including payment histémnounts received from vendors may v
from amounts recorded because of potential non-Gange with certain elements of vendor programsulf estimated allowances for
uncollectible accounts or vendor receivables subesetty prove insufficient, additional allowance rbayrequired.

Allowances for doubtful accounts totaled $thillion and $1.5 million at December 31, 2008 a2, respectively. We believe that our
allowances for doubtful accounts are adequate wercanticipated losses under current conditiongidwer, uncertainties regarding changes in
the financial condition of our clients and customer
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either adverse or positive, could impact the amamalt timing of any additional provisions for dowlbthccounts that may be required.
Inventory Reserves

Inventories (merchandise, held for resalepfllhich are finished goods) are stated at theetoof weighted average cost or market. Sup
Distributors and its subsidiaries assume respditgifor slow-moving inventory under certain mastistributor agreements, subject to certain
termination rights, but have the right to returngarct rendered obsolete by engineering changeefased. eCOST assumes responsibility for
slow-moving inventory but has limited rights toust product based on specific inventory agreemé&kesreview inventory for impairment on
a periodic basis, but at a minimum, annually. Recalility of the inventory on hand is measured bmparison of the carrying value of the
inventory to the fair value of the inventory. Tijuires us to record provisions and maintain xesefor excess or obsolete inventory. To
determine these reserve amounts, we regularlyweinieentory quantities on hand and compare thesstonates of future product demand
market conditions. These estimates and forecaséseéntly include uncertainties and require us t&erjadgments regarding potential
outcomes. At both December 31, 2008 and 2007, llwance for slow moving inventory was $2.1 millidiWe believe that our reserves are
adequate to cover anticipated losses under cwrogntitions. Significant or unanticipated changesupestimates and forecasts, either adverse
or positive, could impact the amount and timin@ny additional provisions for excess or obsoleteirtory that may be required.

Income Taxes

The liability method is used for determiningr aincome taxes, under which current and defemgdiabilities and assets are recorded in
accordance with enacted tax laws and rates. Uhientethod, the amounts of deferred tax liabilidesl assets at the end of each period are
determined using the tax rate expected to be éceffhen taxes are actually paid or recovered. tan allowances are established to reduce
deferred tax assets when it is more likely thanthat some portion or all of the deferred tax asgeil not be realized. In determining the need
for valuation allowances, we have considered andeniadgments and estimates regarding estimateteftaMable income. These estimates
judgments include some degree of uncertainty aad@és in these estimates and assumptions coultleerputo adjust the valuatic
allowances for our deferred tax assets. The ulémaalization of our deferred tax assets dependsegeneration of sufficient taxable income
in the applicable taxing jurisdictions. Although Wwelieve our estimates and judgments are reasqredileal results may differ, which could be
material.

As we operate in multiple countries, we argject to the jurisdiction of multiple domestic afodeign tax authorities. Determination of
taxable income in any jurisdiction requires theiptetation of the related tax laws and regulateams the use of estimates and assumptions
regarding significant future events such as thewarhdiming and character of deductions, permigsiblenue recognition methods under the
tax law and the sources and character of incomeandredits. Changes in tax laws, regulationgifpr currency exchange restrictions or our
level of operations or profitability in each taxipgisdiction could have an impact on the amounhobme taxes that we provide during any
given year.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets include property, intangésets, goodwill and certain other assets. We rjoakgnents and estimates in conjunction
with the carrying value of these assets, inclu@ingunts to be capitalized, depreciation and anaditiz methods and useful lives.
Additionally, we review long-lived assets for impaent whenever events or changes in circumstandésate that the carrying amount of an
asset may not be recoverable. We review goodwilifipairment at least annually. We record impairtriesses in the period in which we
determine that the carrying amount is not recoverd®ecoverability of assets to be held and usedkeiasured by a comparison of the carrying
amount of an asset to future net cash flows exgdotée generated by the asset. This may requite mske judgments regarding long-term
forecasts of our future revenues and costs retatéte assets subject to review. During the fogttarter of 2008 and 2006, we determined the
carrying values of the goodwill and intangible @ssesulting from our acquisition of eCOST were a@inpd, which resulted in an $11.8 million
write-off of goodwill and a $4.5 million write-offf intangible assets in 2008 and a $3.5 milliortevaff of goodwill in 2006.
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Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about MarkRisk

We are exposed to various market risks indgaditerest rates on our financial instruments faneign exchange rates.

Interest Rate Risk

Our interest rate risk relates to the outstanbalances on our inventory and working capitarcing agreements, taxable revenue bonds,
factoring agreement, and loan and security agreenfenthe financing of inventory, accounts recéilesand certain other receivables and
certain equipment, which amounted to $67.5 milkd®ecember 31, 2008. A 100 basis point movemeinténest rates would result in
approximately $0.3 million annualized increase ecréase in interest expense based on the outsigalance of these agreements at
December 31, 2008.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Currently, our foreign currency exchange rék is primarily limited to the Canadian Dollarcgathe Euro. In the future, our foreign curre
exchange risk may also include other currenciefiGgipe to certain of our international operationte have and may continue, from time to
time, to employ derivative financial instrumentstanage our exposure to fluctuations in foreigmeney rates. To hedge our net investment
and intercompany payable or receivable balancés@ign operations, we may enter into forward coacseexchange contracts.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfinm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
PFSweb, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineet of PFSweb, Inc. (a Delaware corporatind)sabsidiaries as of December 31,
2008, and the related consolidated statementseriitipns, shareholders’ equity and comprehenss& nd cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2008. Our audit of the basic finarsteiements included the financial statement sdbedisted in the index appearing under
Item 15(a) (1). These financial statements andittacial statement schedules are the respongibilithe Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements and financial statement schedhased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversightq&@nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether the finatataiments are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawmewere we engaged to perform an audit of itgriratiecontrol over financial reporting. C
audit included consideration of internal controéofinancial reporting as a basis for designingitqu@cedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsaimopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aullibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audit provides a reasonable basis foopimion. In our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements referred to above preserlyfair all material respects, the financial positiof PFSweb, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2008, and the results of their opmratand their cash flows for the year ended Dece®he2008 in conformity with accountil
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica. Also in our opinion, the related fingalstatement schedules, when considered in
relation to the basic financial statements takea ahole, present fairly, in all material respethsg, information set forth therein.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 31, 2009
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
PFSweb, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineet of PFSweb, Inc. and subsidiaries as ofbeer 31, 2007, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, shareholkelguty and comprehensive income (loss), and €lasis for each of the years in the two-
year period ended December 31, 2007. In conneutithour audits of the consolidated financial sta¢aits, we also have audited finans
statement schedules | to Il. These consolidatexhfiral statements and financial statement scheduoéethe responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementdiaadcial statement schedules based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aHasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaenferred to above present fairly, in all mategapects, the financial position of PFSweb,
Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 {l@desults of their operations and their cash $léav each of the years in the twear periot
ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.Sggally accepted accounting principles. Also in opinion, the related financial statement
schedules, when considered in relation to the lmsisolidated financial statements taken as a whodsent fairly, in all material respects, the
information set forth therein.

/s KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 31, 2008, except as it relates to the revehsek split described in note 2, as to which tateds March 30, 2009

59




Table of Contents

PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share data)

December 31 December 31
2008 2007
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale $ 16,05( $ 14,27
Restricted cas 2,00¢ 2,021
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtfttounts of $980 and $1,483 at December 31,
and 2007, respective 44 54¢ 48,49
Inventories, net of reserves of $2,124 and $2,@&eaember 31, 2008 and 2007, respecti 47,18¢ 46,39:
Other receivable 13,07: 10,37:
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 3,80z 2,60¢
Total current asse 126,66 124,15¢
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, ne 12,10¢ 11,91¢
IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLES, net 961 5,82¢
GOODWILL 3,60z 15,36:
OTHER ASSET< 1,18¢ 911
Total asset $ 144,52: $ 158,17:
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of lon-term debt and capital lease obligatit $ 22,25 $ 22,23¢
Trade accounts payak 61,98¢ 56,97t
Accrued expense 21,054 22,43¢
Total current liabilities 105,29: 101,65:
LONG-TERM DEBT AND CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS, less currg portion 4,951 6,37¢
OTHER LIABILITIES 1,197 1,302
Total liabilities 111,43¢ 109,33:
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
SHAREHOLDERY EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value; 1,000,000 shargsorized; none issued and outstant — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value; 75,000,000 shart®azed; 9,935,095 and 9,909,401 shares isst
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively; and 9/846and 9,891,040 outstanding at Decembel
2008 and 2007, respective 10 10
Additional paic-in capital 92,72¢ 92,12
Accumulated defici (61,399 (45,739
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 1,82¢ 2,53¢
Treasury stock at cost, 18,361 she (85) (85)
Total shareholde’ equity 33,08¢ 48,84
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $ 144,52: $ 158,17:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktbessolidated financial statements.
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REVENUES:
Product revenue, n
Service fee revent
Pas-through revenu
Total revenue
COSTS OF REVENUES
Cost of product revent

PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(In thousands, except per share data)

Cost of service fee reven
Cost of pas-through revenu
Total costs of revenu

Gross profi

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, inclding stock base
compensation expense of $547, $764, and $899 iyetues ended December 31, 2008,
2007 and 2006, respective

MERGER INTEGRATION EXPENSE:!

AMORTIZATION OF IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLES

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSET IMPAIRMENT

Total operating expens:

Income (loss) from operatiol

INTEREST EXPENSE
INTEREST INCOME

Loss before income tax

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
NET LOSS

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic and Dilutec

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDINC

Basic and Dilutec

2008

$330,53:
85,40¢
35,90¢
451,84
305,09(
58,00¢
35,90¢
399,00«

52,83¢

49,07¢

80¢€
16,25(
66,12¢

(13,290)
1,62¢
(63)

(14,850
80¢%

$(15,655)

$ (156

9,90t

2007

$339,50(
74,48
32,82:
446,80.

313,83!
53,37¢
32,82:

400,03:

46,77(

44,05}
15C
80¢€

45,01
1,757
2,50¢

(163)

(585)
79¢

$ (1,389

$ (019

9,88¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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2006

$333,31:
67,05¢
22,88¢
423,25!

311,41°
49,27+
22,88¢
383,57.

39,67¢

45,18¢
1,49¢
74¢
3,501
50,94(

(11,269
2,171
(59
(13,376

1,15¢
$(14,530

$  (1.60)

9,09¢
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND
COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(In thousands, except share data)

Accumulated

Additional Other Total Comprehensive
Common Stock Paid-In Accumulated ~ Comprehensive Treasury Stock _ Shareholders’ Income
Shares Amount  Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Shares Amount Equity (Loss)
Balance, December 31,20 4,811,34. $ 5 % 58,75« $ (29,829 $ 1,08¢ 1836 $ (85 9% 29,93
Net loss — — — (14,530 — — — (14,530 $ (14,530)
Stock-based
compensation expen — — 89¢ — — — — 89¢
Employee stock purchase
plan 11,58 — 52 — — — — 52
Proceeds from exercise
options 5,931 — 16 — — — — 16
Issuance of common
stock 1,063,83I 1 4,84: — — — — 4,84
Shares issued for eCOS
acquisition 4,012,36:i 4 26,77¢ — — — — 26,77¢
Other comprehensive
income — foreign
currency translation
adjustmen — — — — 84¢€ — — 84¢€ 84¢€
Comprehensive los $ (13,689
Balance, December 31,20 9,905,05. $ 1C $ 91,33¢ $ (44359 $ 1,93( 1836 $ (85 9% 48,84(
Net loss — — — (1,389 — — — (1,38 $ (1,384
Stock-based
compensation expen — — 764 — — — — 764
Employee stock purchas
plan 3,852 — 18 — — — — 18
Proceeds from exercised
options 49¢ — — — — — — —

Other comprehensive
income — foreign
currency translation

adjustmen — — — — 604 — — 604 604

Comprehensive los $ 78C
Balance, December 31,20 9,909,40. $ 1C $ 92,12 $ (45,739 $ 2,53¢ 18,36 $ (89 % 48,84

Net loss — — — (15,65%) — — — (15,659 $ (15,65%)
Stock-based

compensation expen — — 547 — — — — 547
Employee stock purchase

plan 7,522 — 26 — — — — 26
Proceeds from exercise

options 18,17 — 34 — — — — 34

Other comprehensive lo
— foreign currency

translation adjustmel — — — — (70€) — — (70€) (709)
Comprehensive los $ (16,364
Balance, December 31,20 9,935,09! $ 1C $ 92,72¢ $ (61,39) $ 1,82¢ 1836 $ (85$% 33,08t

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(In thousands)

2008 2007 2006
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss $(15,65%) $ (1,389 $(14,530)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash plexviby operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 6,622 8,18( 7,47¢
Goodwill and intangible asset impairme 16,25( — 3,507
Loss on sale of asse 17 — 144
Provision for doubtful accoun 174 254 96C
Provision for excess and obsolete invent 1,48: 665 1,49t
Deferred income taxe (293 84 (14¢)
Stock-based compensation expel 547 764 89¢
Changes in operating assets and liabilil
Restricted cas 291 (299) 84t
Accounts receivable 3,02( 2,104 1,67
Inventories, ne (3,247) 2,261 2,85¢
Prepaid expenses, other receivables and othes: (5,031 2,13 (66)
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and otheritiied 5,27( (9,369 (2,627
Net cash provided by operating activit 9,451 5,39¢ 2,484
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property and equiprmr (5,759 (3,862) (3,979
Proceeds from sale of ass 117 — —
Payment for purchase of eCOST, net of cash acq — — (1,299
Decrease in restricted ca — 14t 893
Net cash used in investing activiti (5,637) (3,719 (4,389
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issuance of common s 60 19 4,917
Decrease (increase) in restricted c (279 78t (1,109
Payments on capital lease obligatit (1,790 (2,22t (1,509
Proceeds from (payments on) from debt, (41) (1,669 1,02¢
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi (2,050 3,09( 3,32¢
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENS 14 614 (45)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT 1,77¢ (799 1,38:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of peric 14,27: 15,06¢ 13,68:
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of perio $ 16,05( $14,27: $ 15,06¢
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Non-cash investing and financing activiti¢
Property and equipment acquired under capital & $ 584 $ 3,01¢ $ 2,30¢
Shares issued to acquire eCC $ — $ — $ 26,77¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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1. Overview

PFSweb, Inc. and its subsidiaries, including@ies Distributors, Inc, and eCOST.com, Inc.@kectively referred to as the “Company;”
“Supplies Distributors” refers to Supplies Distribts, Inc. and its subsidiaries; “eCOST" refere@OST.com, Inc.; and “PFSweb” refers to
PFSweb, Inc. and its subsidiaries excluding Supistributors and eCOST.

PFSweb Overviey

PFSweb is an international provider of intégdeeCommerce and business process outsourcirigesets major brand name companies
seeking to maximize their supply chain efficienc@sl to extend their traditional and e-commercisitives in the United States, Canada, and
Europe. PFSweb offers such services as professionalilting, technology collaboration, managed tve$ting and internet application
development, order management, web-enabled custmméact centers, customer relationship managerfieatcial services including billing
and collection services and working capital sohsionformation management, facilities and operatimanagement, kitting and assembly
services, and international fulfillment and distrtion services.

Supplies Distributors Overvie

Supplies Distributors, PFSweb and InfoPrinu8ons Company (“IPS”), a joint venture companyraal by Ricoh and International
Business Machines Corporation (“IBM”), have enteirgd master distributor agreements under whichpBep Distributors acts as a master
distributor of various products, primarily IPS pumd.

Supplies Distributors has obtained certaiarfiting (see Notes 3 and 4) that allows it to fureworking capital requirements for the sale of
primarily IPS products. Pursuant to the transaati@magement services agreements between PFSw&upplies Distributors, PFSweb
provides to Supplies Distributors transaction mamagnt and fulfillment services, such as managedhesting and maintenance, procurement
support, web-enabled customer contact center svizistomer relationship management, financiaices including billing and collection
services, information management and internatidisatibution services. Supplies Distributors doeshave its own sales force and relies upon
IPS’s sales force and product demand generatidvitaeg for its sale of IPS products. Supplies Bigitors sells its products in the United
States, Canada and Europe.

All of the agreements between PFSweb and &gpistributors were made in the context of ateelgarty relationship and were negotic
in the overall context of PFSweb’s and Suppliegribigtors’ arrangement with IPS. Although managenimsiieves that the terms of these
agreements are generally consistent with fair ntar&ieies, there can be no assurance that the mfiegged to or by each company under these
arrangements are not higher or lower than the pticat may be charged by, or to, unaffiliated tipiadgties for similar services.

eCOST Overview

eCOST is a multi-category online discountitetaf new, “close-out” and recertified brand-namerchandise, selling products primarily to
customers in the United States. eCOST offers ptsdocseveral merchandise categories, includingpders, networking, electronics and
entertainment, TV’s, plasmas and monitors, camamdscamcorders, memory and storage, “For the Hand sports and leisure. eCOST
carries products from leading manufacturers suchaay, JVC, Canon, Hewlett-Packard, Denon, Dysenn8eiser, Garmin, Panasonic,
Toshiba and Microsoft.

The Company liquidity has been negatively impacted as a tegithe merger with eCOST. Since the merger, eCO&Texperienced a
use of cash primarily due to operating losses. Assalt, the Company has had to support eCOSTIs masds with the goal of reducing losses.
The amount of additional cash needed to supportECaperations will depend upon the working capiguirements, bank financing
availability as well as eCOST'’s continued abilityimprove its financial results. Further advan@ee@OST may be limited by the Company’s
current cash and future cash flow and may be oéstriby the Company’s credit facility obligations.
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In the event eCOST is unable to increaseeitemue and/or gross profit from its present levietsay fail to comply with one or more of the
financial covenants required under its working tapine of credit. In such event, absent a waitlkee, working capital lender would be entitled
to accelerate all amounts outstanding thereundiegercise all other rights and remedies, includialg of collateral and demand for payment
under the Company parent guaranty. Any acceleratidghe repayment of the credit facilities wouldsea material adverse impact on the
Company'’s financial condition and results of opierat and no assurance can be given that the Compaulg have the financial ability to
repay all of such obligations.

Management currently believes eCOST will nieetCompany’s expectations related to improvedalprofitability. The Company has
reported improvement in eCOST'’s financial resuitsry 2007 and 2008, excluding the impact of any-nash impairment charges, and
currently expects continued improvement as a reddtforts to increase sales, improve product arig control operating costs, although there
can be no assurance that these future improvemahtse achieved. If eCOST does not meet expeatatithe Company currently anticipates
that it would be able to terminate or sublease eCOfacilities, liquidate remaining inventory thrglithe eCOST website and reduce certain
personnel related costs as needed so as to minanizenaterial impact upon the Company’s other segsne

Acquisition of eCOST

Effective February 1, 2006, a wholly-owned sidiary of PFSweb merged with and into eCOST, wifOST surviving the merger as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of PFSweb. Each of theaskand outstanding shares of common stock of eG@3& converted into one share of
common stock of the Company. In conjunction witl therger, the Company assumed certain warrantfopsdy issued to a former eCOST
warrant-holder, subject to the terms set fortheherwhich expired unexercised during 2008. Assallteof the merger, effective February 1,
2006, the Company began consolidating 100% of eCOf8Tancial position and results of operation®itite Company’s consolidated
financial statements. The following table presemigcted pro forma information, for comparativepgmses, assuming the acquisition had
occurred on January 1 for the period presenteduflitesd) (in thousands, except per share data):

Year Endec
2006
Net revenue $436,18
Net loss (16,120
Basic and diluted loss per shi (2.779)

The unaudited pro forma information does efiect operational and administrative cost savimgsch are referred to as synergies, that
management estimates may be achieved as a resluét nferger transaction, or other incremental dbstsmay be incurred as a direct result of
the merger transaction. The unaudited pro formaewsnues and pro forma net loss are not necesgatitative of the consolidated results of
operations for future periods or the results ofrapens that would have been realized had the Cagnpansolidated eCOST during the period
noted.

The transaction was accounted for using thieh@se method of accounting for business combinstad, accordingly, the results of
operations of eCOST have been included in the Cagip@onsolidated financial statements since the dhacquisition. For purposes of
computing the purchase price, the value of thewililon shares of the Compars/itommon stock issued was $6.67 per common shasedto
the average closing price of the Company’s comntockson NASDAQ for the period beginning two day&pto the consummation of the
merger and ending on the consummation of the mefdper following table summarizes the estimatedvalue of the assets acquired and
liabilities assumed as of February 1, 2006 (in Hamals):

Cash and restricted ca $ 1,05
Accounts receivable, n 5,72
Inventories 6,89:
Identifiable intangible: 7,38(
Property and equipme 47¢
Other asset 32¢
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Total identifiable assets acquir 21,85!
Trade accounts payat 8,24¢
Accrued expense 3,56(
Other liabilities 834
Total liabilities assume 12,64:
Net identifiable assets acquir 9,20¢
Estimated purchase pri 28,07¢
Goodwill acquirec $18,86¢

Purchase price for eCOST is as follows (irudands):

Number of shares of common stock iss 4,012
Multiplied by the Compar’s stock price $ 6.67
Share consideratic $26,77¢
Transaction cost 1,30(
Purchase pric $28,07¢

The above purchase price was allocated basedtomates of the fair values of assets acquinediabilities assumed.

The Company acquired eCOST because of thiegitebenefits expected to result from combiningd&T’s e-commerce platform with
PFSweb’s advanced technology and operational infretsire thereby providing the combined companylie enhanced ability to expand its
market share in the fast growing web commerce ntag8ueh benefits are the primary factors that ¢ouated to a purchase price that resulte
the recognition of goodwiill.

The excess of the purchase price ovefdihealue of the net identifiable assets acquagd liabilities assumed was allocated to gooc
and is included in the eCOST reportable segmendd@dl, which is not deductible for tax purposesnit being amortized but is subject to an
impairment test each year, using a fair-value-baggatoach pursuant to SFAS No. 142.

During the Company’s annual analysis of theyéag value of goodwill, the Company determined ttarrying value of goodwill exceeded
its fair value, which resulted in a non-cash waftéef goodwill of $11.8 million and $3.5 millionuding 2008 and 2006, respectively. The
Company performs its annual goodwill impairment tesof December 31. As a result of the declingtack price, the market capitalization
plus an implied control premium fell significanthelow the recorded value of its consolidated ne¢@sas of the testing date. In performing the
goodwill impairment test, the Company used curraatket capitalization, control premiums, discourtadh flows and other factors as the
evidence of fair value.

In connection with the goodwill impairmenttigie Company determined that certain of its iififile acquired intangible assets were
impaired. The determination was based on the cagryalues exceeding the future undiscounted casisfand fair value attributable to such
intangible assets. As a result, the Company redoadgon-cash impairment charge of $4.5 million migi2008, which represents the difference
between the estimated fair values of these loregt assets and their carrying values. Fair valvuere determined based upon market condit
the relief from royalty approach which utilized b&tow projections, and other factors.

There are no residual values for any of thangible assets subject to amortization acquirethgduhe eCOST acquisition. The Company is
amortizing the intangible assets acquired on agétrdine basis over their estimated remaining usk¥es. Definite lived intangible assets
acquired in the eCOST acquisition consist of (imuhands):

December 31, 200 December 31, 200
Fair Value a Accumulater Impairmen Net Carrying Accumulate: Net Carrying
Acquisition Amortizatior Charge Value Amortizatior Value
Trademark nam $ 4,63F $ (1,359 $ (2,756 $ 527 $ (889 $ 3,74i
Customer relationshiy 2,74¢ (1,01)) (1,739 — (66¢€) 2,07
Total definite lived intangible asse $  7,38( $ (2,369 $ (4,490 $ 527 $ (1,556 $ 5,824
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The estimated useful lives of the trademark@and customer relationships were originally 1&rgend 8 years, respectively, but have
since been reduced to 5 and 0 years, respectieshgining as of December 31, 2008.

Amortization expense for intangible assets $&8 million for the years ended December 31, 28082007 and $0.7 million in 2006.
Subsequent to the 2008 impairment charge, amaddizakpense for intangible assets is estimatea tagproximately $0.1 million annually for
each year through the period ending December 313.20

The Company incurred costs for operationagrdation and IT systems conversion activities egldb the acquisition of $0.2 million and
$1.5 million in the years ended December 31, 20@V2006, respectively. The Company incurred no sxgenses in 2008.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidatior
All intercompany accounts and transactionsHaeen eliminated in consolidation.

Investment in Affiliates

Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc. (“PFS”)veholly-owned subsidiary of PFSweb, has made adzaiw Supplies Distributors that are
evidenced by a Subordinated Demand Note (the “Slihated Note”). Under the terms of certain of ttmr@any’s debt facilities, the
outstanding balance of the Subordinated Note cammaicreased to more than $6.5 million or decrdésdower than $5.0 million without
prior approval of the Company’s lenders (see N8taad 4). As of December 31, 2008 and 2007, thetanding balance of the Subordinated
Note was $5.5 million and $6.0 million, respectivefhe Subordinate Note is eliminated in the Cony’'s consolidated financial statements.

PFS has also made advances to eCOST, whickgajgd $10.6 million and $7.9 million as of DecemB1, 2008 and 2007, respectively.
Certain terms of the Company’s debt facilities,yide that the total advances to eCOST may not $setlean $2.0 million without prior
approval of eCOST'’s lender. PFS has received tpeoapl of its lender to advance $0.5 million plosremental amounts subject to certain
cash inflows to PFS, as defined, to certain ofitissidiaries and/or affiliates, including eCOSTheékeded. PFSweb has also advanced eCOST
$4.7 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financialestegnts and related disclosures in conformity wéhegally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make judgments, estimateassumptions that affect the reported amountss#ta, liabilities, revenues and expe!
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilifié® recognition and allocation of certain revenaed operating expenses in these
consolidated financial statements also require gament estimates and assumptions. The Companyisa¢as and assumptions are
continually evaluated based on available inforrmaind experience. Because the use of estimatelsdseint in the financial reporting process,
actual results could differ from estimates.

Revenue and Cost Recognitic

Depending on the terms of the customer armaege, Supplies Distributors recognizes productmeeeand product cost either upon the
shipment of product to customers or when the custaeteives the product. Supplies Distributors pisrits customers to return product for
credit against other purchases, which include nstéor defective products (that Supplies Distribsitinen returns to the manufacturer) and
incorrect shipments. Supplies Distributors providesserve for estimated returns and allowance®#ears terms to its customers that it
believes are standard for its industry.

Freight costs billed to customers are refl@ete components of product revenue. Freight costsried are recorded as a component of cost
of goods sold.
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Under the master distributor agreements (s#te B), Supplies Distributors bills IPS for reimbaments of certain expenses, including: pass
through customer marketing programs, including teband coop funds; certain freight costs; direstxincurred in passing on any price
decreases offered by IPS to Supplies Distributoissa@ustomers to cover price protection and aerpecial bids; the cost of products provi
to replace defective product returned by custoraerd;certain other expenses as defined. Supplisiliditors records a receivable for these
reimbursable amounts as they are incurred withr@sponding reduction in either inventory or cdsprmduct revenue. Supplies Distributors
also reflects pass through customer marketing progras a reduction of product revenue and costadlugt revenue.

eCOST recognizes product revenue, net of astidhreturns, promotional discounts, credit caaddrand chargebacks, when both title and
risk of loss to the products has transferred tcctigomer, which eCOST has determined to occur ugoeipt of products by the customer.
eCOST generally requires payment by credit carcdhypacing an order, and to a lesser extent, giaetiit to business customers on normal
credit terms. eCOST permits its customers to redefiective product for credit against other purelsas

For product sales shipped directly from eCGS/Endors to end customers, eCOST records revenbiekated costs at the gross amounts
charged to the customer and paid to the vendodb@asan evaluation of the criteria outlined in EINB. 99-19Reporting Revenue Gross as a
Principal Versus Net as an Age. eCOST'’s evaluation is performed based on a nufiaoéors, including whether eCOST is the primary
obligor in the transaction, has latitude in estbiig prices and selecting suppliers, takes ttkné products sold upon shipment, bears credit
risk, and bears inventory risk for returned produbtt are not successfully returned to third-paugpliers. eCOST recognizes revenue on
extended warranties and other services for whighribt the primary obligor on a net basis.

The Company’s service fee revenue primarilgtes to its (1) distribution services, (2) ordearmagement/customer care services and (3) the
reimbursement of out-of-pocket and third-party exqes. The Company typically charges its servicedeenue on a cost-plus basis, a percent
of shipped revenue basis or a per transaction bmsib as a per item basis for fulfilment servioes per minute basis for web-enabled
customer contact center services. Additional feesdled for other services.

Distribution services relate primarily to imtery management, product receiving, warehousimgfalfillment (i.e., picking, packing and
shipping) and facilities and operations managentgenvice fee revenue for these activities is reamghas earned, which is either (i) on a per
transaction basis or (ii) at the time of produdtiftment, which occurs at the completion of thestlibution services.

Order management/customer care services i@iabarily to taking customer orders for the Comgartlients’ products via various
channels such as telephone call-center, electmyrficsimile. These services also entail addressiisgomer questions related to orders, as well
as cross-selling/upelling activities. Service fee revenue for thit\aty is recognized as the services are renddfeds charged to the client
on a per transaction basis based on either (ig-aletermined fee per order or fee per telephonetesrincurred, (ii) a per dedicated agent fee,
or (iii) are included in the product fulfillmentséce fees that are recognized on product shipment.

The Company’s billings for reimbursement of-oftpocket expenses, including travel and certhird-party vendor expenses such as
shipping and handling costs and telecommunicati@nges are included in pafsough revenue. The related reimbursable costeeflexted a
cost of pass-through revenue.

The Company’s cost of service fee revenueesgmting the cost to provide the services destibeve, is recognized as incurred. Cost of
service fee revenue also includes certain costidsed with technology collaboration and ongoiegiinology support that include
maintenance, web hosting and other ongoing progiamactivities. These activities are primarily pgrhed to support the distribution and
order management/customer care services and agnieed as incurred.

The Company recognizes revenue and records &recounts receivables, pursuant to the methatsided above, when collectability is
reasonably assured. Collectability is evaluateithénaggregate and on an individual
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customer basis taking into consideration paymeatdhte, historical payment trends, current findrpmaition, results of independent credit
evaluations and payment terms. Related reserveteteemined by either using percentages appliegitimin aged receivable categories based
on historical results and are reevaluated and setjuss additional information is received or a #peitlentification method. After all attempts
to collect a receivable have failed, the receivablsritten off against the allowance for doubtfigcounts.

The Company primarily performs its servicegemone to three-year contracts that can gendsaltgrminated by either party. In
conjunction with these long-term contracts, the @any sometimes receives start-up fees to covenjilementation costs, including certain
technology infrastructure and development coste. Company defers the fees received, and the retatgd, and amortizes them over the life
of the contract. The amortization of deferred rexers included as a component of service fee rexehloe amortization of deferred
implementation costs is included as a cost of serfge revenue. To the extent implementation dostson-technology infrastructure and
development exceed the fees received, the excessam@ expensed as incurred. The following sunaesithe deferred implementation
revenues and costs, excluding technology and deneat costs that are included in property and eqeig (in thousands):

December 31 December 31
2008 2007
Deferred implementation revenu
Current $ 2,55¢ $ 772
Non-current 86¢ 51€

$ 342t $ 1,28¢

Deferred implementation cos
Current $ 95€ $ 38¢
Non-current 28¢ 29¢

$ 1,244 $ 68€

Current and non-current deferred implemengatiosts, excluding technology and development casésa component of prepaid expenses
and other assets, respectively. Current and naemudeferred implementation revenues, which mageule the timing of when the related
implementation costs are incurred and thus defeerexla component of accrued expenses and othéitiks, respectively.

Concentration of Business and Credit Risk

The Company'’s service fee revenue is generatddr contractual service fee relationships witlitiple client relationships. No
clients/customers exceeded 10% of consolidatechrevduring the years ended 2008, 2007 or 2006 xrgry of the customer and client
concentrations is as follows:

December 31 December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006

Product Revenue (as a percentage of Product Re)ze

Customer 1 12% 1C% 11%
Service Fee Revenue (as a percentage of ServicRdwamue)

Client 1 37% 27% 23%

Client 2 10% 11% 12%

Client 3 6% 12% 19%
Accounts Receivable

Customer 1 11% 1C% 13%

Client 1 has advised PFS that it is not rengyitis contract with PFS effective January 2008uth certain project work is anticipated to
occur during the first half of 2009.
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PFSweb has provided certain collateralizedantaes of its subsidiaries’ financings and cradidngements. These subsidiaries’ ability to
obtain financing on similar terms would be sigrafitly impacted without these guarantees.

The Company has multiple arrangements with @i IPS and is dependent upon the continuatisuaf arrangements. Substantially a
the Supplies Distributors’ revenue is generate@tdgale of product purchased from IPS. These gaments, which are critical to the
Company’s ongoing operations, include Suppliesribigtors’ master distributor agreements, certaiSopplies Distributors’ working capital
financing agreements, product sales to IBM andd&Sness units and an IBM term master lease agme®epplies Distributors also relies
upon IPS’s sales force and product demand generatitivities and the discontinuance of such sesweeuld have a material impact upon
Supplies Distributors’ business.

eCOST'’s arrangements with its vendors areitezbbe by either party at will. Loss of any vendoasild have a material adverse effect on
eCOST's financial position, results of operationd aash flows. Sales of HP and HP-related prodepiesented 43% of eCOST’s net
revenues in 2008 (9% of consolidated net revend®8) of eCOST’s net revenues in 2007 (11% of codatedd net revenues) and 33% of
eCOST’s net revenues in 2006 (7% of consolidatédavenues).
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are defined as short-tertmnigjuid investments with original maturities, @t acquired, of three months or less.

Restricted Casl

Restricted cash includes the following itemstifousands):

December 31 December 31

2008 2007
Customer remittance $ 45¢ $ 1,971
Bond financing (see note 1,55(C 50
Total restricted cas $ 2,00¢ $ 2,021

In conjunction with certain of its financingr@ements, Supplies Distributors has granted teriders a security interest in certain customer
remittances received in specified bank accounts Ks#e 4). At December 31, 2008 and 2007, thesk &derounts held $0.2 million and $1.5
million, respectively, which was restricted and cauty be used to reduce the outstanding debt.

In conjunction with certain of its financingr@ements, eCOST has granted to its lender a semtgrest in certain customer remittances
received in specified bank accounts (see Note #pekember 31, 2008 and 2007 these bank accouldt$02 million and $0.5 million,
respectively, which was restricted and can onlysed to reduce the outstanding debt.

Other Receivables

Other receivables include $9.6 million and $1illion as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, rebypadg, primarily for amounts due from
IPS and IBM for costs incurred by the Company urilermaster distributor agreements (see Note &ddlition, other receivables included
$3.5 million, and $0.2 million as of December 3@08 and 2007, respectively, applicable to valuesdddx receivables.

Inventories

Inventories (all of which are finished goodsg stated at the lower of weighted average costasket. The Company establishes inventory
reserves based upon estimates of declines in veliefo inventories that are slow moving or obsglekcess levels of inventory or values
assessed at lower than cost.

Supplies Distributors assumes responsibititystow-moving inventory under certain master distior
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agreements, subject to certain termination righis has the right to return product rendered olesdig engineering changes, as defined (see
Note 6). In the event PFSweb, Supplies Distribuéord IPS terminate the master distributor agreesnéimt agreements provide for the pat
to mutually agree on a plan of disposition of SiggpDistributors’ then existing inventory.

Supplies Distributors’ inventories include wmtgandise in-transit that has not been received&yCbmpany but that has been shipped and
invoiced by Supplies Distributors’ vendors. Theregponding payable for inventories in-transit iduded in accounts payable in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

eCOST inventories include goods in-transitustomers.

The Company reviews inventory for impairmentsoperiodic basis, but at a minimum, annually.dvecability of the inventory on hand is
measured by comparison of the carrying value ofritaentory to the fair value of the inventory. Téléowance for slow moving inventory was
$2.1 million as of December 31, 2008 and 2007.

Property and Equipmen

The components of property and equipment as of Mbee 31, 2008 and 2007 are as follows (in thousands

December 31 December 31
2008 2007 Depreciable Life
Furniture and fixture $ 19,12¢ $ 22,51( 2-10 years
Purchased and capitalized software c 17,49( 14,59t 3-5 years
Computer equipmet 10,77« 10,44 3-5 years
Leasehold improvemen 7,62¢ 7,77¢ 3-7 years
Other 571 101 3-5 years
55,58¢ 55,42]
Les«accumulated depreciation and Amortizat (43,489 (43,509
Property and equipment, r $ 12,10¢ $ 11,91¢

Property and equipment are stated at costendepreciated using the straight-line method theeestimated useful lives of the respective
assets. Capitalized implementation costs are diggpeelcover the respective client contract peribgssehold improvements are amortized over
the shorter of the useful life of the related assehe remaining lease term.

The Company’s property held under capitaldse@mount to approximately $3.4 million and $4.8iom, net of accumulated amortization,
of approximately $8.4 million and $10.5 million,Becember 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets for immpant periodically, but at a minimum annually,venenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amoumtnodsset may not be recoverable. Long-lived assdtgle property, intangible assets,
goodwill and certain other assets. Recoverabilitgssets is measured by a comparison of the cgreyimount of an asset to future net cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset. If assets are considered to be impaired, the impairto be recognized is measured as the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asseteads the fair value of the assets. Fair valuddvoa determined using appraisals,
discounted cash flow analysis or similar valuatiechniques. The Company makes judgments and essriratonjunction with the carrying
value of these assets, including amounts to beateeid, depreciation and amortization methodswseful lives. The Company records
impairment losses in the period in which it deteresi that the carrying amount is not recoverablés iffay require the Company to make
judgments regarding lo-term forecasts of their future revenues and amdéded to the assets subject to review. Duringdabeth quarter of
2008, the Company recorded an impairment char@d b8 million against goodwill and a $4.5 millianpairment charge against intangible
assets (discussed in Note 1). An impairment chaf@8.5 million was recorded against goodwill ir080
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Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

For the Company’s Canadian and European dpesatthe local currency is the functional currently assets and liabilities are translated at
exchange rates in effect at the end of the pednd,income and expense items are translated avérage exchange rates for the period.

The Company includes currency gains and lossehortterm intercompany advances in the determinatiamedincome and loss. Currer
gains and losses, including transaction gains esgkk and those on short-term intercompany advancesled in net loss were net gains of
approximately $0.1 million, $1.0 million and $0.3llilon for the years ended December 31, 2008, 28QF 2006, respectively. The Company
reports gains and losses on intercompany foreigrecay transactions that are of a long-term invesinmature as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity.

Impact of Recently Issued Accounting Standar

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 153ir Value Measurements” (“SFAS 157”). SFAS 157med fair value, establishes a
framework for measuring fair value and expandsld&ges about fair value measurements. In Febr2@0@, the FASB issued FASB Staff
Position (“FSP”) 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB &ment No. 157", which delays the effective dat&BAS 157 for nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities, except those that areogized or disclosed at fair value on a recurriagi® at least annually, until fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2008, and interimgugiwithin those fiscal years. SFAS 157 is effector fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007 and the Company adopted SFASotSinancial assets and liabilities on Januar2d08, with no material impact to i
consolidated financial statements. The Company teddjair value measurement treatment for nonfirgrassets and liabilities on January 1,
2009, which did not have a material impact.

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statementl§8, The Fair Value Option For Financial Assets and Fingl Liabilities. This new
standard allows companies to elect to measurefgggbéinancial instruments and warranty and insaeacontracts at fair value on a contract-
by-contract basis, with changes in fair value rexogd in earnings in each reporting period. The gamy did not elect the fair value option
under this statement.

In December 2007, the FASB issued StatementlKlbR,Business Combinationsand Statement No. 16Mpncontrolling Interests in
Consolidated Financial Statements, an amendmeAR®& No. 51 Statement No. 141R modified the accounting asdldsure requirements
business combinations and broadens the scope pféh@us standard to apply to all transactionsliich one entity obtains control over
another business. Statement No. 160 establisheso@unting and reporting standards for noncomiglhterests in subsidiaries. The
Company will be required to apply the provisiongtaf new standards in the first quarter of 200® iftpact of this statement on the
Company'’s financial statements is expected to beaterial.

In December 2007, the SEC issued Staff ActiogrBulletin No. 110 (“SAB 110”). SAB 110 permit®mpanies to continue to use the
simplified method, under certain circumstancegstimating the expected term of “plain vanilla” iops beyond December 31, 2007. SAB 110
updates guidance provide in SAB 107 that previoatdyed that the Staff would not expect a companyse the simplified method for share
option grants after December 31, 2007. The Compalhgontinue to use the simplified method untihis sufficient historical exercise data to
provide a reasonable basis upon which to estinhatexpected term of its options.

In April 2008, the FASB issued FSP No. 14D8termination of the Useful Life of Intangible Ass¢“FSP No. 142-3"). This guidance is
intended to improve the consistency between th&iLiéie of a recognized intangible asset under SA¥o. 142Goodwill and Other Intangib
Assets(“SFAS No. 142"), and the period of expected cdstv$ used to measure the fair value of the assigru®FAS No. 141(R) when the
underlying arrangement includes renewal or extensfderms that would require substantial costesult in a material modification to the
asset upon renewal or extension. Companies estignéite useful life of a recognized intangible assest now consider their historical
experience in renewing or extending similar arrangets or, in the absence of historical experienuest consider assumptions that market
participants would use about renewal or extensgadjusted for SFAS No. 142’s entity-specific fastd-SP No 142-3 is effective beginning
January 1, 2009 and will be applied prospectivelintangible assets acquired after the effectite.dehe Company is currently assessing the
impact this adoption will have on its consolidafiédncial statements.
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Income Taxes

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN“48¢counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — aeriptetation of FASB Statement
No. 109(“FIN 48”), on January 1, 2007 with no impact oe financial statements. The Company recognizesastand penalties related to
certain tax positions in income tax expense.

For federal income tax purposes, tax yearsrémaain subject to examination include years 20@dugh 2008. However, the utilization of
net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards that argser to 2004 remain subject to examination thiotlge years such carryforwards are
utilized. For Europe, tax years that remain subj@examination include years 2005 to 2008. Howether utilization of NOL carryforwards
that arose prior to 2005 remain subject to exartinahrough the years such carryforwards are etiliZor Canada, tax years that remain
subject to examination include years 2001 to 2d@@ending on the subsidiary. For state income taggses, the tax years that remain subject
to examination include years 2003 to 2008, dependpon the jurisdiction in which the Company fiteg returns.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recaaghfor the future tax consequences attributabtiifferences between the financial statement
carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilitied their respective tax bases. Deferred tax aaset liabilities are measured using enacted
tax rates expected to apply to taxable incomeerytars in which those temporary differences apeebed to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities ohange in tax rates is recognized in income irpéréod that includes the enactment date.
Valuation allowances are established when necessaegduce deferred tax assets to the amount rikedg than not to be realized.

Self Insurance

The Company is self-insured for medical insgebenefits up to certain stop-loss limits. Sun$ts are accrued based on known claims and
an estimate of incurred, but not reported (“IBNRI§ims. IBNR claims are estimated using historiaglinformation and other data provided
by claims administrators.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company'’s finanaistruments, which include cash and cash equival@ctounts receivable, accounts payable
and debt and capital lease obligations, approxirtiegie fair values based on short terms to matunitgurrent market prices and interest rates.
Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income (loss) is defined astiamge in equity (net assets) of a business eigernguring a period from transactions and
other events and circumstances from non-owner ssufomprehensive income (loss) consists of neniec(loss) and foreign currency
translation adjustments.

Net Loss Per Common Shal

Basic and diluted net loss per share is coatphy dividing net loss by the weighted-average Imemof common shares outstanding for the
reporting period. Stock options not included in ¢laéculation of diluted net loss per share forykars ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and
2006, were 1.4 million, 1.3 million, and 1.3 miliprespectively, as the effect would be anti-dil@tiWarrants not included in the calculation of
diluted net loss per share for the years endedmieee31, 2007 and 2006, were 0.1 million, at eatk,cas the effect would be anti-dilutive.

Cash Paid For Interest and Taxes During Year

The Company made payments for interest ofapprately $1.7 million, $2.6 million and $2.8 mdl and income taxes of approximately
$1.6 million, $1.5 million and $0.5 million durirtge years ended December 31, 2008, 2007, and B&fjfctively (see Notes 3, 4 and 8).
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Advertising Cost:

Advertising expenses for eCOST, including thfis catalog, internet and other methods, wer@ &0llion, $1.1 million and $2.7 million fc
the years end December 31, 2008, 2007 and 20Q&:atdgely and are included in selling, general addhinistrative expenses. There were no
such expenses to the Company prior to the acouisiti eCOST.

Reverse Stock Spl

On June 2, 2008, the Company effected a Bfpreverse split (“Reverse Split”) of the Compangdmmon stock. Pursuant to the Reverse
Split, the common stock was combined and reclassliiased on a ratio of 4.7 shares of issued amsthoding common stock being combined
and reclassified into one share of common stocksidre and per share amounts for common stockamtarand stock options have been
restated to reflect the Reverse Split on a rettxabasis.

3. Vendor Financing

Outstanding obligations under vendor finanangngements consist of the following (in thousand

December 31 December 31
2008 2007
Inventory and working capital financing agreeme
United State: $ 23,88 $ 23,66
Europe 16,42: 13,34(
Total $ 40,30° $ 37,00°

Inventory and Working Capital Financing Agreementt/nited States

Supplies Distributors has a short-term créiility with IBM Credit LLC to finance its distribstion of IPS products in the United States,
providing financing for eligible IPS inventory afmt certain receivables up to $30.5 million throutghexpiration in March 2009. As of
December 31, 2008, Supplies Distributors had $2lBmof available credit under this facility. Tregedit facility contains cross default
provisions, various restrictions upon the abilifySoipplies Distributors to, among others, mergasotidate, sell assets, incur indebtedness,
make loans and payments to related parties (inofuetities directly or indirectly owned by PFSw#ilx,.), provide guarantees, make
investments and loans, pledge assets, make chngapital stock ownership structure and pay divide as well as financial covenants, such
as annualized revenue to working capital, net pedfer tax to revenue, and total liabilities tagéle net worth, as defined, and are secured by
certain of the assets of Supplies Distributorsyealt as a collateralized guaranty of PFSweb. Adddily, PFS is required to maintain a
minimum Subordinated Note receivable balance frappBes Distributors of $5.5 million and a minimwgiareholders’ equity of
$18.0 million. Borrowings under the credit faciléigcrue interest, after a defined free financingoge at prime rate plus 0.5% (3.75% and
7.75% as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respegtividie facility also includes a monthly service fe

On March 27, 2009, Supplies Distributors eedeénto an amended credit facility with IBM CretltC, which extends the termination date
through March 2010 and reduces the minimum SubateihNote balance to $5.0 million. Given the surtesbf this facility and as outstanding
balances, which represent inventory purchasesepeed within twelve months, the Company has clieskthe outstanding amounts under this
facility as accounts payable in the consolidatddrie sheets.

Inventory and Working Capital Financing AgreemeniEurope

Supplies Distributors’ European subsidiariagéha short-term credit facility with IBM Belgiunirfancial Services S.A. (“IBM Belgium”) to
finance their distribution of IPS products in Eueofyhe asset based credit facility with IBM Belgipnovides up to 16.0 million Euros
(approximately $22.3 million at December 31, 20i8fjnancing for purchasing IPS inventory and fertain receivables through its expiration
in March 2009. As of
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December 31, 2008, Supplies Distributors’ Europmasidiaries had 4.0 million Euros (approximatedyedmillion at December 31, 2008) of
available credit under this facility. The creditifdty contains cross default provisions, varioestrictions upon the ability of Supplies
Distributors and its European subsidiaries to, agnathers, merge, consolidate, sell assets, indabitedness, make loans and payments to
related parties (including entities directly orimedtly owned by PFSweb, Inc.), provide guarante®ske investments and loans, pledge assets,
make changes to capital stock ownership structudepay dividends, as well as financial covenantshss annualized revenue to working
capital, net profit after tax to revenue, and ttitddilities to tangible net worth, as defined, ard secured by certain of the assets of Supplies
Distributors’ European subsidiaries, as well asatetalized guaranties of Supplies Distributors BRGweb. Additionally, PFSweb is required
to maintain a minimum Subordinated Note receivélaliance from Supplies Distributors of $5.5 milliand a minimum shareholders’ equity of
$18.0 million. Borrowings under the credit faciléigcrue interest, after a defined free financingoge at Euribor plus 1.5% as of December
2008 and 2007 (4.1% and 5.8% as of December 3B 206 2007, respectively). Supplies Distributorgtdpean subsidiaries pay a monthly
service fee on the commitment.

On March 30, 2009, Supplies Distributors’ Epgan subsidiaries entered into an amended credlityavith IBM Belgium, which extends
the termination date through March 2010, reducesrtmimum Subordinated Note balance to $5.0 miliod increases the interest rate to
Euribor plus 1.94% or Euribor plus 4.25%, dependinghe type of borrowing utilized. Given the sture of this facility and as outstanding
balances, which represent inventory purchase eg@&id within twelve months, the Company has clegbithe outstanding amounts under this
facility as accounts payable in the consolidatddrize sheets.

4. Debt and Capital Lease Obligations:
Outstanding obligations under debt and cafsteade obligations consist of the following (in @lsands):

December 31 December 31
2008 2007

Loan and security agreements, United Stz
Supplies Distributor $  9,64¢ $ 10,35
PFS 6,00( 7,22¢
Credit facility— eCOST — —
Factoring agreement, Euro 2,57 1,212
Taxable revenue boni 3,20(C 4,00(
Master lease agreemel 4,657 5,03¢
Other 1,11¢ 792
Total 27,20: 28,61¢
Less current portion of loi-term deb 22,25 22,23t
Long-term debt, less current porti $ 4,957 $ 6,37¢

Loan and Security Agreemer— Supplies Distributors

Supplies Distributors has a loan and secagtgement with Wachovia Bank, N.A. (“Wachovia”ytmvide financing for up to $25 million
of eligible accounts receivable in the United Stated Canada. As of December 31, 2008, Suppligstitors had $1.7 million of available
credit under this agreement. The Wachovia facdlitpires on the earlier of March 2009 or the datevhith the parties to the IPS master
distributor agreement (see Note 6) no longer oparatier the terms of such agreement and/or IP8nget supplies products pursuant to such
agreement. Borrowings under the Wachovia facildgrae interest at prime rate or Eurodollar rates @iiw5% to 2.25%, dependent on excess
availability, as defined. The interest rate as eE®&nber 31, 2008 was 4.0% for $5.6 million of artding borrowings and 2.5% for
$4.0 million of outstanding borrowings. As of Dedsen 31, 2007, the interest rate was 7.25% for $6ldon of outstanding borrowings and
7.2% for $40 million of outstanding borrowings. $lagreement contains cross default provisionspuarniestrictions upon the ability of
Supplies Distributors to, among other things, mecgasolidate, sell assets, incur indebtednessenuains and payments to related parties
(including entities directly or indirectly owned BFSweb, Inc.), provide guarantees, make invessramt loans, pledge assets, make changes
to capital stock ownership structure and pay divitie as well as financial covenants, such as mimimet worth, as defined, and is secured by
all of the assets of Supplies Distributors, as welh collateralized guaranty of PFSweb. Additign&FSweb is required to maintain a
Subordinated Note receivable balance from Supplisgibutors of no less than $5.5 million and reeséd cash of less than $5.0 million, and is
restricted with regard to transactions with relgtadies, indebtedness and changes to capital steokrship
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structure. Supplies Distributors has entered ifbvgked account agreements with its banks and Waalpursuant to which a security interest
was granted to Wachovia for all U.S. and Canadiestaener remittances received in specified bankwauso At December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007, these bank accounts held $@Qiarmand $1.4 million, respectively, which was trated for payment to Wachovia.

On January 6, 2009, Supplies Distributorerstt into an amended loan and security agreemémdMachovia, which extends the
termination date through March 2011, reduces themim Subordinate Note balance to $5.0 million angends the interest rate to prime rate
plus 0.25% to 0.75% or Eurodollar rate plus 2.5%.0%6.

Loan and Security Agreemer— PFSweb

PFS has a Loan and Security Agreement (“Caragkgreement”) with Comerica Bank (“Comericalhe Comerica Agreement provides
up to $10.0 million of eligible accounts receivabi@ncing through April 2009. As of December 3008, PFS had $3.8 million of available
credit under this facility. This agreement accrimsrest at prime rate plus 1% (4.25% and 8.25%f &ecember 31, 2008 and 2007,
respectively). The Comerica Agreement containscdefault provisions, various restrictions upon Patlity to, among other things, merge,
consolidate, sell assets, incur indebtedness, toaks and payments to related parties (includingies directly or indirectly owned by
PFSweb, Inc.), make capital expenditures, makesinvents and loans, pledge assets, make changagital stock ownership structure, as v
as financial covenants of a minimum tangible nettivof $20 million, as defined, a minimum earnimggore interest and taxes, plus
depreciation, amortization and non-cash compensatgruals, if any, as defined, and a minimum #dgyiratio, as defined. The Comerica
Agreement restricts the amount of the subordinated receivable from Supplies Distributors to a imaxn of $6.5 million. The Comerica
Agreement is secured by all of the assets of P&®ie#l as a guarantee of PFSweb, Inc.

On March 31, 2009, PFS entered into an ameadezkment with Comerica, which extends the tertimnalate through March 2010,
modifies certain financial covenants, increasedrtterest rate and provides the approval for PF&it@nce incremental amounts subject to
certain cash inflows to PFS, as defined, to ceéits subsidiaries and/or affiliates, includinQ@ST, with certain restrictions, if needed.

Credit Facility — eCOST

eCOST has an asset-based line of credittiatlilat provides for borrowings of up to $7.5 naitlifrom Wachovia, through May 2009, which
is collateralized by substantially all of eCOST&sets. Borrowings under the facility are limitecatpercentage of eligible accounts receivable
and inventory. Outstanding amounts under the fgdikear interest at rates ranging from prime raté prime rate plus 0.5% (3.25% and
7.75% as of December 31, 2008 and 2007, respegtigdepending on eCOST'’s financial results. As o€&maber 31, 2008, eCOST had
$1.1 million of letters of credit outstanding ar2l@million of available credit under this facilith connection with the line of credit, eCOST
entered into a cash management arrangement whe@D$T's operating amounts are swept and used &y @gstanding amounts under the
line of credit. The credit facility restricts eCOSTability to, among other things, merge, consoéidatll assets, incur indebtedness, make I
investments and payments to subsidiaries, afffiated related parties (including entities direotlyndirectly owned by PFSweb, Inc.), make
investments and loans, pledge assets, make changapgital stock ownership structure, and requiresinimum tangible net worth of $0, as
defined. PFSweb has guaranteed all current andefatoligations of eCOST under this line of credit.

On January 6, 2009, eCOST entered into amdeteloan and security agreement with Wachoviachvektends the termination date
through May 2011, and amends the interest rateinoeprate plus 0.75% to 1.25% or Eurodollar ratesf8.0% to 4.0%.

Factoring Agreement

Supplies Distributors’ European subsidiary &dactoring agreement with Fortis Commercial FoeaN.V. (“Fortis”) to provide factoring
for up to 7.5 million Euros (approximately $10.4llinh at December 31, 2008) of eligible accountseieables through March 2010. As of
December 31, 2008, Supplies DistributdEsiropean subsidiary had approximately 0.7 milliemds ($1.0 million) of available credit under t
agreement. Borrowings accrue interest at Euribes p19% (3.5% and 4.9% at December 31, 2008 and, 208pectively). This agreement
contains various restrictions upon the ability apflies Distributors’ European subsidiary to, amotiter things, merge, consolidate and incur
indebtedness, as well as financial covenants, aschinimum net worth. This agreement is secured pyarantee of Supplies Distributors, up
to a maximum of 200,000 Euros.

Taxable Revenue Bonds

PFS has a Loan Agreement with the Missisdjyginess Finance Corporation (the “MBFC”) in corti@twith the issuance by the MBFC
of $5 million MBFC Taxable Variable Rate Demand itied Obligation Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 (Pyidtilfillment Services, Inc.
Project) (the “Bonds”). The MBFC loaned the proceefithe
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Bonds to PFS for the purpose of financing the aitioh and installation of equipment, machinery asldted assets located in the Company’s
Southaven, Mississippi distribution facility. Th@fls bear interest at a variable rate (2.9% asoEMber 31, 2008), as determined by
Comerica Securities, as Remarketing Agent. PFi&s aption, may convert the Bonds to a fixed r&tehe determined by the Remarketing
Agent at the time of conversion.

The primary source of repayment of the Bosdss lietter of credit (the “Letter of Credit”) inghnitial face amount of $5.1 million issued by
Comerica pursuant to a Reimbursement AgreementdaetWFS and Comerica under which PFS is obligatpdyt to Comerica all amounts
drawn under the Letter of Credit. The Letter of diréas a maturity date of April 2010 at which tinfenot renewed or replaced, will result it
draw on the undrawn face amount thereof. If thedreif Credit is renewed or replaced, the Bondsirecfuture principal repayments of
$800,000 in January of each year through 2012. BBRjations under the Reimbursement Agreemensecared by substantially all of the
assets of PFS, including restricted cash of $1lkomiand a Company parent guarantee.

Debt Covenant:

To the extent the Company or any of its subsies fail to comply with its covenants applicatiddts debt or vendor financing obligations,
including the monthly financial covenant requirertsesnd required level of shareholders’ equity dnvmerth, and one or all of the lenders
accelerate the repayment of the credit facilityigdiions, the Company would be required to rephgrabunts outstanding thereunder. In
particular, in the event eCOST is unable to inaétssrevenue and/or gross profit from its presevitls, it may fail to comply with one or mc
of the financial covenants required under its wagkgapital line of credit. In such event, absewaéver, the working capital lender would be
entitled to accelerate all amounts outstandingetinetler and exercise all other rights and remetfieliding sale of collateral and demand for
payment under the Company parent guaranty. Anyleet®n of the repayment of the credit facilitigsuld have a material adverse impact on
the Company’s financial condition and results oféi@gtions and no assurance can be given that thep&uonwould have the financial ability to
repay all of such obligations.

Master Lease Agreemen

The Company has a Term Lease Master AgreewidmtBM Credit (“Master Lease Agreement”) that pides for leasing or financing
transactions of equipment and other assets, whanbrglly have terms of three years. The amountanding under this Master Lease
Agreement were $1.7 million and $1.2 million aD&fcember 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively, whiclsaceared by the related equipment (see
Note 2).

The Company has two other master agreemettifiwancing companies that provide for leasindimeincing transactions of certain
equipment. The amounts outstanding under thesemgr@s as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 were $lliGnnand $2.0 million,
respectively, and are secured by the related eqgnpm

The Company has other leasing and financimgeagents and will continue to enter into thoserayements as needed to finance the
purchasing or leasing of certain equipment or o#fssets. Borrowings under these agreements areafjgrsecured by the related equipment.

Debt and Capital Lease Maturitie
The Company’s aggregate maturities of debt subsgqadecember 31, 2008 are as follows (in thousand

Fiscal year ended December

2009 $20,48¢
2010 2,80¢
2011 33¢
2012 19¢
2013 15¢€
Thereaftel —

Total $23,98¢

77




Table of Contents

PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (conti nued)

The following is a schedule of the Companysife minimum lease payments under the capitabiesmether with the present value of the
net minimum lease payments as of December 31, @d@Bousands):

Fiscal year ended December

2009 $ 1,96¢
2010 1,06:
2011 414
2012 82
Thereaftel —

Total minimum lease paymer $ 3,521
Less amount representing interest at rates rariging4.5% to 16.5% (310
Present value of net minimum lease paym 3,215
Less: Current portio 1,76t

Long-term capital lease obligatiol $ 1,452

5. Stock and Stock Options

On June 2, 2008, the Company effected a Bfpreverse split (“Reverse Split”) of the Compangdmmon stock. Pursuant to the Reverse
Split, the common stock was combined and reclassliiased on a ratio of 4.7 shares of issued amsthogling common stock being combined
and reclassified into one share of common stockfrBlional shares were issued in connection withReverse Split. Shareholders who were
entitled to fractional shares received cash in diefractional shares. All share, per share, wdrasa option amounts have been restated to
reflect the Reverse Split on a retro-active basis.

Preferred Stock Purchase Righ

On June 8, 2000, the Company’s Board of Dinectleclared a dividend distribution of one prefdrstock purchase right (a “Right”) for
each share of the Company’s common stock outstgratinuly 6, 2000 and each share of common stgdedsthereafter. Each Right entitles
the registered shareholders to purchase from timep@oy one one-thousandth of a share of preferomi sit an exercise price of $314.90,
subject to adjustment. The Rights are not curresiBrcisable, but would become exercisable if aegaents occurred relating to a person or
group acquiring or attempting to acquire 20 percgmhore of the Company'outstanding shares of common stock. The Riglgsesrn July €
2010, unless redeemed or exchanged by the Comaaligr e

Employee Stock Purchase Ple

The Company offers the PFSweb Employee StocgHase Plan (the “Stock Purchase Plan”) that adifigd under Section 423 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, to provide employéélse Company an opportunity to acquire a pragrieinterest in the Company. The
Stock Purchase Plan permits each U.S. employeehatcompleted 90 days of service to elect to ppatie in the plan. Eligible employees
may elect to contribute with aftéax dollars up to a maximum annual contributioi$25,000. The Stock Purchase Plan provides for atigun
of the Company’s common stock at a 5% discourfiéonbarket value on the date of purchase. The Coyripasireserved 0.9 million shares of
its common stock under the Stock Purchase Plarin@tine years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 argl #® Company issued 7,522, 3,852
and 11,581 shares under the Stock Purchase Pipectesely. As of December 31, 2008, there werg@%BDshares available for further
issuance under the Stock Purchase Plan.

Private Placement Transactior

In 2003, the Company entered into a SecufRigEhase Agreement with certain institutional Btees in a private placement transaction
pursuant to which the Company issued and solditsnecon stock, par value $.001 per share (the “Com@&tonk”). In addition to the Common
Stock, the investors received four-year warranfsuchase an aggregate 84,145 shares of Commok &taa exercise price of $15.51 per
share. As a result of the merger with eCOST andgbtivate placement transaction in June 2006, theamts were adjusted such that there were
120,208 warrants outstanding with an exercise mick10.86 per share as of December 31, 2007. These
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warrants expired unexercised in January 2008.

In June 2006, the Company entered into a RgciAgreement and Registration Rights Agreemefit géittain institutional investors in a
private placement transaction pursuant to whichGbmpany issued and sold an aggregate of 1,063/&8@s of its common stock, par value
$.001 per share, at $4.70 per share, resultingassgoroceeds of $5.0 million. After deducting enges, the net proceeds were approximately
$4.8 million. The Company has advanced $4.7 milbbthese proceeds to eCOST as of December 31, 2008

Stock Options and Stock Option Plau

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted thedke recognition provisions of FASB Statemeit 23(R),Share-Based Payment
(“FAS 123R”"). The Company adopted FAS 123R usirgrttodified prospective transition method. Undet trensition method, compensation
cost recognized during the years ended Decemb&0®B, 2007 and 2006 includes: a) compensationfopsil share-based payments granted
prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 20@6ed on the grant date fair value estimateddordence with the original provisions of FAS
123, and b) compensation cost for all share-baagthpnts granted subsequent to January 1, 2006 bagée grant date fair value estimated
in accordance with the provisions of FAS 123R. Cengation cost is recognized on a straight-lineshast of estimated forfeitures, over the
requisite service period of each award.

Stock-based compensation charged against imeges $0.5 million, $0.8 million and $0.9 millicorfthe years ended December 31, 2008,
2007 and 2006, respectively. As of December 31820re was $0.5 million of total unrecognized pemsation costs related to unvested
stock options, which is expected to be recognizest a weighted average period of approximatelyyg#s.

As of December 31, 2008, the Company haddhewing share-based compensation plans:

PFSweb Plan Option

The Company has an Employee Stock and Ineef/ian and an Outside Director Stock Option an@iRet Plan under which an aggregate
of 1,808,510 shares of common stock were origirelithorized for issuance (the “Stock Options Plaagt an outstanding stock option
agreement under which 7,446 shares were origiaalligorized for issuance. The Stock Option Plansigeofor the granting of incentive
awards in the form of stock options to directosgaitive management, key employees, and outsidguttants of the Company. The rights to
purchase shares under the employee stock optieemgnts typically vest over a three-year perioé;trelfth each quarter. Stock options
must be exercised within 10 years from the daigraft. Stock options are generally issued suchttigaéxercise price is equal to the market
value of the Company’s common stock at the datgarft.

As of December 31, 2008, there were 366,38 a6eshavailable for future grants under the Stocka@@Plans.

The following table summarizes stock optiotivity under the Stock Option Plans:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Per Share Price Life Value
Outstanding, December 31, 2C 1,208,65! $1.8:—%$75.2( $ 5.8¢
Grantec 182,55 $ 4.04—$5.5¢ $ 4.3t
Exercisec (18,179 $ 1.8:—$3.45 $ 1.84
Cancelec (20,639 $1.8:—%$12.0¢ $ 6.3¢
Outstanding, December 31, 2C 1,352,40 $1.8:—%$75.2( $ 5.71
Exercisable, December 31, 20 1,148,77 $1.8:—$75.2( $ 5.94 4.4 $ —
Exercisable and expected to vest, December 31, 1,312,31. $1.8:—$75.2( $ 5.74 4.4 $ —

The weighted average fair value per shargtibos granted during the years ended Decembe2®IB, 2007 and 2006 was $3.14, $3.34
$5.31, respectively. The total intrinsic value pfions exercised under the Stock Option Plans Wa4dmillion and $0.02 million during the
years ended December 31, 2008 and 2006, respgc
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PFSweb No-plan Options

Prior to the Company’s initial public offeringertain of the Company’s employees were holdestazk options of the Company’s former
parent company, Daisytek International Corporaff@aisytek”), issued under Daisytek’s stock optjgans.

In connection with the completion of the Comyia spin-off from Daisytek on July 6, 2000 (thepiB-off”), all outstanding Daisytek stock
options were replaced with substitute stock opti@raisytek options held by PFSweb employees weraced (at the option holder’s election
made prior to the Spioff) with either options to acquire shares of PFBwemmon stock or options to acquire shares of Datisytek comma
stock and PFSweb common stock (which may be exatc@sparately) (the “Unstapled Options”). Optioakltby Daisytek employees were
replaced (at the option holder’s election madergddhe Spineff) with either options to acquire shares of D&&ycommon stock or Unstapl
Options.

As a result of the stock option replacementpss described above, in conjunction with the -8ffirPFSweb stock options (the “Non-plan
Options”) were issued to PFSweb and Daisytek afficdirectors and employees. These options wenedsas one-time grants and were not
issued under the Stock Option Plans. The termgpemdsions of the Non-plan Options are substantidde same as options issued under the
Stock Option Plans.

The following table summarizes stock optiotivéty under the Non-plan Options:

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Per Share Price Life Value
Outstanding, December 31, 2C 91,32: $4.26—$49.7: $ 442
Grantec $ — $ —
Exercisec — $ — $ —
Cancelec (301 $ 49.7: $ 49.7:
Outstanding, December 31, 2C 91,02: $ 4.2¢ $ 4.2¢ 2.¢ $ —
Exercisable, December 31, 20 91,02: $ 4.2¢ $ 4.2¢ 2.¢ $ —
Fair Value

The fair value of each option grant is estedatn the date of grant using the Black-Schole®ogiricing model with the following
assumptions used for grants of options under thekSDption Plans:

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 20C December 31, 20C December 31, 20C

Expected dividend yiel — — —

Expected stock price volatilit 81%- 85% 87%- 90% 91%- 103%
Weighted average stock price volatil 84% 88% 102%
Risk-free interest rat 3.1%- 3.8% 4.4%-5.0% 4.5%-5.2%
Expected life of options (year 6 6 0.5-6

The Black-Scholes option valuation model reggithe input of highly subjective assumptionsluding the expected life of the stock-based
award and stock-price volatility. The assumptidstetl above represent management’s best estinbatethese estimates involve inherent
uncertainties and the application of managememmeht. As a result, if other assumptions had besed uthe Company’s recorded and pro
forma stock-based compensation expense could reere different. In addition, the Company is requitee@stimate the expected forfeiture rate
and only recognize expense for those shares exptxtest. If the Company’s actual forfeiture ristenaterially different from its estimate, the
share-based compensation expense could be mateliffdirent. The expected life of options has beemputed using the simplified method as
prescribed by Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107.
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6. Master Distributor Agreements

Supplies Distributors, PFSweb and IPS haveredtinto master distributor agreements under w8igbplies Distributors acts as a master
distributor of various products, primarily IPS pumt, and PFSweb provides transaction managemerfulitidnent services to Supplies
Distributors. Under the master distributor agreetnei®S sells product to Supplies Distributors egithburses Supplies Distributors for certain
freight costs, direct costs incurred in passingoy price decreases offered by IPS to Suppliesibigors or its customers to cover price
protection and certain special bids, the cost ofipcts provided to replace defective product regdroy customers and other certain expenses
as defined. Supplies Distributors can return to pR&luct rendered obsolete by IPS engineering @mafier customer demand ends. IPS
determines when a product is obsolete. IPS andlegdpistributors also have agreements under whiéreimburses or collects from
Supplies Distributors amounts calculated in certatentory cost adjustments.

Supplies Distributors passes through to custsmmarketing programs specified by IPS and adieirsisalong with a party performing
product demand generation for the IPS products) puagrams according to IPS guidelines.

7. Supplies Distributors

Pursuant to a credit agreement, Suppliesibigbrs is restricted from making any distributidnPFSweb if, after giving affect thereto,
Supplies Distributors’ would be in noncompliancetwits financial covenants. Supplies Distributoes heceived lender approval to pay
approximately $2.4 million of dividends in 2009 punder the terms of its amended credit agreemismtsstricted from paying further annual
cash dividends without the prior approval of itsders (see Notes 3 and 4). Supplies Distributaics ¢imidends to PFSweb of $3.0 million,
$2.4 million and $3.9 million in the years endedcBmber 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

8. Income Taxes

A reconciliation of the difference between thgpected income tax expense at the U.S. fedexaitsty corporate tax rate of 34%, and the
Company'’s effective tax rate is as follows (in thands):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006

Income tax benefit computed at statutory | $ (5,049 $ (199 $ (4,549
Impact of foreign taxatio 9 3 )]
Foreign dividends receive 68€ 494 85C
Items not deductible for tax purpos 4,38 23C 1,704
Change in valuation reser (807) 89¢ 3,28¢
Other 1,602 (627) (120
Provision for income taxe $ 80t $ 79¢ $ 1154

The consolidated income (loss) before incomxed, by domestic and foreign entities, is as ¥adl¢in thousands):

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31

2008 2007 2006
Domestic $ (18179 $ (3,389 $ (15,03
Foreign 3,32¢ 2,80¢ 1,65¢
Total $ (14850 % (585  $ (13,376

Current and deferred income tax expense (bgrefummarized as follows (in thousands):
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Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006
Current
Domestic $ 70 $ 57 $ 10E
State 19E (70 41¢
Foreign 83% 72¢€ 77€
Total current 1,09¢ 71E 1,302
Deferred
Domestic — — —
State — 21 (59
Foreign (293) 63 (89)
Total deferrec (293) 84 (14¢)
Total $ 80t $ 79¢ $ 1,15¢
The components of the deferred tax assetil{tighbare as follows (in thousands):
December 31 December 31
2008 2007
Deferred tax asset
Allowance for doubtful accoun $ 39C $ 551
Inventory reservi 762 747
Property and equipme 1,067 1,77
Net operating loss carryforwar 19,03 21,22(
Other 1,45¢ 1,12¢
22,71 25,41«
Less— Valuation allowanct 22,04: 22,84¢
Total deferred tax ass 67C 2,56¢€
Deferred tax liabilities
Intangible assei a79) (1,980
Other (138) (289
Total deferred tax liabilitie (317) (2,269
Deferred tax assets, r $ 352 $ 297

Management believes that PFSweb has not estatila sufficient history of earnings, on a statahe basis, to support the more likely than
not realization of certain deferred tax assetsczess of existing taxable temporary differencesafuation allowance has been provided for the
majority of these net deferred income tax assetd Becember 31, 2008 and 2007. At December 318 ,20& operating loss carryforwards
relate to taxable losses of PFSweb’s European diabgitotaling approximately $8.2 million, PFSwelCanadian subsidiary totaling
approximately $4.8 million and PFSweb’s U.S. sulasids totaling approximately $42.6 million thatpne at various dates from 2009 through
2028. The U.S. NOL carryforward includes $4.6 roillirelating to tax benefits of stock option exegsiand, if utilized, will be recorded agai
additional paid-in-capital upon utilization ratlttan as an adjustment to income tax expense frarinting operations. The U.S. NOL also
includes approximately $21.0 million of NOL acquirdirough the acquisition of eCOST in February 2@@tich is subject to annual limits
under IRS Section 382.

9. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases facilities, warehouseg@ftiransportation and other equipment under dpgrigases expiring in various years thro
December 31, 2014. In most cases, management sxpattin the normal course of business, leaskbavienewed or replaced by other
leases. The Company’s facility leases generallyainrone or more renewal options. Minimum futurew@a rental payments under non-
cancelable operating leases having original temexcess of one year are as follows (in thousands):

Operating
Lease

Payments
Fiscal year ended December
2009 $ 8,34:
2010 7,09:
2011 3,581
2012 1,70¢
2013 1,061
Thereaftel 177

Total $21,96¢
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Minimum rental payments under operating leasegecognized on a straight-line basis overeha bf the lease including any periods of
free rent. Total rental expense under operatingeleapproximated $10.8 million, $10.3 million agd7smillion for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respectivelyaiddandlord required deposits are secured bgretf credit.

The Company receives municipal tax abateniargsrtain locations. During 2004 the Company reseinotice from a municipality that it
did not satisfy certain criteria necessary to nainthe abatements. In December 2006 the Compaeyvezl notice that the municipal autho
planned to make an adjustment to the Company’altatement. The Company has disputed the adjustimgrif,the dispute is not resolved
favorably, additional property taxes of approxintatl.7 million could be assessed against the Compa

On July 25, 2007 a purported class action lgventitledDarral Frank and Joseph F. Keeley, Jr. v. PC M#lk. dba eCOST.com and
eCOST.com, Inavas filed in the Superior Court of California, LAsgeles County. The purported class consists affatlrrent and former
sales representatives who worked for the defendar@alifornia from July 24, 2003 through July 24007. The lawsuit alleges that the
defendants failed to pay overtime compensationiatetlest thereon, failed to timely pay compensatoterminated employees and failed to
provide meal and rest periods, all in violatiortted California Labor Code and Business and PrafassCode. In December 2008, the matter
was settled for $0.1 million.

The Company is subject to claims in the ondir@urse of business, including claims of alleggdngement by the Company or its
subsidiaries of the patents, trademarks and otiteltéctual property rights of third parties. Ietparty asserting such claims commences
litigation, the Company could be required to deféself or its customers. The Company is not avedir@ny such litigation.

10. Segment and Geographic Information

The Company is organized into three operatggments: PFSweb is an international providertebirated eCommerce and business prc
outsourcing solutions and operates as a serviceusieess; Supplies Distributors is a master tigtar of primarily IPS products; and eCOST
is a multi-category online discount retailer of néetose-out” and recertified brand-name merchamdis

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006
Revenues (in thousand:
PFSwelk $ 129,91( $ 115,87¢ $ 98,94¢
Supplies Distributor 230,71( 235,35 244.97¢
eCOST 99,82 104,14: 88,33:
Eliminations (8,599 (8,57¢6) (9,009

$ 451,84 $ 446,80: $ 423,25;

Income (loss) from operations (in thousan:

PFSwelk $ (69 $ (1,42) $ (2,730
Supplies Distributor 5,86¢ 6,57 7,614
eCOST (19,087 (3,399 (16,149
Eliminations — — —

$ (13,290 $ 1,75i $ (11,269
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Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006
Depreciation and amortization (in thousan:
PFSwelk $ 5,607 $ 7,14¢ $ 6,42(
Supplies Distributor 20 19 11
eCOST 99t 1,012 1,04¢

Eliminations _ — _
$ 6,627 $ 8,18( $ 7,47¢

Capital expenditures (in thousanc

PFSwelk $ 5,360 $  3,52¢ $  3,90(
Supplies Distributor 87 — 49
eCOST 30C 33: 29
Eliminations — — —

$ 5,75¢ $ 3,86z $ 3,97¢

December 31 December 31
2008 2007
Assets (in thousands
PFSwelk $ 108,43t $ 102,95(
Supplies Distributor 82,28( 79,44¢
eCOST 13,48¢ 33,61t
Eliminations (59,684 (57,839

$ 144,52: $ 158,17¢

Geographic areas in which the Company opematdsde the United States, Europe (primarily Befg), and Canada. The following is
geographic information by area. Revenues are ati&ibbased on the Company’s domicile.

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 December 31 December 31
2008 2007 2006
Revenues (in thousand:
United State: $ 351,89( $ 351,31 $ 334,11¢
Europe 97,73¢ 91,927 88,65¢
Canade 5,82¢ 6,05¢ 6,937
Inter-segment elimination (3,61%) (2,49¢6) (6,45%)
$ 451,84: $ 446,80:. $ 423,25:
December 31 December 31
2008 2007
Long-lived assets (in thousand.
United State: $ 16,80¢ $ 32,80(
Europe 89z 1,16(C
Canade 16C 55
$ 17,85 $ 34,01

11. Employee Savings Plan

The Company has a defined contribution empsaerings plan under Section 401(k) of the InteRealenue Code. Substantially all full-
time and part-time U.S. employees are eligibleadipipate in the plan. The Company, at its disoretmay match employee contributions to
the plan and also make an additional matching tmriton in the form of profit sharing in recogniti@f the Company’s performance. The
Company contributed approximately $0.2 million digrthe year ended December 31, 2008 and $0.1 mdliwing the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 to match 20% of emplogegibutions.
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12. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

Unaudited quarterly results of operationsyfears ended December 31, 2008 and 2007 were as/fo{amounts in thousands, except per
share data):

Year Ended December 31, 2008

1stQtr. 2 nd Qtr. 3rd Qtr. 4th Qtr,
Total revenue $118,46¢ $110,68:- $109,90¢ $112,78:
Total cost of revenue 105,18 97,85¢ 96,56¢ 99,39:
Gross profil 13,28( 12,82¢ 13,34! 13,38¢
Goodwill and intangible asset impairme — — — 16,25(
Operating expenst 12,29¢ 12,05( 12,65¢ 12,871
Income (loss) from operatiol 984 77¢ 68t (15,73%)
Net income (loss 414 62 43 (16,179
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per st 0.04 0.01 0.0C (1.69)

Year Ended December 31, 2007

1stQtr. 2nd Qtr. 3 Qtr. 4t Qtr.
Total revenue $104,40° $108,40( $111,99! $122,00(
Total cost of revenue 94,42 96,50¢ 100,12( 108,98(
Gross profil 9,98¢ 11,89: 11,87 13,02(
Operating expenst 11,55¢ 10,81¢ 10,88: 11,757
Income (loss) from operatiol (1,579 1,07z 99:¢ 1,262
Net income (loss (2,367) 154 162 661
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per st (0.29 0.0zZ 0.0zZ 0.0¢

The seasonality of the Company’s businesgjigddent upon the seasonality of its clients’ laggrand their sale of products. Management
believes that with the Company’s current client mird their clients’ business volumes, the Compasgisice fee revenue business activity is
generally expected to be at its lowest in the quamhded March 31 subject to transactional voluofi@sir clients. Supplies Distributors’
product revenue business activity is expected tatlits highest in the quarter ended December GD.ST’s business is moderately seasonal,
reflecting the general pattern of peak sales ferrétail industry during the holiday shopping seadwypically, a larger portion of eCOST’s
revenues occur during the fourth quarter.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accountason Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9a. (T) CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Ficgal Officer, after evaluating the effectivene$®or disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (theciiange Act”) Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ab®find of the period covered by this
report (the “Evaluation Date”), have concluded thabf the Evaluation Date, our disclosure contaold procedures are effective, in all
material respects, to ensure that information megiuio be disclosed in the reports that we file suoimit under the Exchange Act (i) is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported ast@rdrequired and (ii) is accumulated and comnataitto our management, including
our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial O, as appropriate, to allow timely decisionsareling required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no significant changes irirdarnal control over financial reporting that oo®d during the quarter ended December 31,
2008 that have materially affected, or are reaslgriddely to materially affect, our internal controver financial reporting.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establisaimmaintaining adequate internal control ovearitial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15
(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal controéofinancial reporting is designed, under the suipiem of our chief executive and chief
financial officers, and effected by our board akdtors, management and other personnel, to progasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacet of financial statements for external purposeadcordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Amgi@AAP). Our internal control over financial repagiincludes those policies and procedures
that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of records, tinareasonable detail, accurately and fairlyeetffithe transactions and dispositions of our
assets; (ii) provide reasonable assurance thagacsions are recorded as necessary to permit ptépaof financial statements in accordance
with GAAP, and that our receipts and expendituresb@ing made only in accordance with authorizatiminour management and Board of
Directors; and (iii) provide reasonable assuraegarding prevention or timely detection of unauitexd acquisition, use or disposition of our
assets that could have a material effect on tlanfial statements.

We conducted an evaluation of the effectiveradur internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2008. This evaluation
based on the framework in “Internal Control—IntegtaFramework” issued by the Committee of Spongofinganizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). All internal control systems,matter how well designed, have inherent limitagionherefore, even those systems
determined to be effective can provide only reabtnassurance regarding the reliability of finahoggporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance®HMAP. Also, projections of any evaluation of tHéeetiveness of internal control over
financial reporting to future periods are subjectite risk that the controls may become inadedoatause of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedunay deteriorate.

Based on our evaluation under the framewothkt@rnal Control—Integrated Frameworlour Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer concluded that internal control over fineadlaeporting was effective as of December 31, 2008

This annual report does not include an attiestaeport of our independent registered publicoanting firm regarding internal control over
financial reporting. Management’s report was ndiject to attestation by our independent registerdalic accounting firm pursuant to
temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange Cigsiom that permit us to provide only managemengfsort in this annual report.

86




Table of Contents

Item 9b. Other Information

None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Reference is made to the information to bdmét in the section entitled “Board of Directorafid “Committees of the Board” in the
definitive proxy statement in connection with ounrual Meeting of Shareholders (the “Proxy Stateff)emthich section is incorporated her:
by reference. Our Proxy Statement will be filedhathe Securities and Exchange Commission not fager 120 days after the last day of our
fiscal year ended December 31, 2008.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information required by Part 111, Item 11, e included in the section entitled “Executivengensation” of our Proxy Statement relating
to our annual meeting of shareholders and is iraatpd herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aMianagement and Related Shareholder Matters

Information required by Part 111, Item 12, idile included in the Sections entitled “ElectionDifectors” and Security Ownership of Certa
Beneficial Owners and Management” of our Proxy &tagnt relating to our annual meeting of sharehseldad is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationship and Related Transactions

Information regarding certain of our relatibis and related transactions will be includechim $ection entitled “Certain Relationship and
Related Transactions” of our Proxy Statement medgttd our annual meeting of shareholders and wrparated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Information required by Part Ill, Item 14, Wl included in the section entitled “RatificatiohAppointment of Independent Auditors” of
our Proxy Statement relating to our annual meatinghareholders and is incorporated herein by eefss.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) The following documents are filed as part of th@part:
1. Financial Statements
PFSweb, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEimm

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ EquityGoprehensive Income (Loss)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial Statement Schedules

Schedule | — Condensed Financial Information of iRtegnt
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Schedule Il — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules are omitted because the regjimfermation is not present in amounts sufficientequire submission of the schedule or
because the information required is included infitn@ncial statements or notes thereto.

2. Exhibits

Exhibit

Number Description of Exhibits
3.1(1) Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioRFESweb, Inc

3.1.1 (20) Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restatatificate of Incorporation of PFSweb, Ir

3.1.2 (32) Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate adrlporation of PFSweb, In

3.2(1) Amended and Restated Byla

3.2.1 (27) Amendment to the Amended and Restate-Laws of PFSweb, Inc

4.1 (31) Rights Agreement, dated as of June 8, 2000, betttee@ompany and ChaseMellon Shareholder Senlit&s,

4.1 (32) Amendment No. 1 to Rights Agreement, dated as of B0y 2008 between the Company and Mellon InveStvices LLC, as
successor to ChaseMellon Shareholder ServicesCL,.hs rights agen

10.1 (17) PFSweb, Inc. 2005 Employee Stock and Incentive.l

10.1.1 (25 PFSweb, Inc. 2007 Management Bonus F

10.2 (17) PFSweb, Inc. 2005 Employee Stock Purchase |

10.3 (18) Amendment 3 to Loan and Security Agreem

10.4 (18) Amendment 6 to Agreement for Inventory Financi

10.5 (18) Amendment 1 to First Amended and Restated LoarSaedrity Agreemen
10.6 (16) Amendment 5 to Amended and Restated Platinum Piaaefent

10.7 (16) Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plawdice Discounting Schedul

10.8 (16) Amendment No. 5 to Agreement for Inventory Finagc

10.9 (2) Industrial Lease Agreement between Shelby Drivgp@a@tion and Priority Fulfilment Services, Ir
10.10 (1) Lease Contract between Transports Weerts and fyriaulfillment Services Europe B.)

10.11 (2) Form of Change of Control Agreement between the @omg and each of its executive offic

10.12 (4) Ninth Amendment to Lease Agreement by between AGBRI ATRIUM. L.P., and Priority Fulfilmeservices, Inc

10.13 (5) Agreement for Inventory Financing by and among Beiss Supplies Distributors Holdings, LLC, Suppl@éstributors, Inc.,
Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc., PFSweb, Inlnyentory Financing Partners, LLC and IBM Creditr@aration

10.14 (5) Amended and Restated Collateralized Guaranty bybatsleen Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc. andMECredit Corporatior
10.15 (5) Amended and Restated Guaranty to IBM Credit Cotjpmrdy PFSweb, Inc

10.16 (5) Amended and Restated Notes Payable Subordinatiogeftgent by and between Priority Fulfillment Sersidac., Supplies
Distributors, Inc. and IBM Credit Corporatit

10.17 (5) Amended and Restated Platinum Plan Agreement (mithice Discounting) by and among Supplies Distiilos, S.A.,
Business Supplies Distributors Europe B.V., PFS®ah, and IBM Belgium Financial Services S.

10.18 (5) Amended and Restated Collateralized Guaranty betweerity Fulfillment Services, Inc. and IBM Belgh Financial Service
S.A.

10.19 (5) Amended and Restated Guaranty to IBM Belgium Fir@r8ervices S.A. by PFSweb, Ir
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibits

10.20 (5) Subordinated Demand Note by and between Suppl&silitors, Inc. and Priority Fulfillment Servicdsc.

10.21 (5) Notes Payable Subordination Agreement between @sadfinancial Corporation (Southwest) and Pridritifillment
Services, Inc

10.22 (5) Guarantee in favor of Congress Financial Corponaf®outhwest) by Business Supplies Distributorsdihgs, LLC, Priority
Fulfillment Services, Inc. and PFSweb, |

10.23 (5) General Security Agreement by Priority FulfillmeSgrvices, Inc. in favor of Congress Financial Coagion (Southwest

10.24 (5) Inducement Letter by Priority Fulfilment Servicésc. and PFSweb, Inc. in favor of Congress Finan€brporation
(Southwest)

10.25 (6) Form of Executive Severance Agreement between tmep@ny and each of its executive office

10.25.1 (34 Form of Amendment to Executive Severence Agreen

10.25.2 (34 Form of Amendment to Change in Control Severancedment

10.26 (7) Amendment to Agreement for Inventory Financing bg among Business Supplies Distributors Holding< L Supplies
Distributors, Inc., Priority Fulfilment Servicek)c., PFSweb, Inc., Inventory Financing PartnetsCland IBM Credit
Corporation

10.27 (7) Amendment to Amended and Restated Platinum Plarekgent (with Invoice Discounting) by and among Jiegp
Distributors, S.A., Business Supplies DistributBtsope B.V., PFSweb B.V., and IBM Belgium Finan@arvices S.A

10.28 (7) Amended and Restated Notes Payable Subordinatioeefrgent by and between Priority Fulfillment Sersidac., Supplies
Distributors, Inc. and IBM Credit Corporatit

10.29 (7) Amendment to Factoring agreement dated March 282 ®d@tween Supplies Distributors S.A. and Fortim@wrcial Finance
N.V.

10.30 (8) Loan and Security Agreement by and between Com8idrk — California (“Bank”) and Priority FulfillmerServices, Inc.
(“Priority”) and Priority Fulfilment Services of Canada, Ir*Priority Canad”)

10.31 (8) Unconditional Guaranty of PFSweb, Inc. to ComeBeak — California

10.32 (8) Security Agreement of PFSweb, Inc. to Comerica E— California

10.33 (8) Intellectual Property Security Agreement betweenriy Fulfillment Services, Inc. and Comerica Be— California

10.34 (8) Amendment 2 to Amended and Restated Platinum Pgaeeinent (with Invoice Discounting) by and among8ies
Distributors, S.A., Business Supplies DistributBry., PFSweb B.V., and IBM Belgium Financial SeescS.A.

10.35 (8) Amendment to Agreement for Inventory Financing bg among Business Supplies Distributors Holding< L Supplies
Distributors, Inc., Priority Fulfillment Servicek)c., PFSweb, Inc., and IBM Credit LL

10.36 (9) Amendment to factoring agreement dated April 3@3RBetween Supplies Distributors S.A. and Fortim@ercial Financi
N.V.

10.37 (9) Loan and Security Agreement by and between Condgfiessicial Corporation (Southwest), as Lender amgp8es
Distributors, Inc., as Borrower dated March 29, 2(

10.38 (9) General Security Agreeme— Business Supplies Distributors Holdings, LLC indawf Congress Financial Corporati
(Southwest

10.39 (9) Stock Pledge Agreement between Supplies Distrisutoc. and Congress Financial Corporation (Sousty

10.40 (9) First Amendment to General Security Agreement hgrRy Fulfillment Services, Inc. in favor of Corggs Financie
Corporation (Southwes

10.41 (10) First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement nesdef September 11, 2003 by and between Prioulffllment

Services, Inc., Priority Fulfillment Services ofrizala, Inc. and Comerica Bat
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Exhibit
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10.44 (12 Industrial Lease Agreement between New York Lifeurance Company and Daisytek, |

10.45 (12 First Amendment to Industrial Lease Agreement betwdew York Life Insurance Company, Daisytek, laed Priority
Fulfillment Services, Inc

10.46 (12 Second Amendment to Industrial Lease AgreementdmtiviProLogis North Carolina Limited Partnership Bnidrity
Fulfillment Services, Inc

10.47 (12 Modification, Ratification and Extension of LeasstWween Shelby Drive Corporation and Priority Futiint Services, Inc

10.48 (13 Amendment to Agreement for Inventory Financing hg among Business Supplies Distributors Holdind<; L Supplies
Distributors, Inc., Priority Fulfillment Serviceb)c., PFSweb, Inc., and IBM Credit LL

10.49 (13 Amendment 4 to Amended and Restated Platinum Pgaaeinent (with Invoice Discounting) by and amongSies
Distributors, S.A., Business Supplies DistributBr¥., PFSweb B.V., and IBM Belgium Financial SeescS.A.

10.50 (13 Third Amended and Restated Notes Payable Subominagreement by and between Priority Fulfillmemr&ces, Inc.,
Supplies Distributors, Inc. and IBM Credit Corpavat

10.51 (13 First Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementiny lsetween Congress Financial Corporation (Southwes Lender an
Supplies Distributors, Inc., as Borrow

10.52 (13 Form of Modification to Executive Severance Agream

10.53 (14 Industrial Lease Agreement by and between Induddeaelopments International, Inc. and Priority fifimhent Services, Inc

10.54 (14 Guaranty by PFSweb, Inc. in favor of Industrial Bl®pments International, In

10.55 (14 Lease between Fleet National Bank and Priorityilraknt Services, Inc

10.56 (14 Guaranty by PFSweb, Inc. in favor of Fleet NatiodBahk

10.57 (14 Amendment No. 3 to Lease dated as of March 3, b@@®een Fleet National Bank and Priority Fulfillm&ervices, Inc

10.58 (15 Loan Agreement between Mississippi Business Fin&uarporation and Priority Fulfillment Services, Imated as of
November 1, 200

10.60 (15 Reimbursement Agreement between Priority Fulfillingarvices, Inc. and Comerica Be

10.61 (15 First Amended and Restated Loan and Security Ageeéfny and between Comerica Bank and Priority Fuléint Services
Inc.

10.62 (15 Remarketing Agreement between Priority Fulfillm&etrvices, Inc. and Comerica Securi

10.63 (20 Amendment to factoring agreement dated Decembe20@) between Supplies Distributors S.A. and F@tmsmercia
Finance N.V.

10.64 (21 Fourth Amended and Restated Notes Payable Subtiotinrdgreement by and between Priority Fulfillm&wsrvices, Inc.
Supplies Distributors, Inc. and IBM Credit Corpaoat

10.65 (21 Amendment 7 to Agreement for Inventory Financi

10.66 (21 Amendment 6 to Amended and Restated Platinum Piaaefnent

10.67 (21 Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plawdite Discounting Schedul

10.68 (21 Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreemeiinblybetween eCOST.com, Inc. and Wachovia Capitericie
Corporation (Western

10.69 (21 Amendment 4 to Loan and Security Agreem

10.70 (21

Guaranty by PFSweb, Inc., in favor of Wachovia @aptinance Corporation (Wester



10.71 (21 Second Amendment to First Amended and Restated &odrsecurity Agreement by and between Comerick Bad Priority
Fulfillment Services, Inc
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I\I?L)J(Il;lggl’ Description of Exhibits

10.72 (23 Tenth Amendment to Lease Agreement by and betwkssoRAtrium, LLC and Priority Fulfillment Servicebc.

10.73 (24 Third Amendment to the Loan and Security Agreenfigréind between eCOST.com, Inc. and Wachovia Cdgitaince
Corporation (Western

10.74 (25 Fifth Amended and Restated Notes Payable SubomimAgreement by and between Priority Fulfillmertr3ces, Inc.,
Supplies Distributors, Inc. and IBM Credit Corpavat

10.75 (25 Amendment 8 to Agreement for Inventory Financi

10.76 (25 Fourth Amendment to the Loan and Security Agreerbgraind between eCOST.com, Inc. and Wachovia Qdfiitance
Corporation (Western

10.77 (25 Amendment 5 to Loan and Security Agreem

10.78 (25 Amendment 7 to Amended and Restated Platinum Piaaefent

10.79 (25 Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plawdice Discounting Schedul

10.80 (26 Fifth Amendment to First Amended and Restated Layah Security Agreement by and between Comerica BadkPriority
Fulfillment Services, Inc

10.81 (28 Second Amendment to Industrial Lease Agreemennbyb@tween Industrial Property Fund VI, LLC andoBRty Fulfillment
Services, Inc

10.82 (29 Letter from KPMG LLP to the Securities and Exchaf@genmission

10.83 (30 Sixth Amended and Restated Notes Payable Suboiainagreement by and between Priority Fulfillmert8ces, Inc.,
Supplies Distributors, Inc. and IBM Credit Corpaoat

10.84 (30 Amendment 9 to Agreement for Inventory Financi

10.85 (30 Amendment 8 to Amended and Restated Platinum P¢aaeinent

10.86 (30 Agreement for IBM Global Financing Platinum Plawdice Discounting Schedul

10.87 (30 Sixth Amendment to First Amended and Restated lavaehSecurity Agreement by and between Comerica BadkPriority
Fulfillment Services, Inc

10.88 (30 2008 Management Bonus Pl:

10.89 (35 ISixth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementaldsmuary 6, 2009 between Wachovia Bank and Ssppiributors
nc.

10.90 (35 Fifth Amendment to Loan and Security Agreementdd@nuary 6, 2009 between Wachovia Bank and eCOSiTlac.

21 (36) Subsidiary Listing

23.1 (36) Consent of GRANT THORNTON, LLP, Independent RegistePublic Accounting Firr

23.2 (36) Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Pulticounting Firm

31.1 (36) Certifications of Principal Executive Officer Puesu to 18 U.S.C. Section 13!

31.2 (36) Certifications of Principal Financial Officer Puesut to 18 U.S.C. Section 13!

32.1 (36) Certifications Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1280Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 200z

(1) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. Regisin Statement on Forr-1 (Commission File No. 3:-87657).
(2) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-K for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2(

(3) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-Q/A for the quarterly period ended September 30,L:

(4) Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc. For-K for the transition period ended December 31, Z



®)
(6)
@)
®)

Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc

. For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2
. For-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2

. For-K for the year ended December 31, 2!

. For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2
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)

(10)
11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
7)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)
(23)
(24)
(25)
(26)
(27)
(28)
(29)
(30)
(1)
(32)
(33)
(34)
(35)
(36)

Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Incorporated by reference from PFSweb, Inc.
Filed herewith

For-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2
For-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, :
Reporftorm K filed on November 10, 20C

For-K for the year ended December 31, 2|

For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2
For-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, :
For-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2(
Repoiftorm K filed on June 14, 200!

For-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2!
Curraqort on Form-K filed on November 30, 200!
For-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2(
Curraport on Form-K filed on June 2, 200¢

For-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2
Curraqort on Form-K filed on November 20, 2001
For-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2(
Repoiftorm K filed on November 13, 200

For-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
Repoiftorm K filed on May 2, 2008

For-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2(
RepofEorm -A12G/A filed on May 30, 200¢
Repoiftorm 8K filed on May 30, 200

Reporftorm K filed on June 2, 200¢

Repoiftorm K filed on January 6, 200!

Repoftorm (-K filed on January 9, 200!
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SCHEDULE |
PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
BALANCE SHEETS — PARENT COMPANY ONLY
(In thousands)
December 31 December 31
2008 2007
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivale! $ 92€ $ 17¢
Receivable from Priority Fulfillment Services, It 5,62¢ 5,602
Receivable from eCOST.com, Ir 4,70( 4,70(
Investment in subsidiarie 22,60¢ 38,36¢
Total asset $ 33,85¢ $ 48,84
LIABILITIES:
Payable to PFSweb BV SPF $ 774 $ —
SHAREHOLDERY EQUITY:
Preferred stoc — —
Common stocl 10 10
Additional paic-in capital 92,72¢ 92,121
Accumulated defici (61,399 (45,739
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 1,82t 2,53¢
Treasury stocl (85) (85)
Total shareholde’ equity 33,08t 48,84:
Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $ 33,85¢ $ 48,84

The condensed financial statements shoulé#e in conjunction with the consolidated finanskatements and notes.
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS — PARENT COMPANY ONLY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(In thousands)

2008 2007
EQUITY IN NET LOSS OF CONSOLIDATED SUBSIDIARIE $(15,65%) $ (1,389
NET LOSS $(15,65%) $ (1,389

The condensed financial statements shouléde in conjunction with the consolidated finanstatements and notes.

94

SCHEDULE |

2006
$(14,530)
$(14,530)
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PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS — PARENT COMPANY ONLY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(In thousands)

2008
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net loss $(15,65%)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby operating activitie
Equity in net loss of consolidated subsidia 15,65¢

Net cash provided by operating activit —

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for purchase of eCOST.com, Inc., net di eaguirec —

Net cash used in investing activiti —

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issuance of common st 59
Increase in receivable from eCOST.com, —
Increase in payable due to PFSweb BV Sl 714
Decrease (increase) in receivable from Priorityfifiment Services, Inc., ne (22)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi 751

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASI 751
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of peric 17¢
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of perio $ 92¢

SCHEDULE |
2007 2006

$ (1,389 $(14,53()

1,38 14,53(

— (1,299

— (1,299

18 4,91z

— (4,700

(124 1,36¢

(106) 1,58(

(10€) 281

281 —

$ 17t $ 281

The condensed financial statements shoulé#e in conjunction with the consolidated finanskatements and notes.
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Year Ended December 31, 20(

Allowance for doubtful accoun

Allowance for slow moving
inventory
Income tax valuation allowan
Year Ended December 31, 20(

Allowance for doubtful accoun

Allowance for slow moving
inventory
Income tax valuation allowan
Year Ended December 31, 20(

Allowance for doubtful accoun

Allowance for slow moving
inventory
Income tax valuation allowan

SCHEDULE I
PFSWEB, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31
(Amounts in thousands)
Additions
Charges Balance Balance
Balance at to Cost Charges Acquired at End
Beginning and to Other via of
of Period Expenses Accounts Acquisition Deductions Period
$ 484 96C — 1,07z (164) $ 2,35:
$ 1,63¢ 1,49¢ — — (47) $ 2,98
$12,42: 3,28¢ — 6,24: — $21,95(
$ 2,352 254 — — (1,129 $ 1,48
$ 2,987 (440) - - (467) $ 2,08(
$21,95( 89¢ — — — $22,84¢
$ 1,48 174 — — (677) $ 98C
$ 2,08( 1,48: — — (1,43¢) $ 2,12
$22,84¢ — — — (807) $22,04:
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, tegiBtrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredalp authorized.

By: /s/ THOMAS J. MADDEN

Thomas J. Maddel
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial i
Accounting Office

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuiitiehange Act of 1934, this report has been sidredolw by the following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdaticated.

Signature Title Date
/sl MARK C. LAYTON Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Exeel March 31, 200¢
Mark C. Layton Officer (Principal Executive Officer)
/sl THOMAS J. MADDEN Executive Vice President and Chief Financial and March 31, 2009
Thomas J. Madden Accounting Officer (Principal Financial and Accoungt

Officer)

/s/ DR. NEIL JACOBS Director March 31, 200¢
Dr. Neil Jacob:
/s/ TIMOTHY M. MURRAY Director March 31, 2009

Timothy M. Murray

/sl JAMES F. REILLY Director March 31, 200¢
James F. Reill

/s/ DAVID |. BEATSON Director March 31, 2009
David |. Beatsor
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Name

Priority Fulfillment Services, Inc

Priority Fulfillment Services of Canada, Ir

PFSweb BV SPRL (f/k/a Priority Fulfillment ServicEsirope, B.V.)
Business Supplies Distributors Holdings, L

Supplies Distributors, Inc

Supplies Distributors of Canada, It

Supplies Distributors S./

eCOST.com, Inc

eCOST Philippines Services, LL

Exhibit 21

Jurisdiction
Delaware
Ontario
Belgium
Delaware
Delaware
Ontario
Belgium
Delaware
Philippines



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTIN&GRM

We have issued our report dated March 31, 2009, wipect to the consolidated financial statemamdsschedules in the Annual Report of
PFSweb, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended Deezr@h, 2008. We hereby consent to the incorpardtioreference of said reports in the
Registration Statements of PFSweb, Inc. on Forr@{Ble No. 333-128486, effective September 21 523833-75764, effective December 21,
2001, 333-75772, effective December 21, 2001; 33B8, effective September 19, 2000; 333-42186¢tfe July 25, 2000 and 333-40020,
effective June 23, 2000) and on Form S-3 (File 1888-135794, effective July 17, 2006 and 333-1108%&ctive December 1, 2003).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 31, 2009



Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourinm

The Board of Directors
PFSweb, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrélggstration statements (Nos. 333-128486, 333-25383-75772, 333-40020, 333-42186
and 333-46096) on Form S-8 of PFSweb, Inc. andidialoies of our report dated March 31, 2008, exespit relates to the reverse stock split
described in note 2, as to which the date is M&@;2009, with respect to the consolidated balaheet of PFSweb, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2007, and the related consolidatéehséats of operations, shareholders’ equity andpcehensive income (loss), and cash
flows for each of the years in the two-year pegoded December 31, 2007 and all related finantédiment schedules, which report appears
in the December 31, 2008 annual report on Form 14RFSweb, Inc.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 30, 2009



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

[, Mark Layton, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of PEBwINnc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the periods covered
by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as define«
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) forehestrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our supervisior
ensure that material information relating to thgiserant, including its consolidated subsidiariesnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidtig report is being prepare

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldgire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and prores) as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation;

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registragtnost recel
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal qeaiin the case of an annual report) that has madlteaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registré’s internal control over financial reportir

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiEregistrant’s board of directors (or persongquening the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofmancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize, and refpmahcial information; an

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting

Date March 31, 2009

By: /s/ Mark C. Layton
Chief Executive Office




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS OF PRINCIPAL FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

I, Tom Madden, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of PEBwINnC.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorany untrue statement of a material fact or anditate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeer which such statements were made, not misigadth respect to the periods covered
by this annual report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegoks presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as define«
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) forehestrant and have:

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduies ttesigned under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to thgisgant, including its consolidated subsidiariesnade known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidfig report is being prepared;

a) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldgire controls and procedures and presentedsimeport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proces] as of the end of the period covered by #psit based on such evaluation;

b) Disclosed in this report any change in the regmtsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrastmost recel
fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal ggeain the case of an annual report) that has madlieaffected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registre’s internal control over financial reportir

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitieregistrant’s board of directors (or personggeeing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize, and refrmahcial information; ani

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveammagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting

Date March 31, 2009

By: /s/ Thomas J. Madden
Chief Financial Officel




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxégyf 2002 (subsections (a) and (b) of Section(l. Z&hapter 63 of Title 18, United States
Code), each of the undersigned officers of PFSwveh (the “Company”), does hereby certify that:

The Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeademhDecember 31, 2008 (the “Form 10-K”) of the Camypfully complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applécaif the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 andfi@mation contained in the Form 10-K
fairly presents, in all material respects, thefficial condition and results of operations of therpany as of, and for, the periods presented in
the Form 10-K.

March 31, 2009 /s/ Mark C. Layton

Mark C. Layton
Chief Executive Office

March 31, 2009 /s/ Thomas J. Madden

Thomas J. Madde
Chief Financial Office

The foregoing certification is being furnished asexhibit to the Form 10-K pursuant to Item 601882)(of Regulation S-K and Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (subsections (a)lbndf Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, Udigtates Code) and, accordingly, is not
being filed as part of the Form 10-K for purposéSection 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1@whether made before or after the date
hereof, regardless of any general incorporatiogdage in such filing.

A signed original of this written statement reqdil®y Section 906 has been provided to PFSwebaht will be retained by PFSweb, Inc. and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissiats staff upon request.



